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In this report, unless the context otherwise requires, the following MABRERN  BRIEXEREHIE > GRIAT
words and expressions shall have the following meanings. AERRIMEETYERE -

“2020 Share Incentive Plan”
[ 20205 B tn B b=t &1 )
"2020 Share Option Plan”
[20205F g e it &1 |
"AGM"

[BERBFAR

"

"associate(s)

(B AL

“Audit Committee”

[EZZEE

“Beijing Tiantu”

[t KE ]

1

“"Board” or “Board of Directors’

[EEg]

“BVI”
[REBRERRES]

“Chengdu Tiantu”

[ K&K [E
“Chairman”
==

"Chief Executive Officer”
[BFEHITE ]

the share incentive plan of the Company approved and adopted on
May 15, 2020
7202055 A 15 B 4L R ER A E) A R RIAR 17 BB =T 2l

the share option plan of the Company approved and adopted on May
15, 2020
7R2020%F5 A 15 A L/ R RAM A R BB AT 8

the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company proposed to
be held on June 22, 2022
RAREHRNR2022F6A22BRITHERERRBAFRE

has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules

BA TR R T ZARNEE

the audit committee of the Board

EEgER%ES

Beijing Tiantu Xingbei Investment Center (Limited Partnership) (3t =X
BEILIEEFR O (BRER)), a limited partnership established under the
Laws of the PRC on June 26, 2015

IERKEEILEEFL(EREE)  —RNR2015F6 26 BB IEH BIEZE
MY EREBLE

the board of Directors of the Company

RABERE

the British Virgin Islands
RBEBARES

Chengdu Tiantu Tiantou Dongfeng Equity Investment Fund Center
(Limited Partnership) (KB KB KX REREREEERL(BERE
%)), a limited partnership established under the Laws of the PRC on
November 17, 2016

RERBRZRREAREREESTO(BRER) - —KN20165F11 7517
BRBEPBEIEERINBREBEE

the chairman of the Board

Bk

the chief executive officer of our Company

AAREFEHTE



“Company”

AYNCIE

"Controlling Shareholders”

[ AR AR

“Director(s)”

(%

“Equity Incentive Plans”

[ HE R =t & ]
"Fucheng”

[z

"General Manager”
[ HRRIE |

"o "nou

“Group,

" "

us

[ZREE I3k [

our Group,

"HK$"” or “HKD" or “HK dollars”

or “Hong Kong dollars”

[T

"Hong Kong” or “HK" or
“Hong Kong SAR”
[&& sk [ &85 RITTHE ]

“Independent Third Party” or
“Independent Third Parties”

o A

[ E=7 ]

we” or

Annual Report 45§ 2021

Nayuki Holdings Limited (REMZZER AR Q7)) (formerly known as
Pindao Holdings Limited (mi@FRAR A R])), an exempted company
with limited liability incorporated in the Cayman Islands on September
5, 2019, whose Shares are listed and traded on the Stock Exchange
RENREZERARAR (FIBRBIERERLARF) - —RKR2019F9A58 %
FERSETMRINERREGRAR - EROHRBRIMETRESR

has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules and, in the
context of this report, means Mr. Zhao, Ms. Peng, Linxin Group, Linxin
International, Linxin Holdings and Crystal Tide Profits Limited
EELTRAUBETZANEE  RAKREMS - BHEEE ExL -
Linxin Group * Linxin International + #.) #2 I8 & Crystal Tide Profits
Limited

member(s) of the board of directors of the Company, including all
executive, non-executive and independent non-executive directors

ARREBEFEKE  BREBWITES  FFATEFTRBUIIFNTES

the 2020 Share Option Plan and the 2020 Share Incentive Plan
2020%F BB A RE T 81 ) 20204 AR 1 BB =t &)

Shenzhen Fucheng Technology Co., Ltd. (FJITEREEABRAR), a
company established in PRC and a connected person of our Company
RINTREERRBRAF]  —KRPRPBEKZHAF - WRRRRAIEEA
+

the general manager of our Company
ARRBEIE

the Company and our subsidiaries (or the Company and any one or
more of our subsidiaries, as the context may require)
RRABRBEFOHE R R (AR E RPN ERN —RIA LB AR (R
XEME))

Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency of Hong Kong
BEBEATEBET

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC
PEBFBFRITTRER

any entity or person who is not a connected person of our Company or
an associate of any such person within the meaning ascribed thereto
under the Listing Rules

WHARRBEEALTHERMBBEALHBEARE LHHRAE TZAN
WE) BRI AL



“Linxin Group”

[Linxin Group]

“Linxin Holdings”

[ AR R

“Linxin International”

[ Linxin International |

"Linxin Trust”
[Linxin Trust]
“Listing Date”
[ E B

“Listing Rules”

[ EmAR A

“Model Code”

MEeEsra) |

“Nomination Committee”

[REZBE

“"Option(s)”
[ B i

"Prospectus”

[ A=

“PRC" or “China” or the
“People’s Republic of China”

[FRE sk [hE AR AME ]
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Linxin Group Limited, a company incorporated in the BVI on December
29, 2020, one of our Controlling Shareholders

Linxin Group Limited * —FKM20205F 12 A29 AL R B R R B S K
MEVRTE  RERPIEERRRZ —

Linxin Holdings Limited (M0MEARBBR A7), a company incorporated in
the BVI on September 5, 2019, one of our Controlling Shareholders
MWLERBRAR - —KR201959 A5 ERBHRB RS EMALAA
A &R E Hxﬁxﬁz—

Linxin International Limited, a company incorporated in the BVI on
December 29, 2020, one of our Controlling Shareholders

Linxin International Limited * —5XA2020F 12298 T RBHER A S
MK RE - BERMANERRR 2 —

Linxin Trust, an irrevocable discretionary trust established in Guernsey
on December 30, 2020 with Linxin Holdings as beneficiary

Linxin Trust » 12020612 H30 B ER A SR LA PRI HEE 2 #EFT -
DRSS A

June 30, 2021
2021 6A30H

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited, as amended, supplemented or otherwise modified
from time to time

BEMERGMAERLDAES LR (B IRER - MR UEMT R
&)

the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules

ETRA ST PR EMRITAZETETESF X HHRETR

the nomination committee of the Board

EEgR%%ES

share option(s) granted pursuant to the 2020 Share Option Plan
RIZ2020F BB AR AT 813X eV B A

the prospectus of the Company dated June 18, 2021
ARABEHR20215F6 H18AMAKRER

the People’s Republic of China and, except where the context
otherwise requires, references in this report to the PRC or China do not
apply to Hong Kong SAR, Macau SAR or Taiwan Province
MEARANE  BRIEXBEZEME  REARSRATEL NERANEE
FRIFTHRE - RPIRIITRERSEER



“"Remuneration Committee”

(FHEZEE ]

“Renminbi” or “RMB”
[ARE

"Reporting Period”
[ &5 2R |

"RSU(s)"”
[ BR il £ BE7 |

“SFO" or “Securities and Futures

Ordinance”

[ 7& 7 M HE R

“Share(s)”
[ %15 |

"Shareholder(s)”
[ A%

“Shenzhen Pindao Group”

“Stock Exchange”
[ B 22 Ffr

“substantial shareholder”

[EEMR]

Annual Report 45§ 2021

the remuneration committee of the Board
ExgHiNEEe

Renminbi, the lawful currency of the PRC
FEIEEEBARE

the year ended December 31, 2021
HE2021F12A31BIEFE

restricted share unit(s) granted pursuant to the 2020 Share Incentive
Plan

R 20205 B (7 BB A+ 813X B9 2 PR 1AL B L

the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong
Kong), as amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to
time

BREADIEST1 EEZ KB R (ETEER] ~ MR A R A E)

share(s) of the Company of nominal value of US$0.00005 each
A2 R REE0.00005F TTH A 15

holder(s) of the Shares
& EE A

Shenzhen Pindao Group Co., Ltd. (ZYIT mESEER A F]), a company
incorporated in the PRC on December 17, 2019 and a wholly-owned
subsidiary of our Company
FINTRBEEERAR - —KR2019F 12817 BEFREFEMAZHA
A BARRMEENBAF

Shenzhen Pindao Food & Beverage Management Co., Ltd. (&I &
BHEEBMRAT]), a company incorporated in the PRC on May 12, 2014
and a wholly owned subsidiary of our Company

Y mBEREEBERARF - —FHKR20145F5A 128 & BFEMAIZH
NA BRARATINEEHB AT

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
ERBMERGAARRAT]

has the meaning ascribed to it in the Listing Rules

BB AR T % AR E
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“Tiantu Dongfeng”

[REIRE |

“Tiantu Entities”
[ REERE ]

“Tiantu Xingli”

[ REF |

“Tiantu Xingnan”

PNElN

“Tiantu Xingpeng”

PN

“US$” or “U.S. dollars”
[Z7T]

“Zundao”

u%u

[%]

Shenzhen Tiantu Dongfeng Medium Small and Micro Enterprises Equity
Investment Fund Partnership (Limited Partnership) (/& Il T X B 3 1&
PN EREREESABLE(BRER)), a limited partnership
established under the Laws of the PRC on July 25, 2017

AT ARBRER NMICERBEREESERCE(ARERE)  —FRQ
20177 A25ARIBHBEDERMINBRAEB R

collectively, Tiantu Xingli, Chengdu Tiantu, Tiantu Dongfeng, Tiantu
Xingnan and Tiantu Xingpeng
REEY - KEKRE - RERE - XE 8 &K E RIS 5

Shenzhen Tiantu Xingli Investment Enterprise (Limited Partnership)
(FINREFEZIRE D (BRAE)), a limited partnership established
under the Laws of the PRC on March 15, 2016
RYREFEIRELE(BRER) - —HKR2016F3A15AREFEER
RIZHBEREBEE

Shenzhen Tiantu Xingnan Investment Enterprise (Limited Partnership)
(x P X HIEEAZLE(BRAE)) alimited partnership
established under the Laws of the PRC on April 3, 2018
RYREEREREGBEE(BEREE) - —RKN2018F4A3RREPEE
BRERNAREHBEE

Shenzhen Tiantu Xingpeng Consumption Industry Equity Investment
Fund Partnership (Limited Partnership) (&I [B] H 1S K H 2 B S AR 1%
BEEHSAEBDLHE(BRAR)), a limited partnership established under the
Laws of the PRC on December 29, 2017
RYRBEBEAXOHBEEXREREESABREE(RARAR) - —KN2017
FI12R29BRBEPBEERERINBREBEE

United States dollars, the lawful currency of the United States
ERHEEERET

Dongguan Zundao Environmental Packaging Services Co., Ltd. (5E
MEBREBREETEBRAF), a company established in PRC and is a
connected person of our Company

REMEBERRBEEEERAA - —FKRPBEKIHRAF - WRRRAE
BIREA T

per cent

ADt



COMPANY NAME
Nayuki Holdings Limited

DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. Zhao Lin (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Peng Xin
Mr. Deng Bin

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Pan Pan
Mr. Wong Tak-wai

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Chen Qunsheng
Mr. Liu Yiwei
Ms. Zhang Rui

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Ms. Zhang Rui (Chairperson)
Mr. Chen Qunsheng
Mr. Liu Yiwei

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Zhao Lin (Chairperson)
Mr. Chen Qunsheng
Mr. Liu Yiwei

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Liu Yiwei (Chairperson)
Mr. Zhao Lin
Mr. Chen Qunsheng

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

Ms. Shi Chao
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AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVES

Mr. Zhao Lin
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AUDITOR
KPMG

Public Interest Entity Auditor registered in accordance
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8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road
Central, Hong Kong
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
LFEH

COMPLIANCE ADVISER

Guotai Junan Capital Limited
27/F., Low Block

Grand Millennium Plaza

181 Queen’'s Road Central
Hong Kong

LEGAL ADVISERS

Tian Yuan Law Firm LLP

Suite 3304-3309, 33/F Jardine House
One Connaught Place

Central

Hong Kong

REGISTERED OFFICE IN CAYMAN ISLANDS

Walkers Corporate Limited
190 Elgin Avenue

George Town

Grand Cayman KY1-9008
Cayman lIslands

HEADQUARTERS AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF
BUSINESS IN THE PRC

Zone F, 2F, Building 3
Huangguan Science Park
Chegongmiao Industrial Zone
Futian District

Shenzhen

PRC

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN
HONG KONG

40th Floor, Dah Sing Financial Centre
No. 248 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER

OFFICE IN THE CAYMAN ISLANDS

Walkers Corporate Limited
190 Elgin Avenue

George Town

Grand Cayman KY1-9008
Cayman lIslands

SRR

BRERMEERAT
BE

SRRER1815

i TTES

2718

SRR

ARURMEBA(BREREEER)
B

IR

FRES 15

18 MK E33[E3304-3309E

FEHNEEMNREE

Walkers Corporate Limited
190 Elgin Avenue

George Town

Grand Cayman KY1-9008
Cayman Islands

RBRPEEEE R MR

+

AT
wmHE
BERBI¥RE
EWFHE
3RFEE21E

ERTEERMH

B
(T
2 RIER2485%
RETE B L4082

FREHSROBFERARE

Walkers Corporate Limited
190 Elgin Avenue

George Town

Grand Cayman KY1-9008
Cayman Islands



HONG KONG SHARE REGISTRAR

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor

Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

China Merchants Bank Co., Ltd.

Shenzhen Branch

China Merchants Bank Shenzhen Branch Building
No. 2016, Shennan Blvd

Futian District

Shenzhen

PRC

China Everbright Bank Company Limited
Shenzhen Branch

1/F, Education Technology Building

No 26 Zizhu 7th Road

Futian District

Shenzhen

PRC

STOCK CODE
2150

COMPANY WEBSITE

www.naixuecha.com

CONTACT INFORMATION FOR INVESTORS

ir@pin-dao.cn
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A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of our TXHEF A EAREERN B A EMERFES
Group for the last four financial years, is set out below: EEUNEENBBENRE

For the year ended December 31,
BZ12A3MHILEE
2021 2020 2019 2018
2021%F 20204 20194 20184
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARBTRT AR%®TRT AREKTT

Revenue W zs 4,296,618 3,057,181 2,501,510 1,086,826
Other income HAtn g A 27,339 205,951 5,604 2,526
Cost of materials MR (1,400,674) (1,159,322) (915,653) (383,950)
Staff costs 8 TRA (1,424,358) (919,096) (750,724) (340,205)
Depreciation of right-of-use  FAEEETE

assets (420,272) (352,912) (261,417) (120,353)
Other rentals and related HiiHe LEBEX

expenses (212,996) (100,568) (127,379) (73,216)
Depreciation and amortization H & ERITE M B

of other assets (204,026) (154,117) (92,534) (39,847)
Advertising and promotion ESR#HEERAY

expenses (111,592) (82,172) (67,484) (39,384)
Delivery service fees Bl X AR 7S & (258,976) (167,369) (64,435) (10,796)
Utilities expenses KERZ (90,750) (66,909) (51,659) (23,632)
Logistic and storage fees Rk AaFEE (90,502) (56,710) (39,891) (12,039)
Other expenses ERAEY (176,325) (123,655) (80,267) (44,544)
Other net losses Hith BB F (38,746) (7,382) (2,176) (2,617)
Finance costs & RS (91,547) (130,258) (96,185) (46,160)
Fair value changes of AR BETEEHEZ T

financial assets at fair AEHHEENSREERN

value through profit or loss ([rrEEZE])

("FVTPL") 7,560 - - -
Fair value changes of financial AR A (BEEHHEE St

liabilities at FVTPL AZHBERN SR A D

MR EBEZD (11,330)  (132,757) - -

Fair value changes of A BE A A] BE B (B S AR A

convertible redeemable BEEH

preferred shares (4,329,052) = = =
Loss before taxation BB AR (4,529,629) (190,095) (42,690) (47,391)
Income tax TS 4,105 (13,207) 3,010 (22,338)
Loss for the year FRER (4,525,524) (203,302) (39,680) (69,729)
Non-IFRS measure FEFR R EERGE
Adjusted net (loss)/profit ARE(ER),/FE

(non-IFRS measure) M (FERR IS

ZERIFTE)O (145,265) 16,643 (11,735) (56,580)

Adjusted net (loss)/profit AR F(ER), FEx

margin (non-IFRS measure) @  (GERREI &SR E
ERFTE)@ (3.4)% 0.5% (0.5)% (5.2%
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Notes: fieE -

(1) The adjusted net (loss)/profit (non-IFRS measure) is defined as net (loss)/profit (1)
for the period adjusted by adding back fair value changes of financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss, fair value changes of convertible redeemable
preferred shares, listing expenses, equity-settled share-based payment
expenses, interest on redeemable capital contributions, income from output
value-added tax exemption and uncreditable input value-added tax.

(2) Calculated using adjusted net (loss)/profit (non-IFRS measure) divided by revenue (2)
for a given period.

2021
2021%
RMB’'000
ARET T

Assets, Liabilities and BE BER

Equity/(Deficit) Rz (B4

Total assets BEE 7,328,446
Total liabilities weE s (2,385,016)
Total equity/(deficit) ez  (BAh) @5 4,943,430

RBREF(ER) /FIECGERBRMBIRELRGE)
RE/BBNEARAREENEBEEEHFAEY
BaneRAENAABERY  AERRLDE
EROARBELEY  LHAX  AESFEEUR
MAERNNRRAX IRETEENNE - 2%
IR G B B P A5 R A T 7 BT 0 6 3 488 1B A5 7T 5
BOHAE (E1R), /FE -

RAEAEF(BIR),FBEGERBRE &R &£
B)RRABLE PR A R aFTE

As at December 31,

MW12831H
2020 2019 2018
20204 20194 20184

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’000
ARBTT ARETT ARBTE

3,314,109 2,051,148 1,343,293
(3,738,526) (2,200,614) (1,453,076)

(424,417) (149,466) (109,783)

1
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2021 was a year of opportunities and challenges. On one hand, we
successfully completed our Global Offering in June 2021, marking
a major milestone in the history of our Group. Our phenomenal
products newly launched in 2021 such as the “"Supreme Emblica
Tea” and "Phoenix Oolong Milk Tea” were hotly sought after,
while our classic products remained the favor of consumers. On
the other hand, as consumers tend to be more cautious towards
travel and consumption with the recurrence of the COVID-19
pandemic (“COVID-19"), especially when the corresponding
public health control measures tightened in various regions when
the Omicron variant emerged in Mainland China in the second
half of 2021, which brought challenges to our Group's financial
performance. In 2021, adhering to the strategy of increasing store
density, we continued to open stores in premium locations in
high-tier cities to cultivate consumption habits, while stepping up
research and development and promotion of hot beverages, as
well as enhancing our marketing efforts to stabilize our revenue.
We also promoted automation by adopting automated tea-
making equipment, to reduce costs and help the Group recover
profitability as soon as possible in the challenging external
environment.

In 2021, the Group’s revenue increased by approximately 40.5%
to RMB4,296.6 million from RMB3,057.2 million in 2020, and the
adjusted net profit/(loss) (non-IFRS measure) turned from profit of
RMB16.6 million in 2020 to loss of RMB145.3 million in 2021.

In 2021, we recorded store-level operating profit of RMB591.5
million for Nayuki teahouses, representing an increase of
approximately 68.4% compared to 2020. The store-level operating
profit margin of Nayuki teahouses was 14.5% in 2021, representing
an increase of approximately 2.3 percentage points compared to
2020. Net cash generated from operating activities of the Group
decreased by approximately 11.1% from RMB574.3 million in 2020
to RMB510.3 million in 2021.

2021 F R BEKHIWTFTH—F - XAAR
22VF AR TR EREE  BRAKEE
S ER—IBEERERE - RPIE2021F 5 H#E
EHEREBHE]  [BEREERRX]ER
KBTI EERE AR RMOCRER
tDABEEBENFESK - 5—FHHE -
COVID-19&ZB([ R/ TEHRE - LHZ
2021 F TH4F - PRI ARRERESE TR BE 7K
B SRR ETERRE  BEEY
HITEHBREEBNEE  HAEBEKR
IRERCPREL o £20214F - IR (0% ]
B EaGmETRLRAKIE @ B8
HEEBE  FRNBBMARSMAENEREN
B BERALHEEBESSEE  EPERADL
B RPN EGRHEESLERRFEEAD
{E¥E e - LARBRREA A BIVE - 727 mBEE A
INRIRIFT - EEVARE BB FRE DR IRIRIE o

20214 - AEEW ABR2020F M A R
3,057 2 BT LA #140.5% FE AR #4,296.6
BET - KHBFFE,(E518) GEEBR I
WEEREFT2)H2020F AT AREE16.68
BILER2021FHNEBARKEI14538ETT ©

2021F + RENRRXRIE B PIE L EF)
HARBSISEEIL © BW2020F 2 A4
68.4% ° 2021 FRBEHIR A KIEPTE L& F
R A145% @ B2020F A K23 E »
2ho REBEKLE BN S FEEAH2020F
MARBS743B BT NEL11.1%ZE20214F
M ARBS10.38&TT °



Performance by sub-brands
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7 bR IR

For the Reporting Period, Nayuki teahouses contributed a vast RFERA  RENRRKEER TAEE
majority of our revenue. In the foreseeable future, we expect BRI WA - HMIBEFT - EAUTEEH
that Nayuki teahouses will continue to be our key business. The KR RENRERENERRPNEZTE

following table sets out our performance by our sub-brands.

Revenue
Nayuki
Tai Gai
Others!"

Total

Nayuki
Tai Gai

i
AE

E o

£

NS
B Ly

A
V¥

BEL - TREH T HRFZMES D HOREA

B e

For the year ended December 31,

2021
202145

RMB
AR®T

4,067,298
141,489
87,831

4,296,618

BZE12A31BLLEE

2020 Change
2020% g
Percentage
% RMB % RMB point(s)
% AR % AR BOH
(in thousands, except percentages)
(ATt - BRI
94.7 2,870,888 93.9 1,196,410 +0.8
3.3 152,981 5.0 (11,492) -1.7
2.0 33,312 1.1 54,519 +0.9
100.0 3,057,181 100.0 1,239,437 N/A
For the year ended For the year ended
December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020
BZE2021F BE20205F
12A31BLLEE 12A31BIEFE
Store-level Store-level
Store-level Operating Store-level Operating
Operating Profit Operating Profit
Profit @ Margin @ Profit @ Margin @
FIERE FEEe FIERE PR AR &
FE@ AERe A MEx
RMB % RMB %
AR % AR %

(in thousands, except percentages)

(AT&E - BALLRRSN)

591,527 14.5 351,233 12.2
18,726 13.2 23,633 15.4

13
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Average sales value per order @ - REMNERERE
- Nayuki teahouses BEITETHHERREY

Notes:

m

Including revenue derived from our headquarters and others. Revenue derived
from headquarters consist primarily of sales of gift tea boxes, seasonal gift sets
and other gifts and retail products.

We define store-level operating profit as revenue deducting operational costs,
comprising costs of materials, staff costs, depreciation of right-of-use assets,
other rentals and related expenses, depreciation and amortization of other
assets, utilities expenses and delivery expenses, incurred at the store level under
each teahouse brand, while store-level operating profit margin is calculated by
dividing store operating profit by revenue for the corresponding period.

Calculated by the revenue generated by a Nayuki teahouse in certain period
divided by the total number of orders placed by customers to such Nayuki
teahouse in the same period.

Performance by business lines

We intend to modernize China’s long-lived tea-drinking culture

and promote it to more customers by offering freshly-made tea

drinks and baked products coupled with enjoyable customer

experience. Moreover, in order to cater to the diversified demands

of our customers, we have launched various retail products such

as sparkling water and snacks. The following table sets out our

performance by business lines.

For

December 31, 2021

the year ended For the year ended
December 31, 2020
HE20205F
12A31BIEFE
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For the year ended December 31,

HZ12A31HLFE

2021 2020 Change
20215 20204 &
Percentage
RMB % RMB % RMB point(s)
AR¥TR % ARET % AR ERi
(in thousands, except percentages)
(AF&T - BABRIN
Freshly-made
tea drinks BHIEK 3,186,988 74.2 2,322,849 76.0 864,139 -1.8
Baked products aded o 940,054 21.9 667,384 21.8 272,670 +0.1
Other products @ EfzE RO 169,576 3.9 66,948 2.2 102,628 +1.7
Total et 4,296,618 100.0 3,057,181 100.0 1,239,437 N/A
Note: ot

(1) Primarily including gifts and retail products, such as sparkling water, gift tea
boxes, snacks and seasonal gift sets.

Performance by income sources — Nayuki teahouses

In 2021, the proportion of delivery orders recorded a slight
increase, especially in cities with COVID-19. Such change
was primarily due to the control measures imposed by local
governments on dine-in so as to cope with COVID-19 and the
changes in consumption preference after COVID-19. We believe
that a relatively stable proportion of delivery orders is conducive
to the healthy development of the Group. At the current stage, we
have no intention to actively push up or pull down the proportion of
delivery orders.

() FTEREHFRRZEER
ZRNHFAEREER -

MEAK - HKEE -

DWARIRRIRE — RERARARKIE

2021F - HNEBEIEWLAIB/NEERA - LE
EHREBENET ZEELTERBTE
BERZIHBTHERNETREE - ARE
BEERBREEBEEBHENEE - HMR
B BEBTHINETELFEFRAEE
R - REERMEE T8 H S EE
SNERTE L HIEETE -
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The following table sets out the performance of Nayuki teahouses
by income sources.

TR TRENARKEDWARIRE R
BIFI

For the year ended December 31,

BZE12A318LEE

2021 2020 Change
2021%F 2020 g
Percentage
RMB % RMB % RMB point(s)
AR¥T % ARETT % AR¥ETT B
(in thousands, except percentages)
(ATt - BRI
Nayuki teahouses REMLERKUE
In-store cashier”  JERYRERM 1,146,582 28.2 871,325 304 275,257 2.2
Pickup by mini MEFFBRR
programs? 1,422,538 35.0 1,083,438 37.7 339,100 2.7
Delivery orders® PIS=HEE 1,498,178 36.8 916,125 31.9 582,053 +4.9
Total et 4,067,298 100.0 2,870,888 100.0 1,196,410 N/A
Notes: fHaE -

(1) Representing revenue generated from customer orders placed on-site at Nayuki
teahouses (excluding orders placed through our WeChat and Alipay mini
programs and Nayuki app).

(2) Representing revenue generated from customer orders placed through our
WeChat and Alipay mini programs and Nayuki app.

(3) Representing revenue generated from delivery orders that require delivery
services. In 2021, out of the revenue of the Group’s Nayuki teahouses,
approximately 30.6% was derived from revenue generated from delivery orders
placed by third-party platforms; and approximately 6.2% was derived from
revenue generated from delivery orders placed by the Group's self-operated
platform.

Nayuki Membership Program

Since we introduced the Nayuki Membership Program in 2019, the
number of our members increased continuously. As at December
31, 2021, the Company had registered members of approximately
43.3 million. The active members" of the Company amounted to
approximately 7.0 million with a repurchase rate® of approximately
35.3%.

Notes:

1. Representing the members who order our products at least once in the fourth
quarter of 2021.

2. Representing the proportion of active members who order our products at least
twice in the fourth quarter of 2021.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

PERFORMANCE ANALYSIS OF STORES

Number and distribution of stores — Nayuki teahouses

As of December 31, 2021, our Group has 817 self-owned Nayuki
teahouses in 80 cities. In 2021, we newly opened 326 Nayuki
teahouses. We insist on further expanding our teahouse network
and increasing market penetration mainly in the existing Tier 1
cities, New Tier 1 cities and key Tier 2 cities, so as to cultivate
and consolidate consumers’ habits for high-end freshly-made tea
drinks. The following table sets out the breakdown of the number
of our Nayuki teahouses by geographic location.

THBERE S Hh

FIIERIR DT

FIESE RS —RENREEE
#HZE2021%12A318 - $EIEWMWW%
BI7THERSHMERRIE - HABE - 2021
F o RPVFHIEI26E TR E » T
BEITETERAN G T BRIERH &
B — PEERRERR LIRS MHLE
= PEEEFEEE B E Y iR B3R
RHEBERE - TR TRMEHIELMLE S
P EEERRA o

As of As of
December 31, December 31,
2021 2020
M20214F 20204
12A31H 12H31H

Number of regular Nayuki teahouses (#) HREMREERGUER B (#)
Tier 1 cities — &R 149 166
New Tier 1 cities H—EW 150 168
Tier 2 cities BT 118 122
Other cities” E by mm 29 29
Total et 446 485
As of As of
December 31, December 31,
2021 2020
M20214F F 20204
12A31H 12H31H

Number of Type-l PRO Teahouses (#) % —EPROERUETHE (#)

Tier 1 cities — iR 96 =
New Tier 1 cities H— S 95 1
Tier 2 cities G570 54 =
Other cities™ E Ao 27 =
Total @t 272 1
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Number of Type-ll PRO Teahouses (#)

Tier 1 cities — &R
New Tier 1 cities g
Tier 2 cities TR
Other cities™ E by mm
Total st
Notes:
(1) Including (i) cities of other tiers across mainland China, and (ii) cities outside

mainland China.

(2) According to the report by our development department on potential store
locations, Type-I PRO Teahouses are located in higher rated commercial area
as compared with Type-Il PRO Teahouses. Except for the above, there is no
systematic difference between the Type-lI PRO Teahouses and the Type-Il PRO
Teahouses in terms of aspects such as product, size and design. We will not set
the number of stores for the two types in advance when formulating our store
opening plans, and instead will consider the location of new stores based on
a series of factors. We expect that in the short to medium term, the number of
Type-l PRO Teahouses will be higher than that of Type-Il PRO Teahouses.

Certain additional performance indicator data of our Nayuki
teahouses by market and by nature of PRO teahouses is shown
below for the ease of understanding of shareholders and potential
investors.

Performance by market — Nayuki teahouses

Benefiting from our strong brand influence, when tapping into
a new market, Nayuki teahouses usually attract customer traffic
from outside the peripheral communities and experienced “store
opening customer traffic” and higher sales volume. However, as it
is difficult to cultivate customers’ consumption habits due to the
relative sparsity of stores; therefore, until store density reaches a
reasonable level, daily sales per teahouse will gradually decline.
At the same time, as we continue to expand, newly-opened stores
account for a larger proportion and it is necessary for existing
stores in these markets to recruit and reserve talents for them,
which will put pressure on the operating margins of existing stores.

S FPROZKEUEH B (#)

As of As of
December 31, December 31,
2021 2020
R2021% #220204F
12A31H 12H31H

35 4

37 1

15 -

12 -

99 5

(1) BT R EEE A AR T R (i) AP BRI T

(2 WRIBEFMEIMEBEPIERMMRE -+ £ —HEPRO
RRERZ E ZFPROFRE - HETERF BT RE
meoBREZI MECER BE - RFASFHEL
BEAGMEZR - RMTSEEHEEIR - B
RMEDNREEHER  MEGHEE —FRIIER
RAEERFHAPEEU - RMBEFERHEFE
E—MEPROXKEMH B i =m M E ZHEPROKRE
HBE -

AT HEDTIHROPROKFKEMEHE T
SMERIEIRBIE - TEBRRMEBEREER
IR R PR RARIERE -

DHIBRE - RENRRRE

ERENRRPEFTEA—EHMISE - X
SmRBFIEANRELEE  BEER3IKE
REASHEEAINELRE - EMEEFHRE
BEPREIRESHIHE - A - EFIEEE
EHAMEKEZA - ARFIEREHE - B
NIEERPHEEE BEAHERREES
B R ARFFERER - MRAPE ST
HEER  ZEMSREMEFTAEREM
BEAR  HIRBEPIUEKENBREXES -



With our accumulated operating hours and growing store density,
customers’ consumption habits will be gradually established in
these markets. Coupled with gradual decline in the proportion
of newly-opened stores, we expect that the average daily sales
per teahouse of Nayuki teahouses in these markets will gradually
stabilize and thus our store-level operating profit margin will
gradually increase. Therefore, we believe that it is necessary
to further increase our store density in the existing markets to
accelerate market maturity.

The following table sets out certain key performance indicators for

stores in certain cities.

Nayuki teahouses REWNEERE
Shenzhen el
Shanghai g
Guangzhou &M
Wuhan HZ
Xi'an (kS

Beijing bR

Annual Report 5 2021

BELKERHEER  URMAEEEZETIE
meOHBEEZSMSNHEEBEERTST
B oz #BAPIIE S Lo & TR - RFIR
i REMSRENRAREFIHEEAH
ERMBELERFR  LAPIELENBEEX
IKEREFEBRTT - Bt - RABRBEL
2EREAMGE—TMAFIUEZRE - EMiE
BTG ERKR

TR TETHTPIEE TREERE
As of and for the year ended
December 31, 2021

BZE2021%F12A31B R

BEZBLFE
Average Store-level
Number of daily sales operating
store™(#) per teahouse profit®?
P& FHEE s R &
HEOH#) AEER PR
(RMB’000) (%)
(AR®T ) (%)
110 241 21.7
49 17.5 11.6
37 20.9 17.8
39 19.8 16.2
29 18.7 16.2
31 21.1 7.5
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The following table sets out certain same-store key performance TR TETHMEENRRRIENET
indicators of Nayuki teahouses in certain cities. [R5 B SR IR IR IZ o

For the year ended December 31,

BZ12A3MBLEE

2021 2020 2021 2020
2021% 2020%F 2021%F 2020%F
Number of
same Average daily sales Store-level operating
stores®(#) per teahouse profit margin@
i) FHEE FIE L&
HE M HiHERR FEE®
(RMB’000) (%)
(AR%FT) (%)
Nayuki teahouses RENREREE
Shenzhen S 75 25.9 221 22.8 171
Shanghai g 27 18.8 18.4 12.7 6.5
Guangzhou &M 19 23.6 20.0 19.2 12.8
Wuhan EWES 21 23.3 23.4 17.6 16.2
Xi'an (S 18 20.8 18.3 17.4 14.6
Beijing b= 15 23.0 21.2 9.2 4.7

Despite the relatively greater changes in external factors such as BEEBEIAAZNRERENELR
the COVID-19 during the Reporting Period, and the impact of which R - BEXEREHNEREL  BMR
is difficult to quantify, we believe the logic of increasing our store B MAPIEZEEAAENISEEBEE -
density can facilitate the cultivation of consumption habits, and in 1 B B[R T 35 B P E M K AR DA
turn assist different markets to progressively develop into mature BRI TER F G EIRE - RPIERKIFE
oligopolistic market remains valid and is gradually being verified. WEAIWMMERE - B EERHEHEBEN
We will continue to disclose performance by cities in the future to SR -

assist investors in understanding and verifying the above logic.



Performance by store nature — Nayuki teahouses

The following table sets out certain key performance indicators of
regular Nayuki teahouses, Type-I PRO Teahouses and Type-Il PRO
Teahouses.

Regular Nayuki teahouse EENRIEERRE

Type-I PRO Teahouse % —HEPROKRIE
Type-Il PRO Teahouse FZHPROKRE

As compared with the Group's interim result for 2021, we believe
there is a gradual improvement in the value of reference in
the performance data by store nature as the number of PRO
Teahouses increase continuously. The Company’s store openings
are concentrated in the second half of the year. As such, the rapid
changes in external environment in the second half of 2021 had a
more significant impact on PRO Teahouses. We believe that, as
the Company’s cost management and control deepens gradually,
along with the implementation of automation measures and so on,
the profitability of different types of teahouses will recover and
improve.

Notes:

(1) Only including stores that were opened for at least 60 days as of December 31,
2021 and did not cease operation as of December 31, 2021. We are of view that
stores opened for less than 60 days may be significantly affected by opening
promotions, “store opening customer traffic” and other factors, which may
lead to the overall data being unrepresentative and misleading to investors.
Therefore, we have excluded those stores.

(2) There are one-off opening expenses, including but are not limited to, pre-
operating labor costs for the teahouse and other expenses, to be included in
the profit and loss for the month that the teahouse commences operation, so it
will not be a meaningful reference due to the fact that the store-level operating
profit margin of such teahouses will be significantly affected by the opening
expenses. To facilitate the investors’ better understanding of and to compare
the daily profitability of teahouses in different types, the store-level operating
profit margin listed in the table has excluded the impact of the one-off opening
expenses mentioned above.

(3)  Only including stores that operated for at least 60 days in 2020 and 2021 and did
not cease operation as of December 31, 2021.
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As of and for the year ended
December 31, 2021

BE2021F12A31BREBEZALEE

Store-level

Average operating

Number of daily sales profit
stores)(#) per teahouse margin®
P 5 FgE g PIERE

B O#) HHER AR
(RMB’000) (%)

(AR®T ) (%)

444 20.3 17.5

179 14.2 9.8

62 11.0 6.2
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Although in the second half of 2021, consumers adopted a
conservative spending attitude and became more prudent when
making decisions about travelling and consumption. However,
through consumer feedback we can see their desire for better
living and increasing aspiration for high-end freshly-made tea
drinks. In February 2022, the National Development and Reform
Commission and other departments issued the “Several Policies on
Promoting the Recovery and Development of Difficult Industries in
the Service Industry” KN RERBEEHRNBETEMREZEERE
#) & T B 3K )), which proposed a number of supportive measures
to help the industry better cope with external challenges. We
have strong confidence in the sustainable and rapid development
of the high-end freshly-made tea drinks industry. As a leading
brand in the high-end freshly-made tea drinks industry, the Group
enjoys advantages over other brands in the industry in terms
of brand recognition, supply chain strength, product research
and development capability, quality control, scientific and
technological strength, and capital reserve. Therefore, we can
better seize the favorable industry opportunities brought by the
recovery of the macro environment in the future.

In terms of store expansion, past experience tells us that the
cultivation of consumption habits is closely related to store
performance. We will continue to implement our strategy of
increasing store density, focusing on Tier 1 cities, new Tier 1 cities
and key Tier 2 cities to enhance brand profile. In 2022, we expect to
open 350 Nayuki teahouses, which is basically in line with the plan
stated in the Prospectus published by the Group on June 18, 2021,
while we will further strengthen the requirements for the expected
profitability of newly opened teahouses.

In terms of capital security, as at December 31, 2021, the Group had
cash and cash equivalents of RMB4,052.8 million, and the Group's
cash flow position remained stable. We aim to be free cash flow
positive in 2022 to support our business development. We will
strictly control the labor costs. In 2022, we will continue to optimize
and in principle will not increase the staffing of a single store, and
the growth rate of middle and back office labor costs will also be
lower than the revenue growth rate.

BEAE2021FTHE  RABRKIEEEIL
FHHEXRTIESEER  £HTEEER
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Facing highly uncertain external environment, we will continue to
optimize operations, improve efficiency, and continue to invest in
technology and other fields, so that the Group can better cope
with external pressures and seize recovery opportunities in a timely
manner when the macro environment improves in the future. At the
same time, we will continue to enhance the transparency of capital
market communication, improve corporate governance, and help
our shareholders and potential investors make prudent investment
decisions.

Revenue

The Group generates substantially all of its revenue from sales of
products offered by Nayuki teahouses. For the Reporting Period
and 2020, Nayuki contributed 94.7% and 93.9% of the total revenue,
respectively. The remaining small portion of revenue was mainly
derived from teahouses operated under our sub-brand Tai Gai.

The Group recorded revenue of RMB4,296.6 million for the
Reporting Period (2020: RMB3,057.2 million), representing an
increase of 40.5% as compared with 2020, which was mainly
attributable to the increasing in the number of teahouses within our
Group's teahouse network.

Other income

Other income of the Group consists primarily of (i) interest
income on bank deposits, rental deposits and other financial
assets, (ii) government grants, primarily representing subsidies,
and unconditional cash awards granted by local governments.
Other income of the Group amounted to RMB27.3 million for
the Reporting Period (2020: RMB206.0 million). The decrease in
the Group's other income was primarily due to the decreased in
government grants and our Group's entitlement to valued-added
tax exemption in response to COVID-19 outbreak in 2020 was no
longer applicable to our Group in 2021.
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Expenses
Cost of materials

Cost of materials consists primarily of (i) cost of raw materials,
including tea leaves, dairy products, seasonal fruits, juices, and
other raw materials used for the preparation of our freshly made tea
drinks, baked goods and other products, and (ii) cost of packaging
materials and consumables such as tea cups and paper bags.

Cost of materials of the Group amounted to RMB1,400.7 million,
representing 32.6% of the total revenue of the Group for the
Reporting Period, compared to RMB1,159.3 million, or 37.9%
of the total revenue for 2020. The 20.8% increase in our cost of
materials over 2020 was generally in line with our overall business
growth trend. The proportion of cost of materials over total
revenue decreased, primarily due to (i) our Group's entitlement to
valued-added tax exemption in response to COVID-19 outbreak
in 2020 was no longer applicable to our Group in 2021 and the
corresponding input valued-added tax was creditable in 2021; (ii)
the introduction of multi-channel suppliers which reduced the unit
price of external purchases; and (i) the optimization of our Group's
in-store product structure.

Staff costs

Staff costs consist primarily of (i) salaries, wages and other benefits,
(ii) contributions to defined contribution retirement plan and (iii)
equity-settled share-based payment expenses. Staff costs of the
Group amounted to RMB1,424.4 million, representing 33.2% of the
total revenue for the Reporting Period, compared to RMB919.1
million, or 30.1% of the total revenue for 2020. The proportion of
staff costs over total revenue increased, primarily due to the fact
that our Group enjoyed the COVID-19-related policy for labour
costs benefit in 2020, while our Group no longer benefited from
such policy in 2021. During the Reporting Period, staff costs
classified by brands included: (i) store-level staff costs for Nayuki,
which amounted to RMB1,049.0 million, representing 25.8% of
revenue for Nayuki, (ii) store-level staff costs for Tai Gai, which
amounted to RMB39.3 million, representing 27.8% of revenue for
Tai Gai, and (iii) staff costs for headquarters and others, which
amounted to RMB336.1 million, representing 7.8% of the total
revenue.
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Depreciation of right-of-use assets

Depreciation of right-of-use assets represents depreciation
charges for the Group's leases. Depreciation of right-of-use
assets is recognized using the straight-line method from the
commencement date to the earlier of the end of the useful life of
the right-of-use assets or the end of the lease term. Depreciation
of right-of-use assets of the Group amounted to RMB420.3 million
for the Reporting Period, representing 9.8% of the Group's total
revenue during the Reporting Period (2020: RMB352.9 million,
representing 11.5% of the Group's revenue for 2020).

Other rentals and related expenses

Other rentals and related expenses consist primarily of lease
payments for our leases of teahouses. Our other rentals and related
expenses mainly include (i) short-term leases that have a lease term
of 12 months or less and leases of low-value assets; and (ii) variable
lease payments which subject to some specified event or condition.

Other rentals and related expenses of the Group amounted to
RMB213.0 million for the Reporting Period, representing 5.0%
of the Group's total revenue during the Reporting Period (2020:
RMB100.6 million, representing 3.3% of the Group’s revenue for
2020).

Depreciation and amortization of other assets

Depreciation and amortization of other assets represent
depreciation charges for property and equipment and depreciation
expense for leasehold improvements. Depreciation and
amortization of other assets of the Group amounted to RMB204.0
million for the Reporting Period, representing 4.7% of the Group's
total revenue during the Reporting Period (2020: RMB154.1 million,
representing 5.0% of the Group’s revenue for 2020).

Advertising and promotion expenses

Advertising and promotion expenses primarily represent expenses
incurred in connection with marketing, branding and promotion
activities of the Group. Advertising and promotion expenses
of the Group amounted to RMB111.6 million for the Reporting
Period, representing 2.6% of the Group's total revenue during the
Reporting Period (2020: RMB82.2 million, representing 2.7% of the
Group's revenue for 2020).
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Delivery service fees

Delivery service fees represent fees paid by the Group to third-
party delivery service providers. Delivery service fees of the
Group amounted to RMB259.0 million for the Reporting Period,
representing 6.0% of the Group's total revenue during the
Reporting Period (2020: RMB167.4 million, representing 5.5% of the
Group's revenue for 2020).

Utilities expenses

Utilities expenses consist primarily of expenses in relation to
electricity utilities, and to a lesser extent, gas and water utilities that
are attributable to the operation of the Group's teahouses. Utilities
expenses of the Group amounted to RMB90.8 million for the
Reporting Period, representing 2.1% of the Group's total revenue
during the Reporting Period (2020: RMB66.9 million, representing
2.2% of the Group's revenue for 2020).

Logistic and storage fees

Logistic and storage fees represent fees paid by the Group to
third-party service providers for raw materials transportation
and warehousing services. Logistic and storage fees of the
Group amounted to RMB90.5 million for the Reporting Period,
representing 2.1% of the Group's total revenue during the
Reporting Period (2020: RMB56.7 million, representing 1.9% of the
Group's revenue for 2020).

Finance costs

Finance costs consist primarily of interests on bank loans,
redeemable capital contributions, lease liabilities and provisions.
Finance costs of the Group amounted to RMB91.5 million for the
Reporting Period, representing 2.1% of the Group's total revenue
during the Reporting Period (2020: RMB130.3 million, representing
4.3% of the Group's revenue for 2020). The following table sets
forth the components of our finance costs for the period indicated,
both in absolute amount and as a percentage of total revenue.
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For the year ended December 31,

BZ12A31BLEFE

2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB % RMB %
AR % AR %

(in thousands, except percentages)

Interest on bank loans IRITERF B 851

Interest on redeemable AIEEF B
capital contributions & 866
Interest on lease liabilities HEHEFE 88,757
Interest on provisions BAEF B 1,073
91,547

Other expenses

Other expenses consist primarily of (i) administrative expenses
incurred during the ordinary course of business of the Group,
such as telecommunication expenses and maintenance expenses,
(ii) travelling and business development expenses incurred by
employees of the Group, (iii) other-party service fees representing
costs associated with third-party management consulting and other
professional services, (iv) impairment losses, (v) listing expenses,
and (vi) others, such as insurance fees and other tax and surcharges.
Other expenses of the Group amounted to RMB176.3 million
for the Reporting Period, representing 4.1% of the Group's total
revenue during the Reporting Period (2020: RMB123.7 million,
representing 4.0% of the Group's revenue for 2020). The following
table sets forth the components of our other expenses in absolute
amounts and as percentages of total revenue for the periods
indicated.

(A& - B LLRRSN)

0.0 7,924 0.3

0.0 38,249 1.3

2.1 83,234 2.7

0.0 851 0.0
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For the year ended December 31,

BZ12A31BLEFE

2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB % RMB %
AR % AR %

(in thousands, except percentages)

Administrative expenses THAX 72,631

Travelling and business ER R EBRE
development expenses Sz 31,873
Other-party service fees HinH REE 20,656
Impairment losses WEEE 8,410
Listing expenses kX 14,735
Others Hitb 28,020
176,325

Income Tax

The income tax benefits of the Group amounted to RMB4.1 million
for the Reporting Period. The income tax expenses of the Group for
the year ended December 31, 2020 amounted to RMB13.2 million.

Non-IFRS Measures

To supplement the Group's consolidated financial statements that
are presented in accordance with IFRS, the Group also use adjusted
net (loss)/profit (non-IFRS measure) as an additional financial
measure, which is not required by, or presented in accordance with,
IFRS. The Group believes that this non-IFRS measure facilitates
comparisons of operating performance from period to period
and company to company by eliminating potential impact of
items that our management does not consider to be indicative
of the Group’s operating performance. The Group believes
that this measure provides useful information to investors and
others in understanding and evaluating the Group's consolidated
results of operations in the same manner as it helps the Group's
management. However, the Group's presentation of adjusted net
(loss)/profit (non-IFRS measure) may not be comparable to similarly
titled measures presented by other companies. The use of this non-
IFRS measure has limitations as an analytical tool, and the investors
should not consider them in isolation from, or as substitute for
analysis of, the Group's results of operations or financial condition
as reported under IFRS.

(A& - B LLRRSN)

1.7 45,213 1.5
0.7 17,990 0.6
0.5 25,906 0.8
0.2 3,802 0.1
0.3 11,410 0.4
0.7 19,334 0.6
4.1 123,655 4.0
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Reconciliation of net loss and adjusted
net (loss)/profit (non-IFRS measure)

Net loss for the year
Add:

Fair value changes of financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss

Fair value changes of convertible
redeemable preferred shares®

Listing expenses®

Equity-settled share-based payment
expenses®

Interest on redeemable capital
contributions®

Income from output value-added tax
exemption®

Uncreditable input value-added tax?”

Adjusted net (loss)/profit
(non-IFRS measure)

Adjusted net (loss)/profit margin
(non-IFRS measure)
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Year Ended December 31,
HZ12A31BLEE
2021 2020
2021% 2020%F
(RMB in thousands)
(AREETFT)

(4,525,524) (203,302)
2,874 132,757
4,329,052 =
14,735 11,410
32,732 45,458
866 38,249

= (180,342)

= 172,413
(145,265) 16,643
(3.4)% 0.5%
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Notes:

m

Fair value changes of financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
represent the gains or losses arising from change in fair value of the Group's
warrants, onshore loans and convertible note with conversion rights in connection
with the Series B-2 investments. Such changes are one-off and non-cash in
nature and are not directly related to the Group’s operating activities. The
aforementioned financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss have been
ultimately converted into ordinary shares of the Company upon the closing of
the Global Offering on June 30, 2021 and no further gains or losses on fair value
changes from these financial instruments going forward.

Fair value changes of convertible redeemable preferred shares represent fair
value changes in all classes of preferred shares, which is a non-cash item, and
there will be no further gains or losses on fair value changes from these preferred
shares after the automatic conversion into ordinary shares upon the closing of the
Global Offering.

Listing expenses relate to the Global Offering, which is one-off in nature and is
not directly related to the Group's operating activities.

Equity-settled share-based payment expenses consist of (i) share options and
RSUs granted in 2021 and 2020 under the 2020 Share Incentive Plan, and (ii)
difference in fair value of ordinary shares and preferred shares arising from the re-
designation of ordinary shares held by the Group’s Controlling Shareholders to
preferred shares by the Company. For (i), it is adjusted for as these items are non-
cash and non-operational in nature; and for (ii), it is adjusted for as the transaction
is irregular to the operation of the business. In addition, both (i) and (ii) are not
directly correlate with the Group's business performance in a given period.

Interest on redeemable capital contribution represents interest on the Group's
Series A, Series A+ and Series B-1 investments. Although the Group recorded
interest on redeemable capital contribution for the year ended December
31, 2021 and 2020, the underlying Pre-IPO Investments nonetheless are non-
recurring in nature. Upon completion of the Global Offering, the redeemable
capital contribution in connection with such Pre-IPO Investments has been
ultimately converted into ordinary shares of the Company upon the closing of
the Global Offering on June 30, 2021 and subsequently no interest would accrue.
In addition, the interest on redeemable capital contribution is a non-cash and
non-operational item, which is not directly correlate with the Group's business
performance in a particular period.

Income from output value-added tax exemption represents the income from the
one-off preferential output value-added tax exemption that local governments
granted to ease the impact of the COVID-19 outbreak. This output value-added
tax exemption policy had expired and the Group will no longer benefited from
such tax exemption going forward.

Uncreditable input value-added tax represents the amount of the corresponding
input value-added tax that was left uncreditable as a result of the one-off output
value-added tax exemption in 2020. This output value added tax exemption
policy had expired and the Group will no longer benefited from such tax
exemption going forward.

Calculated using adjusted net (loss)/profit (non-IFRS measure) divided by revenue
for a given period.
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Cash and Borrowings

As of December 31, 2021, the total cash and bank balances of
the Group amounted to RMB4,052.8 million (as of December 31,
2020: RMB501.8 million). The increase in cash and cash equivalents
of the Group was mainly attributable to the proceeds from our
Global Offering in June 2021. As of December 31, 2021, the total
interest-bearing borrowings (including bank overdrafts and other
borrowings) of the Group amounted to RMB0.4 million (as of
December 31, 2020: approximately RMB283.6 million). All of the
borrowings are denominated in USD.

Right-of-Use Assets

The Group's right-of-use assets primarily represent the leases for
the Group's teahouses, office at headquarters and warehouses.
As of December 31, 2021, the right-of-use assets of the Group
amounted to RMB1,313.3 million (as of December 31, 2020:
RMB1,240.1 million). The increase in the balance of the Group's
right-of-use assets was generally in line with our overall business
expansion.

Property and Equipment

The Group's property and equipment consist primarily of
leasehold improvements, kitchen equipment, furniture equipment,
electronic equipment and others and construction in progress.
As of December 31, 2021, the property and equipment of the
Group amounted to RMB801.4 million (as of December 31, 2020:
RMB587.1 million). The increase in the Group's property and
equipment was primarily due to business growth and increase in
number of stores.

Inventories

The Group’s inventories consist primarily of raw materials and
packaging materials. As of December 31, 2021, the inventories
of the Group amounted to RMB174.1 million (as of December 31,
2020: RMB103.1 million). The increase in the Group's inventories
was primarily due to business growth and increased stock for the
Group's newly open stores.

The Group’s inventories turnover days increased from 28.5 days for
2020 to 36.1 days for the Reporting Period.
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Trade and Other Receivables and Prepayments

The Group's trade receivables consist primarily of receivables due
from third parties in connection with the sales of products. The
Group's other receivables and prepayments consist primarily of
input valued-added tax recoverable in connection with purchase
of raw materials, rental deposits within one year and prepayments
to suppliers. Trade and other receivables and prepayments of the
Group decreased from RMB725.0 million as of December 31, 2020
to RMB346.1 million as of December 31, 2021, primarily due to
the receivable from Series C preferred shares Pre-IPO investors of
RMB522.0 million as at December 31, 2020 was actually received
in January 2021, partially offset by an increase in prepayments
to suppliers of RMB102.3 million and input valued-added tax
recoverable of RMB46.8 million.

Trade and Other Payables

The Group's trade payables consist primarily of trade payables to
the Group's raw materials suppliers. The Group also recorded other
payables and accrued charges in connection with various aspects
of its operations, including (i) payroll and welfare payables to
employees, (ii) payables for purchase of property and equipment,
(iii) accrued charges, which are mainly utilities, and (iv) others.
Trade and other payables of the Group increased from RMB500.7
million as of December 31, 2020 to RMB654.2 million as of
December 31, 2021, primarily due to the fact that the increase in
number of stores was in line with the increase in payables relating
to purchase of raw materials and property and equipment.

Gearing Ratio

As of December 31, 2021, our gearing ratio, which is calculated as
total debt divided by total assets, was 32.5%, as compared with
112.8% as of December 31, 2020.

Treasury Policy

The Group adopts a prudent financial management approach for
its treasury policy to ensure that the Group's liquidity structure
comprising assets, liabilities and other commitments is able to
always meet its capital requirements.
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Liquidity and Financial Resources

Taking into account the financial resources available to the
Group, including cash and cash equivalents, cash generated from
operations and available facilities of the Company, and the net
proceeds from the Global Offering, and after diligent and careful
investigation, the Directors are of the view that the Group have
sufficient working capital required for the Group’s operations at
present.

As of December 31, 2021, the Group had total cash and cash
equivalents of approximately RMB4,052.8 million (as of December
31, 2020: approximately RMB501.8 million), the increase of the
Group’s cash and cash equivalents was primarily due to the
proceeds from our Global Offering in June 2021.

Total bank loans and interest-bearing borrowings of the Group
as of December 31, 2021 were approximately RMBO0.4 million (as
of December 31, 2020: approximately RMB283.6 million), and
current ratio as of December 31, 2021 was approximately 3.51
times (as of December 31, 2020: approximately 0.49 times). These
bank borrowings were denominated in USD, and the interest rates
applied were primarily charged at fixed rates. As of December
31, 2021, the Group has RMB200.0 million available revolving loan
facilities.

For the Reporting Period, the Group mainly operated in China
and the majority of the transactions were settled in RMB. As
of December 31, 2021, apart from cash and cash equivalents
denominated in foreign currency, the Group did not have any
significant foreign exchange risk in its business operations. The
Group currently does not engage in hedging activities designed
or intended to manage foreign exchange rate risk. The Group will
continue to monitor foreign exchange changes to best preserve the
Group's cash value.

As of December 31, 2021, the Group did not have any significant
contingent liabilities.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EERIRE S

CAPITAL EXPENDITURES

Our capital expenditures amounted to approximately RMB749.1
million for the Reporting Period, which were incurred primarily in
connection with payment for purchase of property and equipment.

CHARGE ON ASSETS

As of December 31, 2021, the Group charged restricted bank
deposits of RMB51.7 million to banks for issuing unconditional and
irrevocable letter of guarantee.

Save as disclosed above, as of December 31, 2021, the Group did
not pledge any assets.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT

As of December 31, 2021, there was no significant investment held
by the Group or future plans for significant investments or capital
assets.

FUTURE PLAN FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS
OR CAPITAL ASSETS

As of December 31, 2021, save for the “Future Plans and Use of
Proceeds” disclosed in the Prospectus, the Group did not have any
existing plan for acquiring other material investments or capital
assets.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF
SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND AFFILIATED
COMPANIES

For the Reporting Period, there was no material acquisitions or
disposal of subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures.
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As of December 31, 2021, the Group had a total of 10,671 full-
time employees, among which 1,275 employees work in the
Group's headquarters and regional offices, and the remaining
employees are in-store staff. The Group values its employees
and is committed to growing with employees. The Group has
launched an employee retention initiative, under which the Group
incorporates employee retention rate as one of the key criteria
that used to assess its teahouse performance. The Group is also
committed to establishing a competitive and fair remuneration
and benefits environment for its employees. Remuneration is
determined with reference to the qualification, experience and
work performance, whereas the payment of discretionary bonus is
generally subject to work performance, the financial performance
of the Group in that particular year and general market conditions.
To effectively motivate the Group’s business development team
through remuneration incentives and ensure that our employees
receive competitive remuneration packages, the Group continually
refine its remuneration and incentive policies through market
research and comparisons with its competitors. As required by
the PRC laws and regulations, the Group participates in various
employee social security plans for its employees that are organized
by municipal and provincial governments, including basic pension,
unemployment insurance, maternity insurance, work-related injury
insurance, medical insurance and housing fund.

The Group also share its success with employees by offering them a
variety of incentives and financial rewards to keep them motivated.
To recognize and reward, among others, the Group’s employees,
directors and senior management for their contributions to the
Group, to attract suitable personnel and to provide incentives
to them to remain with and further contribute to the Group, the
Group has adopted the 2020 Share Option Plan and the 2020 Share
Incentive Plan by way of resolutions of the Board on May 15, 2020.
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In addition, the Group places strong emphasis on providing
trainings to its employees in order to enhance their professional
skills, understanding of industry and work place safety standards,
and appreciation of the Group's value, especially the Group's
unwavering commitment to food safety and product quality as
well as satisfying customer services. The Group designs and offers
different training programs for employees at various positions. For
example, the Group requires every newly recruited employee at
operational functions to attend a one-month in-store training as
the Group strives for consistency and high quality of its product
delivery and customer services. In addition, the Group pairs its new
in-store staff with seniors, who are responsible for guiding them
through the probation period. The Group have also established a
vanguard program to foster and maintain a local talent pool and
offer a promotion path for excellent employees to become future
teahouse managers.

The Shares were listed on the Stock Exchange on June 30, 2021.
The net proceeds raised from the Company’s global offering
(the "Global Offering”), after deduction of the underwriting
fees and commissions and other estimated expenses payable
by the Company in connection with the Global Offering, were
approximately HK$4,842.4 million. As of December 31, 2021,
there was no change in the intended use of net proceeds and the
expected timeline as previously disclosed in the section headed
"Future Plans and Use of proceeds” in the Prospectus. The net
proceeds received by the Company from the Global Offering will
be used for the following purposes:

e approximately 70.0%, or HK$3,389.8 million, will be used over
the next three years to expand the Group's teahouse network
and deepen the Group’s market penetration;

e approximately 10.0%, or HK$484.2 million, will be used over
the next three years to further improve the Group’s overall
operations through enhancing technology capabilities, with a
goal to improve operational efficiency;

e approximately 10.0%, or HK$484.2 million, will be used over the
next three years to strengthen the Group’s supply chain and
product distribution capabilities, with a goal to support our
expanding scale; and

e the remaining approximately 10.0%, or HK$484.2 million, will
be used for working capital and general corporate purposes.
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The following table sets forth a summary of the utilization of the net
proceeds from the Global Offering as of December 31, 2021:

Purpose

B#

Expand the Group's teahouse network and
deepen the Group's market penetration

BRASENFREBRTREFAEEN
T EE

Further improve the Group's overall operations
E—SRATGENERES

Strengthen the Group's supply chain capabilities
RIKREEOHERERE N

Fund the Group's working capital and general
corporate purposes

RAKENEEES R ROEZRERE

Total
st

Percentage to

Net proceeds
incurred
from the

total amount Global Offering

R

70.0%

10.0%

10.0%

10.0%

100.0%

2RBE
EAEN
FBRERE
HK$ (million)
AT(EETL)

3,389.8

484.2

484.2

484.2

4,842.4

Save as disclosed in note 36 to the Consolidated Financial

Statements, there has been no important events subsequent to the

Reporting Period and up to the date of this report, which would

affect the Group's business operations in material aspects.
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Actual use

of proceeds
up to
December 31,
2021
BEZ2021F
12A31BER
BARSRE
HKS$ (million)
BT(AET)

711

71.8

57.2

612.9

BR 7 & B TS SRR MY E 36 PRI B & 51

Unutilized
amount as of
December 31,
2021
BZ22021F
12A31H
AEBR2E
HK$ (million)
AT(AET)

2,977.0

427.0

4,229.5

Expected
timeline of full
utilization of
the remaining
proceeds
BEBAKT
FrERIEN
FHREX

June 2024
202456 A

June 2024
2024F6 A

June 2024
202456 A

June 2024
2024F6 A

HREMEEAREAH  HEZLEEFEHEAR
EEXBEEELTATENERER
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As of the date of this annual report, biographical details of the
Directors and senior management are set out below.

The Board currently comprises eight Directors, of which three are
executive Directors, two are non-executive Directors and three
are independent non-executive Directors. The following table sets
forth information regarding our Directors.

Name

&

Executive Directors
BITES

Mr. Zhao Lin
R E

Ms. Peng Xin
ZLhrt

Mr. Deng Bin

B 4
Non-executive Directors
FHITES

Mr. Pan Pan
ERSE

Mr. Wong Tak-wai
BRELE

Independent non-executive
Directors

BAKUITES

Mr. Chen Qunsheng

BREFAEE 4

Mr. Liu Yiwei

fNEREBEE

Ms. Zhang Rui

KL L
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Age
FiR

42

4275%
34
345%
40

405%

42
425%

45
455%

44
4455,

50

o -

Position

B

Chairman of the Board,
Executive Director and Chief
Executive Officer

ESR BTESERERHTE

Executive Director and
General Manager

HITESRARLE

Executive Director and
chief operation officer

HTEEREFELR

Non-executive Director

FUMTES

Non-executive Director

FWTES

Independent non-executive
Director

BIYFHTES

Independent non-executive
Director

BUFHTES

Independent non-executive
Director

BUFHTES

RAFHAN EERSRETEREHE

ESCRM/\REFAK  HR=25%
TES MARFPTEER=RRBIULIF
HITEE - TR BHEFNEH -

Date of appointment as
Director

EZERESHNEY

June 9, 2020

20206 A9A
September 5, 2019
201959 A5R
June 9, 2020

20206 H9R

October 26, 2020
2020104268

December 31, 2020
2020512 A31H

June 18, 2021
202156 H18H
June 18, 2021
202156 H18H
June 18, 2021

20216 H18H



Mr. Zhao Lin (1K), aged 42, has served as a director of
Shenzhen Pindao Management from February 2017 to October
2020 and Director of our Company since June 2020. Mr. Zhao was
redesignated as executive Director and appointed as Chairman of
the Board and Chief Executive Officer of our Company on February
5, 2021. Mr. Zhao co-founded our Group with Ms. Peng in May
2014 and was principally responsible for the identification and
development of store locations to further the Group’s expansion.
After leaving Meixin (defined below) in January 2016, he has
dedicated his full capacity to the Group and is responsible for
overall strategic planning and business direction of our Group
and overseeing management of our business. Mr. Zhao is the
chairperson of the Nomination Committee and member of the
Remuneration Committee.

Prior to founding Shenzhen Pindao Management, Mr. Zhao worked
at BK Foods (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. (22 TR M CEI) AR A R]) from
January 2010 to May 2011. Mr. Zhao served as the development
manager of Meixin Food (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. GEL RSB OFRYDBR
‘A A]) from May 2011 to January 2016 (“Meixin").

Mr. Zhao received a diploma in chrematistics from Urumgqi
Vocational University (S8R ZE K E) in July 2001.

Mr. Zhao is the spouse of Ms. Peng Xin, our executive Director and
General Manager.
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Ms. Peng Xin (¥#1), aged 34, has served as the director of
Shenzhen Pindao Management since our inception in May 2014
and a Director since September 2019. Ms. Peng was redesignated
as executive Director and appointed as our General Manager on
February 5, 2021. Ms. Peng co-founded our Group with Mr. Zhao in
May 2014 and is responsible for overseeing product development,
quality control and overall marketing strategy of our Group.

Prior to founding Shenzhen Pindao Management, Ms. Peng
served as the deputy secretary general of Pearl Club of Kingdee
Software (China) Co., Ltd. (& & (B ) B R A 7 ) from
August 2010 to October 2012; as the director of Shenzhen Linxin
Culture Communication Co., Ltd. (RIITI MO L EE AR T E
A R]) from July 2018 and the director of Shenzhen Xinlin Culture
Communication Co., Ltd. (RYITT LML EREEREE AR A]) from
August 2017.

Ms. Peng received a bachelor’s degree in business management
from Jiangxi University of Finance and Economics (LA &X K £2) in
July 2010. Ms. Peng currently holds directorships in the following
principal subsidiaries of our Group: Shenzhen Pindao Group,
Shenzhen Pindao Management and Shenzhen Pindao Supply Chain
Management Co., Ltd. (RIITI a8 HEHEIE AR A R)).

Ms. Peng is the spouse of Mr. Zhao Lin, our Chairman of the Board,
executive Director and Chief Executive Officer.

Mr. Deng Bin (B#), aged 40, was appointed as our Director
on June 9, 2020 and redesignated as our executive Director on
February 5, 2021. Mr. Deng joined our Group in August 2016 and
has served as our chief operation officer since January 2019. Mr.
Deng is responsible for overseeing operations of our Group.

Mr. Deng served as an operation officer of our Group from
August 2016 to December 2017 and he served as regional general
manager in charge of our South China businesses from January
2018 to December 2018. Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Deng
served as senior division manager of Genki Sushi Catering Service
& Management (Shenzhen) Limited (JTRE AIZE K REE EOFYI)
BRR2AF]) from March 2009 to March 2016 and later, an operation
manager from April 2016 to June 2016.

Mr. Deng received a bachelor’'s degree in business management
from Yamanashi Gakuin University in March 2006.
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Mr. Pan Pan (&%), aged 42, was appointed as our Director
on October 26, 2020 and redesignated as our non-executive
Director on February 5, 2021. Mr. Pan is responsible for providing
professional strategic advice to the Board.

Mr. Pan has been with Tiantu Capital Management Center LLP (i
IREEAREEHRL(BRER)), which is ultimately controlled by
Tiantu Capital Co., Ltd. (RIITTKBEIREE R KD BRAF]), since
March 2014 and he is currently a managing partner in charge of
the venture capital division. Mr. Pan has been the non-executive
director of Zhou Hei Ya International Holdings Company Limited
(ARBEREKRZEEREMRAF), a company listed on the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange (stock code: 1458), since June 2016; and the
director of Hunan Chayue Cultural Industry Development Group
Co., Ltd. (HERNMLEEZEZEREBHFBR A F], formerly known as
Hunan Chayue Catering Management Co., Ltd. (#iF &I E R E R
BBRAR]) since February 2019. Mr. Pan served as the director of
TVZone Media Co., Ltd. (FEXREZEFHRZ M BRAF]), a company
listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock code: 603721), from
October 2013 to June 2021.

Mr. Pan obtained a bachelor’s degree in finance from Hunan
University (88 AZ) in June 2002 and a master's degree in finance
from Hunan University in December 2004.

Mr. Wong Tak-wai (EZ&), aged 45, was appointed as our
Director on December 31, 2020 and redesignated as our non-
executive Director on February 5, 2021. Mr. Wong is responsible for
providing professional strategic advice to the Board.

Mr. Wong currently serves as a managing director of PAG (formerly
known as Pacific Alliance Group), an alternative investment group,
where Mr. Wong has worked, since March 2011. Mr. Wong has been
a non-executive director of Mobvista Inc., a company listed on
the Hong Kong Stock Exchange (stock code: 1860), since February
2021. Since April 2017, Mr. Wong has been a non-executive director
of Yingde Gases Group Company Limited, a company previously
listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange (stock code: 2168). Mr.
Wong also served as an independent director of Tencent Music
Entertainment Group, a company listed on the New York Stock
Exchange (NYSE Ticker: TME), from July 2016 to September 2020.

Mr. Wong received a bachelor’s degree in business administration
and a bachelor’s degree in Asian studies from University of
California, Berkeley in May 1999.
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Mr. Chen Qunsheng (BREf4), aged 44, has been appointed as
our independent non-executive Director with effect from June 18,
2021. Mr. Chen is the member of the Audit Committee, member
of the Remuneration Committee and member of the Nomination
Committee.

Mr. Chen served as the executive director of Shui On Group
Shanghai Xintiandi Commercial Management Co., Ltd. and the
chairman of Fung Cheng Property Co., Ltd., both companies are
wholly-owned subsidiaries of Shui On Land Limited, a company
listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange (stock code: 272), from
October 2017 to June 2020. Mr. Chen served as the deputy general
manager of strategic management department of China Resources
Land Limited, a company listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
(stock code: 1109), from June 2015 to December 2015, and the
deputy general manager of commercial property business division
from January 2016 to September 2017.

Mr. Chen received a bachelor’s degree in economics from Wuhan
University (V2 KZ) in July 2000.

Mr. Liu Yiwei (Z|218), aged 50, has been appointed as our
independent non-executive Director with effect from June 18,
2021. Mr. Liu is the chairperson of the Remuneration Committee,
member of the Audit Committee and member of the Nomination
Committee.

Mr. Liu has served as the director and deputy general manager of
Shenzhen Yingtai Investment Management Co., Ltd. (I EFHE
EIRH PR A A since January 2008 and the director of Langold Real
Estate Co., Ltd. (MBIEX£RHBER A A, a company listed on the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code: 002305), since August 2014.

Mr. Liu received a diploma in labor and personnel major from
Communication University of China (1 BI{##& K28, formerly known
as Beijing Coal Management Cadre College (3t Rk BEIRHELE
Bz)) in July 1991 and a master’'s degree in monetary banking from
Graduate School of Chinese Academy of Social Sciences (B4t &
RIZBTIfFT £ in April 1998.

Mr. Liu obtained the qualifications of Securities Practitioner (&%
WZEAE) in June 2004 and Futures Practitioner (BEEHZEAE) in
January 2003, respectively.
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Ms. Zhang Rui (5R#), aged 59, has been appointed as
independent non-executive Director with effect from June 18, 2021.
Ms. Zhang is the chairperson of the Audit Committee.

Since September 1984, Ms. Zhang has been working at Jiangxi
University of Finance and Economics (LA & KRE, formerly
known as Jiangxi Institute of Finance and Economics (JLFAEf X2
Bt)), where she successively served as a teacher in department of
finance and accounting, the head of the teaching and research
section for auditing of department of finance and accounting, a
deputy head of department of finance and accounting, the dean of
faculty of accounting and a director of research and development
center for accounting development.

Ms. Zhang has been an independent director of Shenzhen Aisidi
Co., Ltd. (RYITEBERMHBERAF]), a company listed on the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code: 002416), since October
2019. Ms. Zhang has been an independent non-executive director
of Jiangxi Bank Co., Ltd. (LFAIRTTAX D AR A A]), a company listed
on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange (stock code: 1916), since March
2016. Ms. Zhang served as an independent director of Jiangxi
Fushine Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (LA B EERMHER A A), a
company listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code:
300497), from March 2019 to March 2022. Ms. Zhang served as an
independent director of Changhong Huayi Compressor Co., Ltd.
(RITZE S BRARE#RHDER AR, a company listed on the Shenzhen
Stock Exchange (stock code: 000404), since April 2016 (Ms. Zhang
filed her resignation as independent director in December 2021).

Ms. Zhang received a bachelor’'s degree in commercial finance
and accounting from Jiangxi Institute of Finance and Economics in
July 1984, a master's degree in accounting from Jiangxi Institute
of Finance and Economics in July 1990 and a doctorate degree in
accounting from Zhongnan University of Economics and Law (/g
B & BUAKE) in December 2001.

Ms. Zhang has been an expert entitled to special allowance granted
by the State Council since August 2005. She also obtained a
certificate of Star Teacher in Higher Education Institutions (“ =% %
REHEBZANHE") issued by the Ministry of Education of the People’s
Republic of China in September 2009. Ms. Zhang was accredited as
a professor by Jiangxi Title Reform Committee ((T7E& BiERE<E

/N H) in March 1999.
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Mr. Zhao Lin (##) is our Chief Executive Officer. See the
paragraph headed “Executive Directors” above for details of his
biography.

Ms. Peng Xin (8) is our General Manager. See the paragraph
headed "Executive Directors” above for details of her biography.

Mr. He Gang (filffll), aged 46, is our chief technology officer
and joined our Group in June 2020. Mr. He is responsible for the
digitalization strategy and overseeing management of information
technology of our Group.

Prior to joining our Group, Mr. He served as the chief technology
officer of Luckin Coffee Inc., a company previously listed on the
NASDAQ (NASDAQ Ticker: LK), from September 2019 to April
2020; and vice president of JD.com, Inc., a company listed on
the NASDAQ (NASDAQ Ticker: JD) and the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange (stock code: 9618), from April 2012 to July 2019.

Mr. He received a bachelor’'s degree in theoretical physics from
University of Science and Technology of China (FEIEHZKE) in
July 1996 and master degrees in computer sciences and physics
from University of Wisconsin-Madison in December 1998.

Mr. Deng Bin (B8#) is our chief operation officer See the
paragraph headed “Executive Directors” above for details of his
biography.

Ms. Chen Shengyu (FREE$E), aged 43, is our senior human
resources director and joined our Group in September 2017. Ms.
Chen is responsible for the management of human resources and
administrative matters.

Prior to joining our Group, Ms. Chen served as human resources
director of Guangzhou Jiumaojiu Restaurant Management Co., Ltd.
(BMNNENEREEGRAF]) from April 2014 to December 2016.
Ms. Chen served as a human resources supervisor of Guangdong
Sanyuan McDonald’s Food Co., Ltd. (ER=TEZLRMERE
f£Ad]) from June 2004 to August 2009 and a human resources
manager from August 2009 to April 2014.
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Ms. Chen received a diploma in economics from Guangdong
Ocean University (BE&EF K2, formerly known as Zhanjiang
Ocean University (B)1/8F K£)) in June 2000. Ms. Chen received
a bachelor’'s degree in human resources from South China Normal
University ((EFGEN#I R SE) through the completion of the adult
higher education program in January 2013.

Ms. Chen obtained the professional qualification of senior human
resources management specialist (B4 A NEREILAM) from the
Ministry of Human Resources and Social Security of the PRC in
March 2018.

Mr. Shen Hao (&), aged 33, is our co-chief financial officer,
general counsel and board secretary. Mr. Shen joined our Group
in July 2019 and is responsible for the capital market and legal
matters of our Group.

Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Shen worked at SZ DJI Technology
Co., Ltd. (R KBEIF B AR A F]) from June 2013 to June
2019, where he served as legal manager and head of legal
department from June 2013 to June 2016 and the head of legal
department and corporate development department from July
2016 to June 2019. Mr. Shen also served as a director of Victor
Hasselblad AB from November 2017 to May 2019 and a director of
Koenigsegg AB from May 2017 to May 2019.

Mr. Shen received a bachelor’'s degree in law from Shenzhen
University (FIIIKZ) in June 2010 and a master’s degree in
international economic law from The Chinese University of Hong
Kong in November 2012.

Mr. Liang Feiyan (R M%), aged 39, is our co-chief financial officer
and joined our Group in October 2019. Mr. Liang is responsible
for overseeing financial operations and capital management of our
Group.

Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Liang worked at Meten Education
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. (=Bt E ORI BR A R]) from October 2011
to August 2019, where he lastly served as co-financial officer.

Mr. Liang received a bachelor's degree in accounting from
Shandong Agricultural University (LU Z 2 KE2) in July 2006.

Annual Report 45§ 2021

PR Z - 7A2000F 6 A B E R G F KB (FIiEHE
TLEFERS )RS EESE R - R TH2013
F1ABBATHRANASSRERESERMAME
REMBANEBRELEBA o

FRZZ £72018F 3 H B R B A D E R &R
ERRESRANEREBMAEEER o

MER%E 335 ARMOERE R ME
B OABBEREFEMWE o RRER2019
FIAMALREE  BEAEBHNEATIS R
KRB -

IIAREBE R - BREER2013F6HZE2019
FoATEHRFEYI T RERAIFRIEERAR
MR2013F 6 A E2016F 6 A LA EIE KA
HEREE - M2016F7 A 2201956 A%
BHRECEBRRITEE o BAEEITR2017
F11 A Z= 201945 A #£ 1 Victor Hasselblad
ABHIEE N A2017F 58 2201945 A #E{T
Koenigsegg ABHJE = ©

HELER2010F6 A B ARIIARBRUSERS2 L
BRER2012F1MNABFTBEPTXKRENEH
BRACESEE T 24 -

PRIMEE - 3958 ° BRI E S FEIHE
B R2019F10AMALREER - BRHAEE
EBRAEBNMKELEREAERE -

MAREE 251 REENR201MFI08E
2019F8HERBREBBE (FI)ERA
A HERBUSBEEREVTE -

RAEEF2006F7 A BILE ZERNEMESET

ESE E3GT o

45



46 Nayuki Holdings Limited - ZZEHZITRER D7)

Ms. Shi Chao (%) was appointed as one of our joint company
secretaries on February 5, 2021. Ms. Shi joined our Group in
January 2019 and has served as the deputy director of corporate
finance and legal department. Ms. Shi worked at Baoneng
Department Store Limited (BREE EZTEHMR A 7)) from November
2017 to January 2019, where she lastly served as the senior legal
manager. Ms. Shi worked at Wal-Mart (China) Investment Co., Ltd.
CREIE (P B)IREBR AT from February 2014 to November 2017,
where she lastly served as the legal consultant.

Ms. Shi received a bachelor’s degree in law and economics from
Minzu University of China (FF R & AE2) in July 2007 and a master’s
degree in economic law from Minzu University of China in July 2012.
Ms. Shi also received a postgraduate diploma in international and
European law from Université Jean Moulin Lyon 3 in March 2012.
Ms. Shi passed the National Judicial Examination (B a)/£E )
in the PRC and obtained her legal professional qualification in
March 2010. Ms. Shi also received the Certification of Fund Practice
Qualification (EE&HEEKFEZE) from the Asset Management
Association of China (FEIFEHIREE S EHE) in July 2017.

Ms. Lau Jeanie (21 F), was appointed as a company secretary
of our Company on June 11, 2021. Ms. Lau is an Assistant Vice
President of Corporate Secretarial Department of SWCS Corporate
Services Group (Hong Kong) Limited. She is an associate member
of both The Chartered Governance Institute in England and The
Hong Kong Chartered Governance Institute. She has over 15 years
of experience in corporate secretarial practice. She has been
providing corporate services to companies overseas and in Hong
Kong. Ms. Lau had been a company secretary of various listed
companies on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange over the last
10 years.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

CHANGES IN INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS
AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, the changes in the
information of Directors and chief executives of the Company from
the Listing Date to the date of this annual report are set out below:

With effect from December 29, 2021, Mr. Shao Gang (AB#l)
resigned as a non-executive Director of the Company. Please refer
to the Company’s announcement dated December 29, 2021 for
details.

With effect from June 16, 2021, Mr. Pan Pan ceased to be a director
of TVZone Media Co., Ltd. (f EXEZBEHERMD AR Q).

Ms. Zhang Rui filed her resignation as an independent director of
Changhong Huayi Compressor Co., Ltd.(RU[ B EMEER N BRA
7)) on December 28, 2021.
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The Board is pleased to present this annual report together with
the audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
year ended December 31, 2021.

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on
September 5, 2019 as an exempted company with limited liability
under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands. The Company’s
Shares were listed on the Stock Exchange on June 30, 2021.

The Company is an investment holding company of the Group.
The Group operate Nayuki teahouses, a leading premium modern
teahouse chain in China serving freshly-made tea drinks.

The activities and particulars of the Group and an analysis of the
Group's revenue and operating profit for the year by principal
activities are set out under the section headed “Management
Discussion and Analysis” in this annual report and Note 4 to
the consolidated financial statements of this annual report. The
principal business activities of the subsidiaries of the Group are
set out in Note 13 to the consolidated financial statements of this

annual report.

A review of the Group’s business, major risks, use of net proceeds
from the Global Offering, uncertainties faced by the Group, and
the future development of the Group's business could be found in
the sections headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” and
"Corporate Governance Report” in this annual report. The review
and discussion form part of this directors’ report.

The consolidated results of the Group for the year ended
December 31, 2021 are set out on pages 100 to 240 of this annual
report.

The Board has resolved not to recommend the payment of any final
dividend for the year ended December 31, 2021.
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For determining the entitlement to attend and vote at the AGM,
the register of members of the Company will be closed from Friday,
June 17, 2022 to Wednesday, June 22, 2022 (both days inclusive)
during which period no transfer of shares will be registered. In
order to qualify for attending the AGM, all share certificates with
completed transfer forms must be lodged with the Company's
Hong Kong share registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor
Services Limited at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong not later than 4:30
p.m. on Thursday, June 16, 2022 for registration of share transfer.

Details of the movements in property and equipment of the
Group during the Reporting Period are set out in Note 11 to the
consolidated financial statements of this annual report.

The Group is highly aware of the importance of environment
protection and has not noted any material incompliance with all
relevant laws and regulations in relation to its business including
health and safety, workplace conditions, employment and
the environment. The Group has implemented environmental
protection measures and has also encouraged staff to be
environmental friendly at work by consuming the electricity
and paper according to actual needs, so as to reduce energy
consumption and minimize unnecessary waste. Further details
of the Group's environmental policies and performance will be
disclosed in the environmental, social and governance report of the
Company for the year ended December 31, 2021 to be published in
due course.

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during
the year ended December 31, 2021 are set out in Note 29 to the
consolidated financial statements of this annual report.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEEHE

RESERVES

Details of the movement in the reserves of the Group and of the
Company during the year ended December 31, 2021 are set out
in Note 29 to the consolidated financial statements of this annual
report.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As of December 31, 2021, the aggregate amount of distributable
reserves of the Company, calculated in accordance with the
Companies Law, amounted to RMB5,287,226,000 (as of December
31, 2020: Nil).

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities since the Listing
Date and up to December 31, 2021.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles
of Association, or the laws of Cayman Islands, which would oblige
the Company to offer new Shares on a pro-rata basis to its existing
Shareholders.

DIRECTORS

The Directors for the Reporting Period and up to the date of this
annual report were:

Executive Directors
Mr. Zhao Lin (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)

Ms. Peng Xin
Mr. Deng Bin

Non-executive Directors
Mr. Pan Pan

Mr. Wong Tak-wai
Mr. Shao Gang (resigned on December 29, 2021)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Chen Qunsheng (appointed on June 18, 2021)

Mr. Liu Yiwei (appointed on June 18, 2021)
Ms. Zhang Rui (appointed on June 18, 2021)
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF THE DIRECTORS
AND THE SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior management
of the Group as of the date of this annual report are set out under
the section headed "Biographical details of Directors and Senior
Management” of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS AND
LETTERS OF APPOINTMENT

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service
agreement with our Company with an initial term of three years
with effect from the date of the appointment, and will continue
thereafter until terminated by not less than three months’ notice
in writing served by either party on the other (subject always to re-
election as and when required under the Articles of Association).

Each of our non-executive Directors and independent non-
executive Directors has entered into a service contract/letter
of appointment with our Company. Each of our non-executive
Directors and independent non-executive Directors is appointed
with an initial term of three years commencing from the date
of the appointment (i.e., the date of the Prospectus) subject to
termination in certain circumstances as stipulated in the relevant
services contracts/letters of appointment. Under these service
contracts/ letters of appointment, each of the independent non-
executive Directors will receive a Director’s annual remuneration of
HK$120,000.

Save as aforesaid, none of our Directors has or is proposed to have
a service contract with our Company or any members of our Group
(other than statutory compensation).

DIRECTOR’'S INTEREST IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENT OR CONTRACT OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No Director or any entity connected with them had a material
interest, either directly or indirectly, in any transaction,
arrangement or contract of significance to the business of the
Company to which the Company, or any of its subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries was a party since the Listing Date and up to December
31, 2021.
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The Directors and senior management receive compensation from
the Group in the form of fees, salaries, bonuses, contributions to
pension schemes, allowances and benefits in kind. The emoluments
of the Directors and senior management of the Group are decided
by the Board with reference to the recommendation given by the
Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Group’s operating
results, individual performance and comparable market statistics.

Details of the Directors’ emoluments and emoluments of the five
highest paid individuals in the Group are set out in Note 8 and
Note 9 to the consolidated financial statements of this annual
report.

The total remuneration of the five highest paid individuals paid/
payable for the year ended December 31, 2021 (including all
executive Directors) by bands is as follows:

Brand il

HKD2,500,001 to HKD3,000,000
HKD3,000,001 to HKD3,500,000
HKD6,000,001 to HKD6,500,000
HKD6,500,001 to HKD7,000,000

For the year ended December 31, 2021, no emoluments were
paid by the Group to any Director or any of the five highest paid
individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group
or as compensation for loss of office. None of the Directors has
waived any emoluments for the year ended December 31, 2021.

752,500,001 70 2 78 #3,000,0007T
783,000,001 7T 2 ¥4 3,500,0007T
786,000,001 7T 2 &5 6,500,0007T
756,500,001 7T £ %% 7,000,0007T
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Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations of the PRC, the
Group participates in a defined contribution basic pension
insurance in the social insurance system established and managed
by government organizations. The Group makes contributions to
basic pension insurance plans based on the applicable benchmarks
and rates stipulated by the government. The local government
authorities are responsible for the pension obligations payable
to the retired employees covered under the defined contribution
basic pension insurance. There are no forfeited contributions
for the defined contribution basic pension insurance in the PRC
social insurance system as the contributions are fully vested to the
employees upon payment to the scheme.

The Group also operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for employees employed under the jurisdiction of the
Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. Contributions to the plan
vest immediately. There are no forfeited contributions for the the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes as the contributions are fully
vested to the employees upon payment to the scheme.

Save as disclosed in this annual report, no other payments have
been made or are payable, during the Reporting Period, by our
Group to or on behalf of any of the Directors.

During the Reporting Period and as of the date of this annual
report, Mr. Pan Pan (&%) is a director of Hunan Chayue Cultural
Industry Development Group Co., Ltd. (R R XL EXEREE
HBRAA]) (“Chayue”), a tea drinks provider in China. We are of the
view that the business of Chayue competes or is likely to compete,
either directly or indirectly, with our business.

As of the date of this annual report, Chayue is held as to
approximately 14.54% by Tiantu Dongfeng. As confirmed by Tiantu
Dongfeng, Mr. Pan represents Tiantu Dongfeng, which is entitled
to appoint a director to the board of Chayue due to its investment
in the company, on the board of Chayue. Mr. Pan’s role in Chayue
is non-executive in nature and he has not assumed any day-to-day
management responsibilities since the commencement of his term
of directorship at Chayue. Furthermore, Mr. Pan represents Tiantu
Entities on our Board and his role is also non-executive in nature.
He has not participated in our Group’s day-to-day management
since joining our Group.
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Furthermore, Chayue is a tea drinks provider operating mainly
in Changsha, Hunan Province, while our Group has an extensive
network of teahouses across China. In addition to geographical
coverage, the price ranges, store locations and product offerings of
our flagship premium modern teahouse brand Nayuki and Chayue
are different. We provide a wide variety of products including
handcrafted baked goods and other lifestyle products, while
Chayue's products are generally limited to tea products. As such,
our Directors are of the view that the competing interest disclosed
above is unlikely to give rise to any material conflict of interest.

Save as disclosed above, during the Reporting Period, none of the
Directors or their respective close associates (as defined in the
Listing Rules) had any interest in a business that competed or was
likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business of
the Group, other than being a director of the Company and/or its
subsidiaries under Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules.

Since the Listing Date and up to December 31, 2021, save as
disclosed in this annual report, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries had any contract of significance with the Controlling
Shareholders or their respective subsidiaries, nor any contract
of significance for the provision of services to the Company or
any of its subsidiaries by a Controlling Shareholder or any of its
subsidiaries (as defined in Appendix 16 to the Hong Kong Listing
Rules).

As at December 31, 2021, to the best knowledge of the Company,
none of the controlling shareholders pledged their shares pursuant
to Rule 13.21 of the Listing Rules.

Our Group has entered into several connected transaction
agreements with certain connected persons of our Group as
described in the paragraphs below.
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Non-exempted Continuing Connected Transactions

Continuing
connected
transactions

RERERS

Parties

HEW

Term of
agreement Contents of transaction

iESEE RENE
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEEHE

FREFTEEERS

Pricing policies

EEHR

Packaging Materials
Sales Framework
Agreement

BRMHHEER

i

Our Company
and Zundao"

ARAREED

The term shall Our Company agreed to purchase
commencing tea cups and certain packaging
the Listing materials for our tea drinks
Date to (the "Packaging Materials") from
December 31, Zundao.

2023

ARERLTRE ALAFEREERER IR
REE0BF  ETREME(EEMH])-
12A3181

The assessment and selection of packaging materials suppliers
and the exact sales prices of the Packaging Materials under
any definitive individual sales contract shall be determined
taking into account a variety of factors on a case by case basis
with reference to the types, quality and specifications of the
Packaging Materials to be purchased. The Group only enter
into individual sales contracts with Zundao when purchase
prices are in line with the prevailing market prices and not less
favorable to us than what we are able to receive from other
comparable independent suppliers.

Negotiations between the parties of the Packaging Materials
Sales Framework Agreement are conducted on an arm’s
length basis, taking into account factors including, but are
not limited to, comparison of quotations from Zundao and
those submitted by no less than two packaging material
suppliers who are Independent Third Parties, prevailing
market prices of open-market packaging raw materials,
quality of products, processing skills to meet our customized
specifications, capacity to meet our increasing demand of the
Packaging Materials, length of settlement period provided,
the logistics capacity of suppliers to deliver products to our
teahouses located around the country and prior cooperation
relationship.

BEMHEERNTERERIREASSEERHESNNREN
HOBDHEER RETARBRZRSBRRULA22EH
RENREMHNELY  EERRRKET - ARBENKE
ERERAHE-REHAMAMEPEN PRI E AL
BUMREESHERE TeREETUEBHEAN -

BEMHBEERGRS TROTRBETER  YZRTUTR
Z(BRETRR) : BENFERTORMABRIHHES
(REUE=7)RIBENLR  BRRIHRARTENE
1Bk EmEE - BRAMTHRBOMTREE  RRAN
HREMBRRERNTLNE  RENERHRER
EERERERIBMIN2ANRRESDRENRBLES
{ERR(A -
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Continuing
connected Term of
transactions Parties agreement
HERERS HEL L
Delivery Platform Our Company The term shall
Management and Fucheng? ~ commencing
and Consultation from the
Service Agreement Listing Date to
December 31,
2023
HETRERR ARARERY  AHERETHAS
Ak s R E03E
12A3181E
Notes:

M

Contents of transaction
RERR

Fucheng will provide management

and consultation services (the
"Delivery Platform Consultation
Services") to our Group, including,
among other things, (i) advising

on the management of our
merchant accounts on third-party
delivery platforms, (i) advising on
the integration of our operating
systems and such third-party
delivery platforms, (iii) advising on
the operation of online deliveries of
our products through our Weixin/
WeChat and Alipay mini program
(/M&F), and (iv) compiling and
analyzing the relevant order
reports.

BRMAASERREE kiR

([SEFaRARE]) - £ BE()
HERAMEE=NNETALHE
FERFRLER  (\HEARMANE
FEREZSENNETRRLE
# (iR MARANERINEN

BFELAMERNERIN ERLE
& RVBRAND TR SRS -

Zundao is held as to (i) 50% by Shenzhen Xinlin Cultural Communication Co.,
Ltd. ORIIT LML EEBREE AT, which is held as to 50% by Mr. Zhao

and 50% by Ms. Peng, each of whom is our executive Director and Controlling

Shareholder, respectively.

Fucheng is held as to 51% by Mr. Peng Zhen Yu (Z#&k=F), who is the brother of
Ms. Peng (our executive Director and Controlling Shareholder) and an executive
director of two of our Company’s subsidiaries, namely Shenzhen Pindao Food
Co., Ltd. (R B R BB AR]) and Xiamen Naixue Catering Management

Co., Ltd. (EPFITREERERERAR).

Pricing policies

EEHR

Service fees to be charged shall be determined based on

a percentage of the revenue generated through third-

party delivery platforms and a percentage of the revenue
generated from the Company's Weixin/WeChat and Alipay
mini program facilitated and managed by Fucheng. The
abovementioned percentage is negotiated by the parties
after arm's length negotiations with reference to (i) the
nature, complexity and value of the Delivery Platform
Consultation Services to be provided, and (ii) the prevailing
market rate in respect of similar services and such percentage
is in line with the industry standard.

ERBMBHERRERESE =TI EY aELHUENB DA

ERGHNEBOAAAMERINE EFELNREN T
PHER - LA L BEN 2 (RN ET AR
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Transaction caps and actual transaction amounts for
the Reporting Period

Actual transaction amounts and transaction caps of the above-
mentioned non-exempt continuing connected transactions for the
Reporting Period are as follows:
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HERRNRH LR F TR

HEHE LAR R EREXINERR
ZEBNR5 ERMT

For the year ended
December 31, 2021
BZ2021F12A318LEE

Actual
Proposed transaction
annual caps amounts
BEXZLR BREXZEH
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR AR®TR
Packaging Materials Sales Framework BEMEHEER =
Agreement 80,000 63,461
Delivery Platform Management and HNETABRRBARG =
Consultation Service Agreement 9,300 8,392

The Company has followed the pricing policies as disclosed in
the Prospectus and this annual report in respect of the above
continuing connected transactions for the year ended December
31, 2021.

For the year ended December 31, 2021, the independent non-
executive Directors have reviewed the aforesaid non-exempt
continuing connected transactions and confirmed that the
transactions have been entered into:

(i) inthe ordinary and usual course of business of the Company;
(i)  on normal commercial terms or better; and

(iii) in accordance with relevant agreements governing them on
terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interest of the
Company and Shareholders as a whole.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group's
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s
Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong
Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants.

The Company’s auditor has reviewed the continuing connected
transactions referred to above and confirmed to the Board that
nothing has come to their attention that causes them to believe
the continuing connected transactions: (i) have not been approved
by the Board; (ii) were not entered into, in all material respects,
in accordance with the relevant agreements governing the
transactions; and (iii) have exceeded the annual cap as set by the
Company.
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Details of the related party transactions carried out in the normal
course of business are set out in Note 32 to the consolidated
financial statements of this annual report. Save as disclosed in the
paragraph headed “Connected Transactions” above, none of these
related party transactions constitutes a connected transaction or
continuing connected transaction as defined under the Listing
Rules, and the Company has complied with the disclosure
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules and disclosed
in this annual report.

Other than the Directors’ service contracts and appointment
letters, no contract concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the business
of the Group was entered into or in existence as of the end of the
year or at any time during the Reporting Period.

No equity-linked agreements will or may result in the Company
issuing Shares or that require the Company to enter into any
agreements that will or may result in the Company issuing Shares,
were entered into by the Company since the Listing Date and up to
December 31, 2021 or subsisted at the end of 2021.

During the Reporting Period, we positively assume our social
responsibilities. We donated RMB3.2 million for the flood control
and rescue actions in Henan Province and donated supplies of
around RMB10 million in total value for the national preventive
efforts against COVID-19 as well as the flood control and rescue
actions in Henan Province.

The Group was not involved in any material legal proceeding
during the Reporting Period.

During the Reporting Period, the Group had not made any loan
or provided any guarantee for loan, directly or indirectly, to the
Directors, senior management of the Company, the Controlling
Shareholders or their respective connected persons.

EHEXBEARTETOEB IR ZNFS
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Save as disclosed in the section headed “Biographical details of
directors and senior management” and “Corporate governance
report”, Directors are not related to one another with respect to
finance, business and family, or other material relations.

As of December 31, 2021, the interests or short positions of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company in the Shares,
underlying Shares and debentures of the Company or any
associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO),
which (a) were required to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests and short positions which he/she was taken
or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO); or (b) were
required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be recorded in the
register referred to therein; or (c) were required to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code,
were as follows:

Name of Director Capacity/Nature of Interest

Annual Report 45§ 2021

RIEERSREEENBE IRIEXERR
TIMRE I MK - FHERFESEM
EXBEIE  EEHLEBRE -

HZE2021F12A318 » KRR BEZERZEET
BABRARRREEMBEEEZE(TERE
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NIEEWEEXRBEANESRAR) » 5k
(0)IR IR 78 5 K B E R ) 55 352K B e 8k N 7%
RETIEMEEMANER RKXE  F()RIE
1A BB A S AN R R) N B A BT A 25 504
BT

Approximate
percentage of the
Company'’s issued

share capital

Number of
Shares interested
in the Company""
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REQARFEEEZN EXAFSBITRA
EERE B,/ EEHY BEEM BAES
Mr. Zhao Lin @@ Beneficial interest; interest in controlled 1,098,570,966 64.05%
corporation; interest of spouse
RS E @ Enln  NXEABEER  REEs
Ms. Peng Xin @3 Beneficial interest; interest in controlled 1,098,570,966 64.05%
corporation; interest of spouse; executor
or administrator
Zih e EalEn  RXEEE 2  iEER
HITAREREA
Mr. Deng Bin © Beneficial interest 1,526,300 0.09%
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Notes:

m
@

All interests stated are long positions.

Linxin Group, a company incorporated in the BVl on December 29, 2020, is a
holding company wholly owned by Linxin International, a holding company
incorporated in the BVI, which is in turn wholly owned by Linxin Trust. Linxin Trust
is an irrevocable discretionary trust established in Guernsey on December 30,
2020, the beneficiary of which is Linxin Holdings, a holding company ultimately
controlled as to 50% by each of Mr. Zhao Lin and Ms. Peng Xin, respectively. The
voting rights of the Shares held by Linxin Group are exercised by Mr. Zhao Lin
and Ms. Peng Xin, a married couple. Accordingly, each of Mr. Zhao Lin and Ms.
Peng Xin is deemed to be interested in the total number of Shares held by Linxin
Group.

Ms. Peng Xin is the spouse of Mr. Zhao Lin and is therefore deemed to be
interested in the Shares held by Mr. Zhao Lin. Moreover, each of Mr. Zhao Lin
and Ms. Peng Xin has been granted Options with respect to 220,781 outstanding
Shares under the 2020 Share Option Plan. As of December 31, 2021, these Shares
were held by Forth Wisdom Limited (see note (3) below).

Forth Wisdom Limited, a company incorporated in BVI, is our Company'’s offshore
employee incentive platform for the Equity Incentive Plans. Forth Wisdom
Limited is wholly owned by Zedra Holdings (Cayman) Limited, an independent
third party who serves as trustee. As of December 31, 2021, the voting rights of
the Shares held by Forth Wisdom Limited were exercised jointly by Mr. Zhao Lin
and Ms. Peng Xin.

Pursuant to the terms of the 2020 Share Option Plan, such plan is subject to the
administration of a duly authorized committee of the Board and the trustee. As
of December 31, 2021, such committee was consisted of Mr. Zhao Lin and Ms.
Peng Xin. Furthermore, as of December 31, 2021, Mr. Zhao Lin and Ms. Peng Xin
were authorized to give instructions to the trustee of the Forth Wisdom Trust and,
effectively, control the voting rights of the Shares held by Forth Wisdom Limited.

Crystal Tide Profits Limited, a company incorporated under the Laws of the British
Virgin Islands, is a platform holding Shares for future benefit to employees,
advisors and consultants as the Board deems fit. As of December 31, 2021, Crystal
Tide Profits Limited was wholly-owned by Trident Trust Company (HK) Limited,
an independent third party who serves as trustee. The voting rights of the Shares
held by Crystal Tide Profits Limited were exercised by Ms. Peng Xin.

Mr. Deng Bin has been granted options with respect to 1,526,300 outstanding
Shares under the 2020 Share Option Plan. As of December 31, 2021, these Shares
were held by Forth Wisdom Limited (see note (3) above).

Save as disclosed above and to the best knowledge of the

Directors, as of December 31, 2021, none of the Directors or the

chief executive of the Company has any interests and/or short

positions in the Shares, underlying shares or debentures of the

Company or its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the SFO) which were required to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV

of the SFO (including interests and short positions which they are

taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO) or

which were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be

entered in the register referred to therein or which were required,

pursuant to the Model Code, to be notified to the Company and

the Stock Exchange.
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As of December 31, 2021 so far as is known to any Director or chief
executive of the Company, as recorded in the register of interest
required to be kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO,
the following persons, other than Directors or chief executive of the
Company, had an interest of 5% or more in the Shares or underlying

Shares:
Name of Shareholder Capacity/Nature of Interest
REREM 5%,/ #ntE
Linxin Group Beneficial interest
EiEs
Linxin International ™ Interest in controlled corporation
RREEE 2 2
Cantrust (Far East) Limited @ Trustee
RFEA
Linxin Holdings Beneficiary of a trust
RO EREXEA
Forth Wisdom Limited @ Beneficial interest
BaEs

Zedra Holdings (Cayman) Limited @ Trustee
RFEA

Shenzhen Tiantu Capital Interest in controlled corporation
Management Center
(Limited Partnership)
(“Shenzhen Tiantu Capital”) ©®

RAYIRBEAERTL(ARAEE) RIEEz#ER
(MRINREEA])®
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Approximate
Number of  percentage of the
Shares interested  Company'’s issued

in the Company share capital
RERRBEEEEN EEDRAEBRITRE
RHEE BAED
977,344,414 56.98%
977,344,414 56.98%
977,344,414 56.98%
977,344,414 56.98%
91,731,408 5.35%
91,731,408 5.35%
190,184,497 11.09%
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Name of Shareholder

BRAMH

Tian Tu Capital Co., Ltd.
(NEEQ stock code: 833979) @
FYTMAEREERRNOBRAR
(= IRFEHE : 833979) ©

Mr. Wang Yong Hua @

FoxgEkrte

PAGAC Nebula Holdings Limited ©

PAG Asia lll LP ®

PAG Asia Capital GP Il Limited ©

PAG Capital Limited ®

Mr. Shan Weijian ©

BREEL0

Pacific Alliance Group Limited ©

PAG Holdings Limited ®
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Capacity/Nature of Interest

5/ REtE

Interest in controlled corporation

REAE 2 e

Interest in controlled corporation
REER 2 5

Beneficial interest

= Sl g s
EnEn

m

Interest in controlled corporation
REER 2

Interest in controlled corporation
REPEE 2 s

Interest in controlled corporation
REER 2

Interest in controlled corporation
REPEE 2 s

Interest in controlled corporation
RERER 2 e

Interest in controlled corporation
REPEE 2 s

Number of

Shares interested
in the Company
RAEQAREBERD
gy 4=

190,184,497

190,184,497

90,622,345

90,622,345

90,622,345

90,622,345

90,622,345

90,622,345

90,622,345

Approximate
percentage of the
Company'’s issued

share capital

HADRERITRAE
BABDH

11.09%

11.09%

5.28%

5.28%

5.28%

5.28%

5.28%

5.28%

5.28%



Notes:

M

Linxin Group, a company incorporated in the BVl on December 29, 2020, is a
holding company wholly-owned by Linxin International, a holding company
incorporated in the BVI, which is in turn wholly-owned by Linxin Trust. Linxin
Trust is an irrevocable discretionary trust established in Guernsey on December
30, 2020, the trustee of which is Cantrust (Far East) Limited, an independent
third party, and the beneficiary of which is Linxin Holdings, a holding company
ultimately controlled as to 50% by each of Mr. Zhao Lin and Ms. Peng Xin,
respectively. The voting rights in the Company held by Linxin Group are
exercised by Mr. Zhao Lin and Ms. Peng Xin, a married couple.

Forth Wisdom Limited, a company incorporated in BVI, is our Company'’s offshore
employee incentive platform for the Equity Incentive Plans. Forth Wisdom
Limited is wholly owned by Zedra Holdings (Cayman) Limited, an independent
third party who serves as trustee. As of December 31, 2021, the voting rights of
the Shares held by Forth Wisdom Limited were exercised jointly by Mr. Zhao Lin
and Ms. Peng Xin.

Tiantu Xingli, a limited partnership directly holding 66,670,287 Shares of our
Company, is directly owned as to 85.71% by Beijing Tiantu. Shenzhen Tiantu
Capital is the general partner of Tiantu Xingli. Accordingly, Beijing Tiantu and
Shenzhen Tiantu Capital are each deemed to have an interest in all of the Shares
held by Tiantu Xingli.

Chengdu Tiantu, a limited partnership directly holding 57,060,462 Shares of our
Company, is directly owned as to 46.67% by Shantou Dongfeng Printing Co., Ltd.
CILERRENRIAL D BBR A A]) (the Shanghai Stock Exchange stock code: 601515),
26.67% by Chengdu Tianfu Innovation Equity Investment Fund Centre (Limited
Partnership) (&SR ITEIFT IR ER EE S H O (BRER)), 10.00% by Shenzhen
Yaoyin Information Advisory Partnership Enterprise (General Partnership) (&3l
RREEEFBAEGREE(EBER)), 5.00% by Mr. Yuan Jin Hua (R#8%), 5.00% by
Shenzhen Tiantu Capital, 3.33% by Shenzhen Iread Foundation (FJITEH Az
E %), and 3.33% by Shantou Dongfeng Consumer Goods Industry Co., Ltd.
CLBERIEE B MEZBMAR]). Shenzhen Tiantu Capital is the general partner
of Chengdu Tiantu. Accordingly, Shenzhen Tiantu Capital is deemed to have an
interest in all of the Shares held by Chengdu Tiantu.

Tiantu Xingpeng, a limited partnership directly holding 33,227,189 Shares of
our Company, is directly owned as to 20.00% by Shenzhen Government Guiding
Fund-of-funds Co., Ltd. (&I T 3| B E £ & B B R A A), 18.05% by Shenzhen
Tiantu Xing An Investment Fund (Limited Partnership) (& 3l X [B 8 &2 4% & 1b 2
(BRA%)), 10.53% by China Merchants Securities Asset Management Co., Ltd.
(BEEHEEEEABMRAF), 10.00% by Shenzhen Fu Tian Government Guiding
Fund-of-funds Co., Ltd. (RIITEHSIEE SR EBRAR]), 7.89% by Greatwall
Life Insurance Co., Ltd. (R AFRBRIZDBIRA A, 7.52% by ICBC (Shenzhen)
Equity Investment Fund Partnership Enterprise (Limited Partnership) (T & ()%
INREREESEBLE(ERER)), 7.52% by Xing Ye Wealth and Asset
Management Co., Ltd. (28 Z & EEEHMR A Al), 4.51% by Qianhai Equity
Investment Fund (Limited Partnership) (AT/8IREIREE S (AREE)), 3.95% by
Wuxi Construction Finance Industry Co., Ltd. (M EMEXFRAR]), 2.63%
by Shenzhen Tiantu Xingfu Equity Investment Management Co., Ltd. (“Tiantu
Xingfu") ORIIK B EIEIRIEREEIL G M A 7)), 2.63% by Shenzhen Kun Peng
Equity Investment Co., Ltd. (7 JI| 77 8 i A # #% & B R A 7]), 2.50% by Bosera
Capital Management Co., Ltd. (EREAREE AR A R]) and 2.27% by Southern
Capital Management Co., Ltd. (B85 E A B E B R A al). Tiantu Xingfu, which
is wholly-owned by Shenzhen Tiantu Capital, is the general partner of Tiantu
Xingpeng. Accordingly, Shenzhen Tiantu Capital and Tiantu Xingfu are deemed
to have an interest in all of the Shares held by Tiantu Xingpeng.
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—RERDAF - ABEMEERE LR TS BI&KE
#50% © Linxin GroupFT#EANA AR M B RS 4
ME LT EREITE -

Forth Wisdom Limited * B~ RARBHER 2 H S
HMKRZMAR - AEARRREZE S &EIME
B8 EF & ° Forth Wisdom Limited ¥ 55 =
Zedra Holdings (Cayman) Limited (&£ 25 A)
2EHHR - BLE 20214128318 * Forth Wisdom
LimitediF BMRMOIRERHEMEERZ O LT H
BT -

KEFS, - —REEFBARAF66,670,287 %Ik H)
EREELE  BILRREEEEESS71% R
RKEEAAREHEIOLEBERZA - Bt - ERK
BRFIKEEARESARKR AR KEEYFH AT
BRDPHESES -

ERERE - —REEFEARDF57,060,462 % 8% 159
MNARGRLE  BWERRDRBIRMERA R
(LBEBEHXZHABRERT : 601515) ~ KEBRFTA]
TREREESPL(EREE)  RIBRARELSHE
HEBLE(ERER)  RBELRL  RIXKEE
RN RIMEFHAHESERNBERE EEREE
BRAFDPIEEEFAL6.67% ~ 26.67% ~ 10.00%
5.00% * 5.00% -~ 3.33%[%3.33% ° FRYIKEE R AK
HAENLEBEEA - Bt - FINKEERHE A
REER B E ARG P AR -

RE L - —RERFE AR 33,227,189 B 5
MERABLE mARIMIIEESKRERRA
A RIRERZRECE(BRER)  BEES
BEEBRERAR  FITRESIEESKREAR
AE - REASRRBROARAR - TRORYD K
RRERSABLE(ARAY) HEEUEEETE
BERRAR  AIEREREES(ERER) - B
MEBEXARDA R REREREREEE
ARAR([REER])  FRYITRERERES
BAR BEHEAAEEARARLEHEANERE
R &5 Bl & # # 5 20.00% - 18.05% ~ 10.53% -
10.00% ~ 7.89% * 7.52% ~ 7.52% ~ 4.51% * 3.95% *
2.63% ~ 2.63% * 2.50% % 2.27% ° X [E #1E BRI
REEAZ2ERR  AREEBHEBEBA °
it - ARINK B E A B K 8] AR 1 AR A3 170 K (B B8 BB <5
BHFARM P AR
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Tiantu Xingnan, a limited partnership directly holding 19,936,188 Shares of our
Company, is directly owned as to 39.50% by Shenzhen Tiantu Xing An Investment
Fund (Limited Partnership) (FII| KB EZEH AP E(BREE)), 25.00% by Hubei
Chu Si Fang Da Investment Co., Ltd. (#idb 4 B 7 #F & & AR 2 Al), 25.00% by
Shenzhen Government Guiding Fund-of-funds Co., Ltd. (ZIIT S| EE R ER
fR A7), 10.00% by CMB Cigna Life Insurance Co., Ltd. (FBEE#EAFREERA
A]) and 0.50% by Shenzhen Tiantu Capital. Shenzhen Tiantu Capital is the general
partner of Tiantu Xingnan. Accordingly, Shenzhen Tiantu Capital is deemed to
have an interest in all of the Shares held by Tiantu Xingnan.

Tiantu Dongfeng, a limited partnership directly holding 13,290,371 Shares of
our Company, is directly owned as to 41.67% by Shenzhen Tiantu Dongfeng
Investment Advisory Centre (Limited Partnership) (FIIIKE R £ &A@+ 0 (8
RE%)), 29.17% by Shenzhen Government Guiding Fund-of-funds Co., Ltd. (%
YT BESLEFRAF), 16.67% by CICC Qi Yuan National Rising Industry
Entrepreneurship Investment Guiding Fund (Limited Partnership) (f&RTE X
FEEXAEREAS|EES (ARER)), 11.67% by Shenzhen Qian Hai Industry
Guiding Equity Investment Fund Co., Ltd. (FYITAEEXS|IEREREESE
fR A7) and 0.83% by Shenzhen Tiantu Capital. Shenzhen Tiantu Capital is the
general partner of Tiantu Dongfeng. Accordingly, Shenzhen Tiantu Capital is
deemed to have an interest in all of the Shares held by Tiantu Dongfeng.

Shenzhen Tiantu Capital is wholly-owned by Tian Tu Capital Co., Ltd. (“Tian Tu
Capital”; NEEQ stock code: 833979). Accordingly, Tian Tu Capital is deemed to
be interested in the Shares held by each of Tiantu Xingli, Chengdu Tiantu, Tiantu
Xingpeng, Tiantu Xingnan and Tiantu Dongfeng under the SFO. As such, Tian Tu
Capital Co., Ltd. and Shenzhen Tiantu Capital are each deemed to be interested
in an aggregate of 190,184,497 Shares of our Company.

Mr. Wang Yong Hua directly holds 209,748,220 ordinary shares of Tian Tu Capital,
representing approximately 40.35% of the total number of issued shares of Tian
Tu Capital. Moreover, he is the general partner of Shenzhen Tian Tu Xing He
Investment Enterprise (Limited Partnership) (AYIXE ML ERZE(BRER))
and Shenzhen Tian Tu Xing Zhi Investment Enterprise (Limited Partnership) (&
JIREHEEHRERE(BRER)), each of which directly holds 8,750,000 ordinary
shares of Tian Tu Capital, representing approximately 1.68% of the total number
of issued shares of Tian Tu Capital. Hence, Mr. Wang Yong Hua is entitled to
exercise or control the exercise of approximately 43.71% of the voting power at
general meetings of Tian Tu Capital. Ms. Li Wen (¥3X) is the spouse of Mr. Wang
Yong Hua.

PAGAC Nebula Holdings Limited directly holds 90,622,345 Shares of our
Company. The entire share capital of PAGAC Nebula Holdings Limited is owned
by PAG Asia Ill LP; PAG Asia Il LP is managed by by PAG Asia Capital GP Il
Limited, the entire share capital of which is wholly owned by PAG Capital Limited.
PAG Capital Limited is owned as to 45% by Mr. Shan Weijian, and 55% by Pacific
Alliance Group Limited. Pacific Alliance Group Limited is owned by PAG Holdings
Limited as to 99.17%. Accordingly, PAG Asia Ill LP, PAG Asia Capital GP Il
Limited, PAG Capital Limited, Mr. Shan Weijian, Pacific Alliance Group Limited
and PAG Holdings Limited are deemed to be interested in the total number of
Shares held by PAGAC Nebula Holdings Limited.

Save as disclosed above and to the best knowledge of the

Directors, as of December 31, 2021, no person (other than the

Directors or chief executives of the Company) had registered an

interest or a short position in the Shares or underlying Shares of the

Company as recorded in the register of interest required to be kept
by the Company under section 336 of the SFO.

XEER @ —REBEFBARAT9,936,1888& M%7
WERAELE  BFRIKEELRECE (AR
%) - HABRHEREGRART - RYIWmE
ESeREARAAT - BAGHEASRRARAQRA
RARNKEEERS B EBE#EAF39.50% * 25.00% *
25.00% ~ 10.00% %0.50% ° F#IK B & 7 X B #
FRLBEEEA - Bl - FIKBEEARWEABRK
BB R ATA IR P A RS

KEFRE  —REEFBAREF 3,290,371 kKR MDH
BRABLYE  BRYXEREREZNPOL(ER
A8 RYMS|IEESREFRAA - PE&RTH
RITBEXAERESIBEES (BRER)  FIIm
ABEXSIEREREESERARRRYIKXEE
RO REEHEEL 67%  29.17% ~ 16.67% ~ 11.67%
}0.83% - FIKEEXAABRABRENEBEBEA -
At FINKEEAWRARKEREFENRAE
A&7 R A RS o

FINKEEARBRYTAEREEERNHBRRA
(TREHRE]: FT=IRFHFNE  833979) 2 EH
Ao At REEHFRERE - REREWHES
KRB EY - AK#KRE - XEHRE  KE®ERX
BRESAFENROPERER - At - FIW
REREEERNARARRENREELRE B
BARAREA ££190,184,497 B A% 15 HE A #E2S o

FoKE L £ BB A KE R E 209,748,220 A% & i
B% - BERKEREDETIRNBERH40.35% °
o - HAERYKBEMBECE(EREE) KRR
JXBEHEERECE(EREBR)NEBEEA £
MMRE ¥ EESBEERFHA KERES8,750,000
REBR  HERRKERESEITRMAEND
1.68% ° Bt - FREXERKBERENBREAES L
BREITERIEGIITEOA3T1BIRERE - XL A
FoRE L ERMBAS ©
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Asia lll LP 8 PAG Asia Capital GP Ill Limited &
I8 - M PAG Asia Capital GP Il Limited ) & ¥ i%
N PAG Capital Limited® & # A& ° PAG Capital
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We have adopted the Equity Incentive Plans, including the 2020
Share Option Plan and the 2020 Share Incentive Plan, by resolutions
in writing by the Board on May 15, 2020. Unless otherwise duly
approved by the Board, the total number of Shares underlying
the Equity Incentive Plans shall not exceed 126,262,308 Shares,
representing approximately 7.36% of total number of issued Shares
of our Company as of December 31, 2021.

2020 Share Option Plan

The 2020 Share Option Plan was adopted to recognize and reward
the selected participants for their contribution to our Group, to
attract suitable personnel and to provide incentives to them to
remain with and further contribute to our Group. Our Board, or
a duly authorized committee of the Board, may grant awards of
Options to subscribe for Shares to those core personnel (other
than those in the IT division of our Group) that it determines to be
eligible participants at its sole discretion.

As of December 31, 2021, other than 5,035,756 Shares issued to
Evermore Glory Limited upon the exercise of the option by Mr. He
Gang, 91,731,408 Shares underlying the 2020 Share Option Plan
have been allotted and issued to Forth Wisdom Limited, which is
wholly held by Zedra Holdings (Cayman) Limited, an independent
third party who serves as trustee. If all the outstanding Options
granted under the 2020 Share Option Plan are exercised, there will
not be any dilution effect on the shareholdings of our Shareholders
nor any impact on the earnings per Share arising from the exercise
of the outstanding Options since all the Shares underlying the 2020
Share Option Plan are held by Zedra Holdings (Cayman) Limited, an
independent third party who serves as trustee.

As of December 31, 2021, Options granted to subscribe for
27,318,682 Shares were outstanding, representing approximately
1.59% of the total issued Shares of our Company. The 2020 Share
Option Plan will be valid and effective for a period of ten years,
commencing from May 15, 2020, unless terminated early by the
Board. As of December 31, 2021, the remaining life of the 2020
Share Option Plan was approximately eight years and four months.
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REBEEM S NEARELETE - 2152020
FREARRERT B M 2020F AR {7 BNt & © BRIE
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Pursuant to the terms of the 2020 Share Option Plan, such plan is
subject to the administration of a duly authorized committee of the
Board and the trustee. As of December 31, 2021, such committee
was consisted of Mr. Zhao Lin and Ms. Peng Xin. Furthermore, as of
December 31, 2021, Mr. Zhao Lin and Ms. Peng Xin were authorized
to give instructions to the trustee of the Forth Wisdom Trust and,
effectively, control the voting rights of the Shares held by Forth
Wisdom Limited.

As the Shares to be received by the grantee(s) under the 2020 Share
Option Plan upon the exercise thereof are from the transfer of
existing Shares held by Forth Wisdom Limited, which is a company
incorporated in BVI and acts as the Company’s offshore employee
incentive shareholding platform, no new Shares of the Company
would be issued under the 2020 Share Option Plan. Accordingly,
the total number of issued Shares of the Company will not be
affected by the operation of the 2020 Share Option Plan.

During the Reporting Period, (i) no further Option under the 2020
Share Option Plan has been granted; and (ii) 2,596,380 Options
were lapsed during Reporting Period as the relevant grantees
have terminated their employment and the vesting conditions
have not been satisfied. As at December 31, 2021, a total number
of 5,660,282 Options have been vested and exercisable upon the
satisfaction of the vesting conditions.

Below is a list of Directors, senior management and other
employees of our Group who are grantees of the unexercised
Options under the 2020 Share Option Plan, and the number of
underlying Shares of their respective Options as of December 31,
2021.

RIF2020F B AR A AT B MR - % AT 817ZE A
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Name of grantee

ARA%Z
Directors
EZ

Mr. Zhao Lin
HEE
Ms. Peng Xin

gt

Mr. Deng Bin

il i

Senior management
BRERE
Ms. Chen Shengyu

REGLL

Mr. Shen Hao

HRRE

Mr. Liang Feiyan

AMERE

Address

it

7[F., Building 12 Bihai Yuntian No. 68,
Baishi Road Futian District Shenzhen PRC
RE R TMREEARRSRESER1267F

7IF., Building 12 Bihai Yuntian No. 68,
Baishi Road Futian District Shenzhen PRC
HERYTREEAARSHESER 1267

Room 8C, East Block, Building 2,
Bihai Mangrove Garden Fu Rong Road,
Futian District Shenzhen PRC

HE TR R ARG R R R ESC

Room 702, No. 1 Mingyue st Lane Yuexiu District
Guangzhou China
PERMTEERS A —B1510255

8-401, Lianhua 2nd Village No. 5002 Hongli West
Road Futian District Shenzhen Guangdong
Province China

hEER S A TR B S RI5002%

BT f18-401

A-2, 3rd Floor Times Fortune Building No. 88,
Fuhua 3rd Road Futian District Shenzhen China

RERTRRREE S KOORER
HEREEAL
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Number of
outstanding
Shares Approximate
underlying percentage
the Options of issued
Exercise price granted  Date of grant Vesting period Shares
ERHBRE
RBRTEN BRTRH
g RbwEE RiAH EEY BOEM
HKDO 81 200,781 October 1, 2020 On July 31,2021 0.01%
0818 2000610418 RONETA3NA
HKD0.81 220,781 October 1, 2020 On July 31, 2021 0.01%
08T 2020£10A18 RONETA3A
HKDO.81 1,526,300 July 31,2020 From July 31, 2021 to 0.09%
July 31, 2026
0818 2000%7A31H BAETA31RE
2006F7A31H
HKD0.81 1408900 July 31,2020 From July 31, 2021 to 0.08%
July 31,2026
081T 200574318 BANE7A31RE
200657A318
HKDO.81 759,700 July 31,2020 From July 31, 2021 to 0.04%
July 31, 2026
0818 200057A31H BAE7A31RE
20067 A318
HKD0.81 939,300 July 31,2020 From July 31, 2021 to 0.05%
July 31,2026
08178 00%7A318 BNETAIAE
206%7A318
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Name of grantee

ARAER

Connected persons
BEAL
Mr. Zhao Yinglong

BREAL

Mr. Peng Zhenyu

PRTAE
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Address

it

No. 1 affiliated to No. 265, Xinfuli Regiment
No. 127 Suxingtan, Kuitun Xinjiang China
PEHEE AR 2 =R 22655 M1 5

7/F., Building 12 Bihai Yuntian, No. 68,
Baishi Road Futian District Shenzhen
Guangdong Province China

hEERERIMERR D AR
ERER1287F

Exercise price

ik

HKDO.81

0818

HKDO.81

08T

Number of
outstanding
Shares
underlying
the Options
granted
ERHBRE
RBRTEN
RewEA

8,500

6,000

17 employees of our Group who have been granted options to subscribe for 500,000 Shares or more

REEEDERENZES00,000R N LRAKI74ES

Peng Dacheng

JiXiang

B

Liu Yanli

8N

No. 32, Third Cuihuju Street, West Court, Country
Garden, Beijiao County, Shunde District, Foshan,

Guangdong
ERABUTIRER ZEERERIRNE
=H35k

Room 602, No. 52, Lane 700, Hongsong Road,
Minhang District, Shanghai
LAMRTRIREI0F525602F

Room 3005, Unit 1, Building 1, Heheweidu, No. 6
South Section |, Yihuan Road, Chengdu
KBT-BEE-ReEANEHIRIET005F

Room 1403, Dutyfree Business Building, No. 6
First Fuhua Road, Futian District, Shenzhen,
Guangdong

EREMIRARRE —Ho%
SHBHARI403E

HKDO.81

081

HKDO.81

08T

HKDO.81

0818

HKDO.81

08T

1,174,100

1,408,900

1,408,900

607,800

Date of grant

ek

October 1, 2020

2000£10A18

October 1, 2020

202010A18

July 31,2020

2020574318

July 31,2020

2000%7A31H

July 31,2020

200%7A318

July 31, 2020

2000£7A318

Vesting period

ERA

From July 1, 2022 to July
1,202

BN2%TA1RZ
5FTR1A

From July 1, 2022 to
July 1, 2025

ENNETR1RE
200557 A1R

From July 31,2021 to
July 31, 2026

B01%7A3IRE
026%57A31H

From July 31,2021 to
July 31,202

BANFTA3IBE
026F7A31H

From July 31, 2021 to
July 31, 2026

B02157A31A%
026F71A318

From July 31, 2021 to
July 31, 2026

EREIERIEES
2026%78318

Approximate
percentage
of issued
Shares

BRTRH

LT

0.00050%

0.00035%

0.07%

0.08%

0.08%

0.04%



Name of grantee

ARA%Z
Liu Xu

g

Geng Jie

B

Huang Jinhua

Liu Huazhi

Liu Yu

Zhang Shengbin

R

Zhang Dazhuang

RAH

Address

it

Room 702, No. 1, Lane 1, First Mingyue Road,
Yuexiu District, Guangzhou, Guangdong

RREEMTERENA-A—E-F100%

12/F, Shenzhen Development Bank Building, 5047
Shennan Road East, Luohu District, Shenzhen,
Guangdong

ERE R ME R R R B0 KRB RS
RE128

2B-1903, All Love In Town, Xixiang Avenue, Baoan
District, Shenzhen, Guangdong
EREMIMERERBAES FE-428-1903

Room 2206, Building 2, Zhongshan Garden
Building, Fenghuang Road, Luohu District,
Shenzhen, Guangdong

EREAIMERRREATLLEARR206

Room 22C, Building 19, Weilan Hai'an, Nanshan
District, Shenzhen, Guangdong
EREMImELREE SR 19%2C

10 Minshun Lane, Qianchuan Street, Huangpi
District, Wuhan
REMEREAIGRIES105

No. 10 Fourth Gaoxin Avenue South, Nanshan
District, Shenzhen, Guangdong

RREMIMELESHELEI0R

Exercise price

ik

HKDO.81

0818

HKDO.81

081T

HKDO.81

0818T

HKDO.81

081

HKDO.81

0818T

HKDO.81

0817

HKDO.81

08T

Number of
outstanding
Shares
underlying
the Options
granted
ERHBRE
RBRTEN
RewEA

607,800

911,700

987,600

987,600

151,940

987,600

911,700

Date of grant

RERS
July 31,2020

2000F7A31H

July 31,2020

2020677318

July 31,2020

2000F7A31H

July 31,2020

20007318

July 31,2020

2000%7A31H

July 31,2020

2020%7A318

July 31, 2020

202057A318
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Vesting period

ERA

From July 31,2022 to
July 31,2027

BAN2ETA3NEE
27%71R31R

From July 31,2021 to
July 31, 2026

BN FTA3NEE
2026%7R318

From July 31,2021 to
July 31, 2026

BA21%7A31BE
026F7A318

From July 31,2021 to
July 31, 2026

B2021%57A318E
26%57R31H

From July 31,2021 to
July 31,202

BA21%7A31BE
026F7R318

From July 31,2021 to
July 31, 2026

BNNFIANEE
206%1A318

From July 31, 2021 to
July 31, 2026

BANETA3IBE
026FTA31H

Approximate
percentage
of issued
Shares

BRTRH
LT

0.04%

0.05%

0.06%

0.06%

0.009%

0.06%

0.05%
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Name of grantee

ARALZ
Sun Xia

Fli

Zhang Yubing

Rk

Wang Yang

I

Zou Weiwei

Fi

Zhang Zhijian

R

Address

it

Room 602, Unit 1, Building 20, 99 Changfeng
Avenue, Qiaokou District, Wuhan, Hubei

B AR ETBORREAEITH0RE
1ET600E

Room 703, Building 1, Yidongyuan, Dongqu,
Zhongshan, Guangdong
EREPITRERTI1RI035

Room 902, Unit 1, Building 4, Phase I,
Dongfangginyuan, Ping " an Road, Longgang
District, Shenzhen, Guangdong

EREMmERR TRRRANE S
4R1ZT902

7 Bajiaomiao Street, Zhige Town,
Hongya County, Sichuan
M8 AT R\ AT

Wanchang Apartment, Xiheng Street, Shangmeilin,

Futian District, Shenzhen, Guangdong
ERERTRAR LENAREEELE

Huaxin Village, Zhenzhou Road West, Yizheng,
Jiangsu
THEBRTENBRENH

77 other employees of our Group who have been granted options to
subscribe for less than 500,000 Shares
AEBERERENRES00,0008 A T RN 2L EE

Total
&

Exercise price

iR
HKDO8!

0818T

HKDO.81

081

HKDO.81

0818

HKDO.81

0817

HKDO.81

08T

HKDO.81

0818

HKDO.81

08T

Number of
outstanding
Shares
underlying
the Options
granted
ERHBRE
RRRTEN
RewEA

759,700

538,700

538,700

538,700

538,700

538,700

8,629,580

27,318,682

Date of grant

RERS
July 31,2020

2000F7A31H

July 31,2020

2020£7A318

July 31,2020

20007A31H

July 31,2020

200074318

July 31,2020

2000%7A31H

July 31,2020

200%7A318

July 31,2020 and
October 1, 2020

NNFTANAR
2020F10A18

Approximate
percentage
of issued
Vesting period Shares
2RTkG
GBH BaE
From July 31,2021 to 0.04%
July 31, 2026
BA1ETA3NEE
26%F7A318
From July 31, 2021 to 0.03%
July 31, 2026
BANETANEE
2026578318
From July 31,2021 to 0.03%
July 31, 2026
BANETA3NAE
26%E7A318
From July 31, 2021 to 0.03%
July 31, 2026
BANETANEE
02675318
From July 31,2021 to 0.03%
July 31, 2026
YAk kIR
026F78318
From July 31, 2021 to 0.03%
July 31, 2026
EVAEIRKIIEES
02675318
From July 31,2021 to 0.50%
July 31,2027
#021575318%
027%78318
1.59%



2020 Share Incentive Plan

The 2020 Share Incentive Plan was adopted to enable our Group
to reward the grantees for their services and contribution to the
success of our Group, and to provide incentives to them to further
contribute to the Group. The 2020 Share Incentive Plan provides for
awards of RSUs, restricted shares, or other awards involving Shares
or are valued in whole or in part by reference to, or are otherwise
based upon or settled in, Shares, including unrestricted Shares,
performance units, share appreciation rights, dividend equivalents
and convertible debentures.

The Board may, at its discretion, invite any person belonging to any
of the following classes of eligible participants to take up an award:

(a) any full-time executives, officers, managers or employees
of our Group, or any entities designated by them, who had
attained the requisite seniority and performance grade and/or
targets as may be determined by the Board from time to time;

(b) any directors and supervisors (including non-executive
directors and independent non-executive directors) of our
Group, or any entities designated by them; and

() any advisors, consultants, distributors, contractors,
customers, suppliers, agents, business partners, joint venture
business partners, strategic partners, service providers
or other third parties who the Board considers, in its sole
discretion, has contributed or will contribute to our Group.

The 2020 Share Incentive Plan will be valid and effective for a
period of ten years, commencing from May 15, 2020, unless
terminated early by the Board. As of December 31, 2021, the
remaining life of the 2020 Share Incentive Plan was approximately
eight years and four months.
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Below is a list of grantees of the outstanding RSUs under the 2020
Share Incentive Plan as of December 31, 2021:

Name of grantee

ARAGR

38 employees

8HEE

Total
et

During the Reporting Period, (i) 2,346,700 RSUs were granted;
(ii) 1,641,350 RSUs have been vested and exercised upon the
satisfaction of the vesting conditions; and (iii) 859,450 RSUs were
forfeited as the relevant grantee has terminated his employment
and the vesting conditions have not been satisfied.

As of the date of this annual report, no further RSU under the 2020
Share Incentive Plan has been granted by the Company.
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The Stock Exchange granted to the Company, at the time of its
Listing, a waiver from strict compliance with Rule 8.08(1) of the
Listing Rules (the “Public Float Waiver”). Pursuant to the Public
Float Waiver, the Company’s minimum public float shall be the
higher of (i) 24.86% of the Company’s Shares upon completion of
the Global Offering (prior to any exercise of the Over-allotment
Option); and (ii) such percentage of Shares to be held by the
public immediately after the completion of the Global Offering
(as increased by the Shares to be issued upon any exercise of the
Over-allotment Option), provided that the higher of (i) and (ii)
above is below the minimum public float requirement of 25% under
Rule 8.08(1)(a) of the Listing Rules. For details, please refer to the
section headed “"Waivers from Strict Compliance with the Listing
Rules” in the Prospectus and the announcement dated April 6, 2022
of the Company. Based on the information that is publicly available
to the Company and to the best knowledge of the Directors, the
Company has maintained the prescribed amount of public float as
required by the Public Float Waiver as of the date of this annual
report.

At no time during the Reporting Period was the Company,
its holding company, or any of its subsidiaries, a party to any
arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of Shares in, or debt securities including
debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

For the Reporting Period, the Group's largest supplier accounted
for 6.39% of the Group's total purchase. The Group's five largest
suppliers accounted for 19.80% of the Group's total purchase.

None of the Directors or any of their close associates (as defined
under the Listing Rules) or any Shareholders (which, to the best
knowledge of the Directors, owns more than 5% of the Company's
issued share capital) has any beneficial interest in the Group's five
largest suppliers or customers for the Reporting Period.

As a retail-based teahouse network, our customer base is highly
diversified. Therefore, we were not subject to any material
concentration during the Reporting Period. For the Reporting
Period, revenue from our five largest customers accounted for less
than 1.0% of the Group's total revenue.
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The Company is not aware of any tax relief or exemption available
to the Shareholders by reason of their holding of the Company’s
securities.

A permitted indemnity provision (as defined in the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance) in relation to the Director’s and officer’s
liability insurance is currently in force and was in force during the
Reporting Period.

Our Company recognizes the importance of good corporate
governance for enhancing the management of the Company as
well as preserving the interests of the Shareholders as a whole. The
Company has adopted the code provisions set out in the Corporate
Governance Code as its own code to govern its corporate
governance practices.

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company has complied with the
relevant code provisions contained in the Corporate Governance
Code during the Reporting Period.

The Board will continue to review and monitor the practices of the
Company with an aim to maintain a high standard of corporate
governance.

Information on the corporate governance practice adopted by
the Company is set out under the section headed “Corporate
Governance Report” in this annual report.
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The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
year ended December 31, 2021 have been audited by KPMG,
certified public accountants. KPMG will retire and, being eligible,
offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for their re-

appointment as auditor of the Company will be proposed at the
AGM.

During the Reporting Period, the Company is in compliance with
relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the
Company.

On behalf of the Board
Zhao Lin
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Shenzhen, PRC, March 29, 2022
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The Company is committed to achieving and maintaining high
standards of corporate governance by focusing on principles
of integrity, accountability, transparency, independence,
responsibility and fairness. The Company has developed and
implemented sound corporate governance policies and measures,
and the Board is responsible for performing such corporate
governance duties. The Board will continue to review and monitor
the corporate governance of the Company, as well as various
internal policies and procedures, including but not limited to
those applicable to employees and Directors, with reference to the
Corporate Governance Code set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules and other applicable legal and regulatory requirements so
as to maintain a high standard of corporate governance of the
Company.

During the Reporting Period, the Company has complied with
the applicable code provisions of the Corporate Governance
Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules other than
code provision C.2.1, which stipulates that the roles of chairman
and chief executive officer should be separate and should not
be performed by the same individual. See “Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer” below for details.

Responsibilities

The Board is responsible for leadership and the internal control
of the Company and oversees the Group’s businesses, strategic
decisions and performance and is collectively responsible
for promoting the success of the Company by directing and
supervising its affairs. The Board directly, and indirectly through
its committees, leads and provides direction to the management
by laying down strategies and overseeing their implementation,
monitors the Group's operational and financial performance, and
ensures that sound internal control and risk management systems
are in place. The Board has general powers for the management
and is conducting the Company’s business. The day-to-day
operations and management are delegated by the Board to the
management of the Company, who will implement the strategy and
direction as determined by the Board.

All Directors shall at all times ensure that they carry out duties in
good faith, in compliance with applicable laws and regulations, and
in the interests of the Company and the Shareholders.
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The Board confirms that corporate governance shall be the joint
responsibility among Directors and the corporate governance
functions include:

(i)  to formulate and review the Company’s policies and practice
in the aspect of compliance with laws and regulatory
requirements;

(i)  to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management;

(i) to formulate, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
Directors;

(iv) to formulate and review the Company’s policies and practice
in corporate governance, and make recommendations and

report relevant matters to the Board,;

(v) to review the Company’s compliance with the Corporate
Governance Code and the disclosure in the corporate
governance report; and

(vi) to review and monitor the Company’s compliance with the
whistleblowing policy of the Company.

The Board has performed the functions set out in the Corporate
Governance Code from the Listing Date to December 31, 2021.

Board Composition

The Board currently consists of eight Directors, namely Mr. Zhao
Lin (chairman of the Board), Ms. Peng Xin and Mr. Deng Bin as
executive Directors, Mr. Pan Pan and Mr. Wong Tak-wai as non-
executive Directors, and Mr. Chen Qunsheng, Mr. Liu Yiwei and Ms.
Zhang Rui as independent non-executive Directors. Mr. Zhao Lin is
the spouse of Ms. Peng Xin. Other than that, none of the Directors
or senior management has a relationship (including financial, family
or other substantial or related relationship) with each other. The
Board has a balance of skills and experience appropriate for the
requirements of the business of the Company.

The biographies of the Directors are set out under the
section headed "Biographical details of Directors and Senior
Management” in this annual report.
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Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Under code provision C.2.1 of the Corporate Governance Code,
the roles of chairman and chief executive should be separate and
should not be performed by the same individual. Mr. Zhao Lin is
currently the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer.

Mr. Zhao has served as a director of Shenzhen Pindao Management
from February 2017 to October 2020 and a Director of our
Company since June 2020. He is the founder of our Group and has
extensive experience in the business operations and management
of our Group. Our Directors believe that it is beneficial to the
business operations and management of the Group that Mr. Zhao
serves as both the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer.
This structure will enable our Company to make and implement
decisions promptly and effectively. Our Directors consider that
the balance of power and authority will not be impaired due to
this arrangement. In addition, all major decisions are made in
consultation with members of the Board, including the relevant
Board committees, and three independent non-executive
Directors.

The Board will review the corporate governance structure and
practices from time to time and shall make necessary arrangement
when the Board considers appropriate.

Independent Non-executive Directors

During the period from the Listing Date to December 31, 2021 and
up to the date of this annual report, the Board at all times met the
requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at
least three independent non-executive Directors, representing at
least one-third of the Board, of whom Ms. Zhang Rui is the Director
possessing appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or
related financial management expertise.

The Company has received a written confirmation of independence
from each of the independent non-executive Directors pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, and considers them to be
independent.
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Directors’ Training and Professional Development EESHIINBEERE

All Directors attended various trainings in the Reporting Period, RBEHER > FIEEEHCEL2EZIEE
including trainings regarding the updating of the Listing Rules, Al - BEBREMRAERN EBFHEERE
the responsibilities and continuous obligations of Directors and BEHBRCGRE g8 kEAREES)EE
the Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide. The e RARBEAETEEETTHASBENE
Company had arranged suitable trainings for all Directors in order EEEENRENESENMH LI (EAK
to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills as part of their EREFEUREN—ID

continuous professional development.

Attending relevant
training courses,
seminars,
conferences
and/or reading
relevant materials
HE AR IRRE -
e g8k

Name of Director EEnam R BIEMAEER
Executive Directors BITES

Mr. Zhao Lin HEMRSEE v
Ms. Peng Xin it v
Mr. Deng Bin M S v
Non-executive Directors FHITES

Mr. Pan Pan EESTE v
Mr. Wong Tak-wai =EESE v
Independent non-executive Directors BIAFHITES

Mr. Chen Qunsheng PREFAE ST v
Mr. Liu Yiwei BREBRE v
Ms. Zhang Rui RIS L v
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Appointment and Re-election of Directors

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service
agreement with our Company with an initial term of three years
with effect from the date of the appointment, and will continue
thereafter until terminated by not less than three months’ notice
in writing served by either party on the other (subject always to re-
election as and when required under the Articles of Association).

Each of our non-executive Directors and independent non-
executive Directors has entered into a service contract/letter
of appointment with our Company. Each of our non-executive
Directors and independent non-executive Directors is appointed
with an initial term of three years with effect from the date of
the appointment (i.e., the date of the Prospectus) subject to
termination in certain circumstances as stipulated in the relevant
service contracts/letters of appointment. Under these service
contracts/letters of appointment, each of the independent non-
executive Directors will receive a Director’s annual remuneration of

HK$120,000.

None of the Directors has entered into a service contract which is
not determinable by the Group within one year without payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation).

In accordance with the Articles of Association, all Directors are
subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years
and any new Director appointed to fill a casual vacancy shall submit
himself for re-election by the Shareholders at the first general
meeting of the Company after appointment and new Directors
appointed as an addition to the Board shall submit himself for re-
election by the Shareholders at the next following general meeting
of the Company after appointment.

The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and
removal of Directors are set out in the Articles of Association. The
Nomination Committee is responsible for reviewing the Board
composition and making recommendations to the Board on the
appointment or re-election of Directors and succession planning
for Directors.
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The Company adopts a practice to convene Board meetings
regularly which is at least four meetings per year and roughly
on a quarterly basis. A notice of a regular Board meeting shall
be delivered to all the Directors at least 14 days in advance with
the matters to be discussed specified in agenda of the meeting.
For other Board and committee meetings, reasonable notice is
generally served. Agendas or relevant documents of the Board
or committee meetings shall be despatched to the Directors or
members of the committees at least 3 days prior to the convening
of the meetings to ensure that they have sufficient time to review
the relevant documents and be adequately prepared for the
meetings. When Directors or committee members are unable
to attend a meeting, they will be advised of the matters to be
discussed and given an opportunity to make their views known
to the chairperson prior to the meeting. The minutes are kept by
the joint company secretaries of the Company and the copies are
circulated to all Directors for reference and record purpose.

The minutes of the Board meetings and committee meetings
thoroughly were recorded in detail and include all matters under
consideration and decisions made including any problems raised
by the Directors. Draft minutes of each Board meeting and
committee meeting are sent to the Directors for comments within
a reasonable time after the date on which the meeting is held.
Directors have a right to review the minutes of the Board meetings
and the committee meetings.
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From the Listing Date to December 31, 2021, at the Board BEMBHE2021F12A318 - FEERE

meetings, committee meetings and general meeting the Fees ZEeeEMNMREAENEFER
attendance record of each Director are set out in the table below: HNRTEK

Attendance/No. of Meetings Held during the Reporting Period
BEHELERYE SBRETRHY
Audit Remuneration Nomination General
Name of Director Board Committee Committee Committee meeting

EEnA BExg BREES FHESS REZEE BRERRE

Executive Directors

BITES

Mr. Zhao Lin 2/2 = = - -
M A4

Ms. Peng Xin 2/2 - - - -
7y g

Mr. Deng Bin 2/2 - = - -
B S A

Non-executive Directors

FHITES

Mr. Pan Pan 2/2 - - - -
EE L

Mr. Wong Tak-wai 2/2 - - - -
EEBEE

Mr. Shao Gang ™ 2/2 - - - -
el a )

Independent non-executive
Directors
BYFYITES
Mr. Chen Qunsheng 2/2 1/1 - - -
BREFAERE
Mr. Liu Yiwei 2/2 1/1 - = -
FRERE
Ms. Zhang Rui 2/2 1/1 = - _
RMLL
Notes: M e
(1) On December 29, 2021, Mr. Shao Gang resigned from the position as the non- (1) 2021128298 * Bh4H %k £ B EIEITE S —

executive Director. Mr. Shao Gang has attended all the Board meetings during Bt o ARSI ANBEHALEHEESS S -
the Reporting Period.



At the Board meetings held in the Reporting Period, the Board
discussed a wide range of matters, including the Company's
financial and operational performances, approved interim results of
the Company, business prospects and other significant matters.

The Company has three principal Board committees, namely
the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee, and the
Nomination Committee. Each of the Board committees operates
under its terms of reference. The terms of reference of the Board
committees are available on the websites of the Company and the
Stock Exchange.

Audit Committee

The Company has established an Audit Committee with written
terms of reference in compliance with the Code as set out in
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. The Audit Committee consists
of three members, namely Ms. Zhang Rui, Mr. Liu Yiwei and Mr.
Chen Qunsheng. Ms. Zhang Rui, with appropriate accounting
and financial management expertise, has been appointed as the
chairperson of the Audit Committee. The primary duties of the
Audit Committee are to manage relationship with the Company’s
auditors, review financial information of the Company and oversee
the Company’s financial reporting system and internal control
procedures.

During the relevant meetings, the Audit Committee reviewed
the interim results and report for six months ended June 30,
2021, significant issues on the financial reporting and compliance
procedures.
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Nomination Committee

The Company has established a Nomination Committee with
written terms of reference in compliance with the Code as set out
in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. The Nomination Committee
consists of three members, namely Mr. Zhao Lin, Mr. Chen
Qunsheng and Mr. Liu Yiwei. Mr. Zhao Lin has been appointed as
the chairperson of the Nomination Committee. The primary duties
of the Nomination Committee include (i) reviewing the structure,
size and composition of our Board; and (ii) reviewing and making
recommendations to the Board on appointment of Directors and
the management of the Board succession.

In recommending candidates for appointment to the Board, the
Nomination Committee will consider candidates on merit against
objective criteria and with due regards to the benefits of diversity
on the Board in accordance with the board diversity policy adopted
by the Company. Diversity of the Board will be considered from
a number of perspectives, including but not limited to gender,
age, cultural and educational background, industry experience,
technical and professional skills and/or qualifications, knowledge,
length of services and time to be devoted as a Director. The
Company will also take into account factors relating to its own
business model and specific needs from time to time. The ultimate
decision will be based on merit and contribution that the selected
candidates will bring to the Board.

Remuneration Committee

The Company has established a Remuneration Committee with
written terms of reference in compliance with the Code as set out
in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. The Remuneration Committee
consists of three members, namely, Mr. Liu Yiwei, Mr. Chen
Qunsheng and Mr. Zhao Lin. Mr. Liu Yiwei is the chairperson of the
committee. The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee
include (i) making recommendations to the Board regarding the
Group's policy and structure for the remuneration of the Directors
and senior management and on the establishment of a formal and
transparent procedure for developing remuneration policies; and
(i) making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of the Directors and senior management and on
employee benefit arrangements.
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The Board has adopted a board diversity policy (the “Board
Diversity Policy”) in order to enhance the effectiveness of our
Board and to maintain high standard of corporate governance. The
Board Diversity Policy sets out the criteria in selecting candidates
to our Board, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service. The ultimate decision will be
based on merit and contribution that the selected candidates will
bring to our Board. The Nomination Committee is responsible for
reviewing the diversity of the Board and monitoring and evaluating
the implementation of the Board Diversity Policy from time to time
to ensure its continued effectiveness.

Our Directors have a balanced mix of knowledge and skills
including but not limited to overall management and strategic
development, finance, accounting and risk management, as well
as professional experiences in investment and food and beverage
industry. Our Board currently consists of two female Directors and
six male Directors with a balanced mix of knowledge and skills as
mentioned above. Furthermore, our Board has a wide range of age
ranging from 34 years old to 59 years old. Based on the above, the
Board is of the view that our Board satisfies the Board Diversity
Policy.

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by Directors on terms no less exacting than the
required standard set out in the Model Code. Having made specific
enquiry of all Directors, all of them have confirmed that they have
complied with the Model Code since the Listing Date and up to
December 31, 2021.

For the Reporting Period, the fees paid/payable to KPMG for audit
services and non-audit services (primarily related to financial due
diligence services) are approximately RMB2.9 million and RMBO0.7
million, respectively.
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Ms. Shi Chao and Ms. Lau Jeanie were appointed as the Company’s
joint secretaries. Ms. Lau Jeanie serves as the Assistant Vice
President of SWCS Corporate Services Group (Hong Kong) Limited.
Ms. Shi Chao is the primary contact of Ms. Lau Jeanie in the
Company. The biographical details of Ms. Shi Chao and Ms. Lau
Jeanie are set out under the section headed “Biographical details
of Directors and Senior Management” in this annual report. Each
of Ms. Shi Chao and Ms. Lau Jeanie participated in not less than 15
hours of relevant professional trainings in 2021 in accordance with
Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

The Company has applied to the Stock Exchange for, and the
Stock Exchange has granted, a waiver from strict compliance with
the requirements under Rule 3.28 and Rule 8.17 of the Listing
Rules in relation to the qualifications of one of our joint company
secretaries, Ms. Shi Chao. Ms. Shi Chao will be assisted by Ms. Lau
Jeanie for a three-year period commencing from the Listing Date.

The Directors of the Company are responsible for overseeing the
preparation of the financial statements which give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Group and of the results and cash
flow during the Reporting Period. A statement from the auditor
about its reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is
set out under the section headed "Independent Auditor’s Report”
in this annual report. In preparing the financial statements for the
year ended December 31, 2021, the Directors of the Company
have selected suitable accounting policies and applied them
consistently, made judgments and estimated that are prudent, fair
and reasonable and prepared the financial statements on a going

concern basis.

The Directors were not aware of any material uncertainties relating
to events or conditions which may cast significant doubt upon the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern.
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The Board is responsible for maintaining sound and effective
internal control and risk management systems in order to safeguard
the Group's assets and Shareholders’ interests and reviewing the
effectiveness of the Group's internal control and risk management
systems on an annual basis so as to ensure that internal control and
risk management systems in place are adequate. The Board has
also reviewed and recognized the effectiveness of such systems
for the Reporting Period. Such systems are designed to manage
and mitigate risks inherent in the Group's business faced by the
Group to an acceptable level, but not eliminating the risk of failure
to achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable
assurance against material misstatement, loss or fraud.

The Company has established the Audit Committee to monitor the
implementation of risk management policies across the Company
on an ongoing basis to ensure that the internal control system is
effective in identifying, managing and mitigating risks involved in
our business operations. The Company also maintains an internal
control team, which is responsible for reviewing the effectiveness
of internal controls and reporting to the Audit Committee on any
issues identified. The internal control team members hold meetings
from time to time to discuss any internal control issues we face
and the corresponding measures required to be implemented
to resolve such issues. The internal control team reports to the
Audit Committee to ensure that any major issues identified thus
are channeled to the committee on a timely basis. The Audit
Committee then discusses the issues and reports to the board of
directors, as necessary.

The Audit Committee, internal control team and senior
management together monitor the implementation of our risk
management policies on an ongoing basis to ensure that our
policies and implementation are effective and sufficient.

Based on its review, the Board considers that the Group's risk
management and internal control systems are adequate and
effective for the year ended December 31, 2021.
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Internal policies are also put in place to ensure that inside
information is adequately controlled. To ensure the confidentiality
and the timely disclosure of inside information, all employees
are provided with learning materials and guidelines regarding
the handling and dissemination of inside information on a yearly
basis. IT system controls are implemented to ensure the access to
sensitive data is restricted to authorized personnel only.

Business Risk Management

The Group faces business risks including but not limited to
reputation risks, market risks, food safety risks, corporate
responsibility and sustainability risks. The Board meets regularly
and reviews the expansion strategies, business plan, financial
results, and key performance indicators of the Group to ensure that
the business risks are controlled and managed, and potential risks
can be identified.

Financial Risk Management

The Group has adopted financial risk management policies to
control the Group's financial risk exposure, such as taxation risks,
currency risks and financial reporting risks. Also, the Board from
time to time, monitors the financial results and key operating
statistics with the assistance of the Group's internal financial
reporting department.

Human Resource Risk Management

We provide regular and specialized training tailored to the needs
of our employees in different departments. We have in place
multiple employee policies, including an employee handbook
and the code of business conduct, approved by our management
and distributed to all our employees, which contains internal rules
and guidelines regarding best commercial practice, work ethics,
fraud prevention mechanisms, negligence and corruption. We also
have in place an anti-corruption policy to safeguard against any
corruption within our Company.

Information Risk Management and Data Protection

Sufficient maintenance, storage and protection of user data and
other related information is critical to our business operation. We
have implemented relevant internal procedures and controls to
ensure that user data is protected, and that leakage and loss of
such data is avoideb
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Legal and Compliance

We have designed and adopted strict internal procedures to
ensure the compliance of our business operations with the relevant
rules and regulations and provide related special training to our
employees. We continually review the implementation of our risk
management policies and measures to ensure that our policies and
implementation are effective and sufficient.

Inside Information

Internal policies are put in place to ensure that inside information
is adequately controlled. To ensure the confidentiality and the
timely disclosure of inside information, all employees are provided
with learning materials and guidelines regarding the handling and
dissemination of inside information on a yearly basis. IT system
controls are implemented to ensure the access to sensitive data is
restricted to authorized personnel only.

Subject to Articles of Association and all applicable laws and
regulations, the Company in general meeting may declare
dividends in any currency but no dividends shall exceed the
amount recommended by the Board. Any dividends the Company
pays will be determined by the Board, taking into account factors
including the Company's actual and expected results of operations,
cash flow and financial position, general business conditions and
business strategies, expected working capital requirements and
future expansion plans, legal, regulatory and other contractual
restrictions, and other factors that the Board deems to be
appropriate.

The Memorandum and Articles of Association was conditionally
adopted by the Board on June 9, 2021 and became effective
on the Listing Date. A copy of the Memorandum and Articles of
Association is available on the website of the Company and the
Stock Exchange. Since the Listing Date up to the date of this annual
report, there was no significant change in constitutional documents
of the Company.
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Save as disclosed in this annual report, the Group did not have any
important events after the Reporting Period.

Convening an extraordinary general meeting

The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity
for communication between the Shareholders and the Board. An
annual general meeting of the Company shall be held in each year
and at the place as may be determined by the Board. Each general
meeting, other than an annual general meeting, shall be called an
extraordinary general meeting.

Pursuant to Article 64 of the Articles of Association, the Board may,
whenever it thinks fit, convene an extraordinary general meeting.
Extraordinary general meetings shall also be convened on the
requisition of one or more Shareholders holding, as of the date
of deposit of the requisition, not less than one-tenth of the paid-
up capital of the Company having the right of voting at general
meetings. Such requisition shall be made in writing to the Board or
the Secretary for the purpose of requiring an extraordinary general
meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of any
business specified in such requisition. Such meeting shall be held
within two months after the deposit of such requisition. If within
21 days of such deposit, the Board fails to proceed to convene
such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do
so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by
the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.
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Putting forward proposals at general meeting

There are no provisions under the Articles of Association regarding
procedures for Shareholders to put forward proposals at general
meetings other than a proposal of a person for election as Director.
Shareholders may follow the procedures set out above to convene
an extraordinary general meeting for any business specified in such
written requisition.

Enquiries to the Board

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board, Shareholders may
send written enquiries to the Company as follows:

Address: Zone F, 2F, Building 3, Huangguan Science Park,
Chegongmiao Industrial Zone, Futian District,
Shenzhen, PRC

Attention: Investor Relations Team

The Company will not normally deal with verbal or anonymous
enquiries. The Company will arrange designated persons to
respond to the relevant written enquiries in a timely manner.

The Company has reviewed the implementation and effectiveness
of the shareholders’ communication policy and considered it to be
effective for the Reporting Period.
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KPMG

Independent auditor’s report
to the shareholders of Nayuki Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Nayuki Holdings Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries
("the Group”) set out on pages 100 to 240, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at December 31,
2021, the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended and notes to
the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as
at December 31, 2021 and of its consolidated financial performance
and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
("IFRSs") issued by the International Accounting Standards Board
("IASB") and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“"HKICPA"). Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (“the Code”) together with any ethical requirements
that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial
statements in the Cayman Islands, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and
the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
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opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on

these matters.
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Impairment of right-of-use assets and leasehold improvements
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Refer to note 11 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies in note 2(k)(ii).

The Key Audit Matter
HEETER

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BANESNAEEZEE

COVID-19 and higher levels of competition from other
industry competitors have impacted the performance
of some of the Group’s teahouses. As a result, there is
a risk that the carrying amount of right-of-use assets
and leasehold improvements in certain teahouses may
not be fully recoverable. As at December 31, 2021,
right-of-use assets and leasehold improvements of the
Group were RMB1,313,334,000 and RMB413,867,000,
respectively.
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The Group's management reviews the performance
of individual teahouses at the end of each reporting
period to identify if any teahouse experienced
operational difficulties and suffered from prolonged
negative financial performance indicators which could
indicate potential impairment.
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Our audit procedures to assess the potential
impairment of right-of-use assets and leasehold
improvements included the following:

B EEREEEREEMERREEERENET
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e understanding and evaluating the design and
implementation of key internal controls over the
impairment assessment;
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e evaluating management'’s identification of CGUs
and allocation of right-of-use assets and leasehold
improvements to each CGU with reference to
the requirements of the prevailing accounting
standards;
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e evaluating management'’s identification of
impairment indicators with reference to the
requirements of the prevailing accounting
standards;
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93



94  Nayuki Holdings Limited - 2B HZIERA R A F)

Impairment of right-of-use assets and leasehold improvements

EREEEREEMERERE

Refer to note 11 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies in note 2(k)(ii).

B 2R A BT ER R MG 11 R G 2(k) 1) F B & 5B

The Key Audit Matter
HEETER

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BAMNESNAEEZEE

Each of the teahouses of the Group is identified
as a cash generating unit ("CGU"). The Group's
management determine the recoverable amount of
each teahouse with impairment indicators based on
the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value-
in-use. Based on the assessment of the recoverable
amounts, the Group recognized an accumulated
impairment loss of RMB6,844,000 as at December 31
2021 and an impairment loss of RMB6,844,000 for the
year then ended.
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e assessing the methodology adopted by
management in its preparation of the discounted
cash flow forecasts with reference to the
requirements of the prevailing accounting
standards;
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e comparing the key assumptions included in the

discounted cash flows forecasts prepared by
management in the prior year with the current
year's performance to assess the accuracy of
the prior year's forecast, making enquiries of
management as to the reasons for any significant
variations identified and whether these had been
considered in the current year’s discounted cash
flow forecasts and considering if there was any
indication of management bias;
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Impairment of right-of-use assets and leasehold improvements

EREEEREEMERERE

Refer to note 11 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies in note 2(k)(ii).

B 2R A BT ER R MG 11 R G 2(k) 1) F B & 5B

The Key Audit Matter
HEETER

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BAMNESNAEEZEE

The value-in-use model used to assess the recoverable
amount of each CGU with impairment indicators
involves significant management estimation and
judgement, in particular in determining the key
assumptions adopted in the cash flow forecasts,
including future revenue, cost of materials, staff costs
and the discount rate applied.
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We identified the impairment of right-of-use assets
and leasehold improvements as a key audit matter
in view of the significance of their balances in the
consolidated statement of financial position as at
December 31, 2021 and the significant management
estimation and judgement involved in determining
the recoverable amount of right-of-use assets and
leasehold improvements.
ENERREEREEMEREERERE2021F12H31H
NEEMBRARPHRBNEZ M AREET A A KO
THRRSNBERNEREGMAL  RASERREEE
NEEMRRERERR S —RARETFE -

e evaluating the key assumptions adopted by
management in the discounted cash flow forecasts
by comparing the significant inputs, which
included future revenue, cost of materials and
staff costs with the historical performance of the
relevant teahouses, management’s budgets and
plans for the operations in 2022 and beyond, and
available industry statistics;

BRLEBERBAZE (EhBEARKEE - MRK
AREIRA) EREBRKENBERE  EHER
B 2022F RERMEET B AR ANITERRT
g SHMAEREEAETRE SRR KA N ERER

.
RX!

e assessing the discount rates used in the cash
flow forecasts by benchmarking against other
companies in the same industry;
FREERITENEM A RETLE B AT GRS RTE
AP E R ITIRE

e performing a sensitivity analysis of key
assumptions in the discounted cash flow forecasts
and considering the resulting impact on the
impairment charge for the year and whether there
were any indicators of management bias; and
U RASRERATOERRZETHRES T
VEREHFEREEAMELNTERRRFERE
MERERLNTR : &

e assessing the reasonableness of the disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements with
reference to the requirements of the prevailing
accounting standards.

Z2RBITSFHEMNNRTE - HEEEMBHRRPIRE
AR -
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Information other than the consolidated financial
statements and auditor’s report thereon

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all the information included in the annual
report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required
to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the directors for the consolidated
financial statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with IFRSs issued by the IASB and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable
the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging
their responsibilities for overseeing the Group's financial reporting
process.

iR e MG ERR R R & AN
B

EERHHMENER - A EHN BT
REBFANZHER - ETBRESEMBER
KRR BEN RS o

BPHGEAMBERERNEEL TRERMBE
B BAIA T HZEEMERBERTEMEA
MR

BABMEEEUBRENET - RANE
TRHEEBEMER - FUERET  ZEHM
ENEDRGEMBRRAIEMESTBE
PRTHRNBERATEEAEBREUTFE
EXBRRAABER

ERBMAECHITHTIE  MRKEFIRSEM
ERGFAEEAMERRM  RAFTEREZSE
BomaEsm BB ERARE -

EENEAMBHRRAAENEL

EEAAEREAESINENEESESH
(BRSBTS £ R R B8 (A FEHI) M
BESREABMAEOEAMBRE - T
H 2R AR A B R MR T 1E
HOHE 5 4858 T 28 B B K B2 BRI BT B
MBS B -

ERBGEaMBRRE EFRAETHES
BREQENRES  YEERBN TRER
FEKLERNER  URERKBELER
SR ER  BRIFEFEARNESRHERAUE
I P EEMERNERTRE -
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is
made solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations or
the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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e Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence and, where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.
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From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Fong Kwin.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

March 29, 2022
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(Expressed in Renminbi) (LAAEREEZIIR)

Revenue

Other income

Cost of materials

Staff costs

Depreciation of right-of-use assets

Other rentals and related expenses

Depreciation and amortization
of other assets

Advertising and promotion expenses

Delivery service fees

Utilities expenses

Logistic and storage fees

Other expenses

Other net losses

Finance costs

Fair value changes of financial
assets at fair value through profit
or loss (“FVTPL")

Fair value changes of financial
liabilities at FVTPL

Fair value changes of convertible
redeemable preferred shares

Loss before taxation
Income tax

Loss for the year
Attributable to:

Equity shareholders of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Loss for the year
Loss per share

Basic and diluted (RMB)
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The notes on pages 108 to 240 form part of these financial

statements. There are no dividends payable to equity shareholders
of the Company attributable to the profit for the year as disclosed

in note 29(d).

Notes
B 5T

15

23

24

10

2021

202145
RMB’'000
AR®ET T

4,296,618

27,339
(1,400,674)
(1,424,358)
(420,272)
(212,996)
(204,026)
(111,592)
(258,976)
(90,750)
(90,502)
(176,325)
(38,746)
(91,547)

7,560

(11,330)
(4,329,052)
(4,529,629)

4,105

(4,525,524)

(4,524,506)
(1,018)

(4,525,524)

(3.28)

2020
20204
RMB’000
AREEF T
3,057,181
205,951
(1,159,322
(919,096
(352,912
(100,568

(132,757)

(190,095)
(13,207)

(203,302)

(201,872)
(1,430)

(203,302)

(0.20)

F108EE240 A VM B A IRy —
BBy o BMANKTEE29(d) A EE - BB AR
IS BCREEFRRENARE o



Loss for the year

Other comprehensive income
for the year (after tax and
reclassification adjustments)

Item that may be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss:

Exchange differences on translation of:

- financial statements of operations
outside the mainland China

Total comprehensive income for
the year

Attributable to:

Equity shareholders of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Total comprehensive income for
the year

The notes on pages 108 to 240 form part of these financial

statements.
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(Expressed in Renminbi) (AAR#EFIR)

2021 2020
2021% 20204
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBFIT
(4,525,524) (203,302)
(40,446) 4,384
(4,565,970) (198,918)
(4,564,952) (197,488)
(1,018) (1,430)
(4,565,970) (198,918)

F108 B 2240 B M LB A B 75 R A —
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(Expressed in Renminbi) (LAAEREEZIIR)

Non-current assets

Property and equipment
Right-of-use assets
Intangible assets
Investment in an associate
Deferred tax assets

Rental deposits
Prepayments

Current assets
Financial assets at FVTPL

Inventories

Trade and other receivables
Prepayments

Restricted bank deposits
Cash and cash equivalents

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables
Contract liabilities

Bank loans

Redeemable capital contributions
Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Convertible redeemable
preferred shares

Lease liabilities

Current taxation
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FRBEE
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Notes
B 5T

11
11
12
14
27

17

15
16
17
17
18
18

19
20
21
22

24
25
27

December 31,
2021

202145
12A31H
RMB'000
AR¥T

801,363
1,313,334
457
44,238
159,755
338,383

2,657,530

46,200
174,089
176,963
169,109

51,749

4,052,806

4,670,916

654,208
218,054
428

8,376

421,153
27,951

1,330,170

December 31,
2020

2020%F
12A31H
RMB’000
ARETTT

587,116
1,240,066
1,051
27,596
126,695
1,667

1,984,191

103,061
658,172
66,832
100
501,753

1,329,918

500,676

78,551
283,120
465,309

361,881
652,490
364,733

21,431

2,728,191



Net current assets/(liabilities)
Total assets less current liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Interest-bearing borrowing

Lease liabilities

Provisions
Deferred tax liabilities

NET ASSETS/(LIABILITIES)
CAPITAL AND RESERVES

Share capital
Reserves

Total equity/(deficit) attributable
to equity shareholders of
the Company

Non-controlling interests

TOTAL EQUITY/(DEFICIT)

Approved and authorized for issue by the board of directors on

March 29, 2022.

Zhao Lin
Fi=

Chairman of the board

EFR

The notes on pages 108 to 240 form part of these financial

statements.

Notes
B 5T

RBEE(8F)FHE
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(Expressed in Renminbi) (AAR#EFIR)

December 31, December 31,

2021 2020
20214 20204
12A31H 12831H
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARET T ARET T
3,340,746 (1,398,273)
5,998,276 585,918
= 438
1,031,885 991,993
17,934 13,858
5,027 4,046
1,054,846 1,010,335
4,943,430 (424,417)
558 422
4,943,890 (424,839)
4,944,448 (424,417)
(1,018) =
4,943,430 (424,417)

BEEEH 20223 29 B KR RE T3 -

Peng Xin
AL

Executive Director

85 o

HITEF

F108E 2240 K FEBAR AN BB IRKR A —
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

(Expressed in Renminbi) (A ARFIR)

Attributable to equity shareholders

RERREL
Share-based Non- Total
Share Capital payments Exchange  Accumulated controlling (deficit)/
capital reserve reserve reserve losses Total interests equity
HRAE @it
e i BRARA EXGE ZitHE B kBRER  (BB)/BR
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
(i3 ARBTR  ARMTR  ARBTR  ARMTn  ARETR  ARMTR  ARETR  ARETR
note 29(a)  note 29(c)(i)  note 29(c)(ii) note 29(c)(iii) note 29(e)
Wi29@)  BE9(60)  BEO6) K29 ) HizE29(e)
Balance at January 1, 2021 RO1E1B1B2ES 422 (91,797) 10,355 4,381 (347,778) (424,417 - (424,417)
Changes i equity for 2021: NN FHRERD
Loss for the year TEEER - - - - (4,524,506)  (4,524,506) (1,018)  (4,525,524)
Other comprehensive income Et2ERE - - - (40,448) - (40,446) - (40,446)
Total comprehensive income PENHES - - - (40,446)  (4,524,506)  (4,564,952) (1,018)  (4,565,970)
Effect arising from Reorganization EffEEIVE 2(a) (100) - - - - (100) = (100)
Equity settled share-based transactions  MARIER 2R 5% 2 - - 25,239 - - 25,239 o 25,239
Re-designation of ordinary shares to HERREMETACKIIELR
series C preferred shares (i) (1) (24,822) - - - (24,823) - (24,823)
Automatic conversion of preferred shares 2R EERBLREGES
upon global offering 29()() 114 5,836,367 - - - 5,836,481 - 5,836,481
Issuance of ordinary shares upon global ~ EAREBEREFLEER -
offering, net of issuance costs NREARA 29a) 83 4,096,878 - - - 4,096,961 - 4,096,961
Shares issued to employee incentive RESRBTARIRG
platform 40 19 - - - 59 - 59
RSUs vested BREXRHRAEN - 4493 (4,493) - - - - -
Balance at December 31, 2021 R2021E12R31A 2 &4 558 9,821,138 31,101 (36,065)  (4,872,284) 4,944,448 (1,018) 4,943,430
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

(Expressed in Renminbi) (LAARHEFIR)

Attributable to equity shareholders

BRRRER
Share-based Non-
Share Capital payments Exchange  Accumulated controlling Total
capital reserve reserve reserve losses Total interests deficit
WA Eh
i BAGRE  ERORE EiGE 2ihi o FEREs  (BR)/ER

Notes RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
st ARETR  ARETR  ARMTR  ARBTR  ARMTR  ARBTR  ARMTR  ARETR

note 29(a)  note 29(c)i)  note 29(c)(ii)  note 29(c)(iii) note 29(e)
5757 I T 747 ) O 74 HEE2e)
Balance at January 1, 2020 R202051B1B 268 100 (349) = @) (145,906) (146,158) (3,308) (149,466)
Changes in equity for the year ended ~ EZ2020F12A31ALFEN
December 31, 2020: EREE.
Loss for the year TEEER - - - - (201872) (201,872) (1,430 (203,302)
Other comprehensive income HH2EKE - - - 4,384 - 4,384 - 4,384
Total comprehensive income PENGEE - - - 4384 (201,872) (197,488) (1,430 (198.918)
Issuance of ordinary shares BITERR 32 = = = = 3% = 32%
Acquisition of non-controlling interests IR EmRERS 2100 - (4738) - - - (4738) 4738 -
Equity settled share-based transactions  MARIES (T2 %5 28 S = 14,199 = - 14,199 = 14199
Exercise of share options fiiEEhE 0] 2 13,567 (3.844) - - 9,725 - 9,725
Re-designation of ordinary shares FERRENEEACKIIB R
to series C preferred shares (il 6) (100,277) - - - (100,283) - (100,283)
Balance at December 31, 2020 R2020812A31 A28 42 (91,797) 10,355 4381 (347,778) (a24.417) - (A24.417)
Notes: BT -
():  The shares issued was related to the exercised shares granted under the Share (i): RREBETHRMEFAARRRBIBBERETSET
Option Plan by Company during the year (note 28). BFTRERR (7 B B (T 3E28) »
(i): This represents the deemed repurchase and re-designation of ordinary shares. (i): EEKRIEDEREFNEEEBER TRROEER
The par value and difference between fair value and par value of ordinary shares AN EEEAERENEBEES AR RERGFEE
are debited to share capital and capital reserve accordingly (note 29). (B3E29) °

The notes on pages 108 to 240 form part of these financial SE108 H £ 240 B MM s i A AN BA TS SRR 0 —

statements.
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(Expressed in Renminbi) (LAAEREEZIIR)

2021 2020
20214 20204
Notes RMB’'000 RMB’000
Bt aE ARMF T AREFT
Operating activities RETEE)
Cash generated from operations FRETIEE iﬁ(ﬁ 18(b) 511,407 568,408
Income tax paid BT ATEH 27(a) (5,357) (2,543)
Income tax refunded RIBFTSH 27(a) 34 8,480
Net cash generated from RETHAESHRLSTH
operating activities 506,084 574,345
Investing activities BRETE
Payment for purchases of property BB Y MRERNNR
and equipment (749,106) (243,397)
Proceeds from disposal of property HE YR F BRI TSI
and equipment 1,342 651
Payment for purchases of intangible BEEFEEMNTR
assets - (94)
Payment for provisions BB TRIE 26 (572) (1,262)
Payment for guarantee deposits of REMNEEBENRE SR
forward foreign exchange structure INE:N
contracts 18(a) (9,201) -
Purchase of financial assets ﬁ%%ﬁ%ﬁﬂﬁ% (425,140) (30,000)
Proceeds from financial assets SREEMSIIA 426,342 30,247
Payment for purchases of equity ﬁﬁ/\ﬂfﬁn BHR
security 15 (38,640) -

Net cash used in investing activities REZFEFTAESFE (794,975) (243,855)



Financing activities

Issuance of shares to employee
incentive platform

Issuance of shares upon initial public
offering, net of issuing costs paid

Proceeds from issuance of convertible
redeemable preferred shares

Proceeds from bank loans and other
borrowing

Repayment of bank loans

Proceeds from issuance of
redeemable capital contributions

(Repayments of)/proceeds from
issuance of warrants, onshore loans
and convertible note

Repayment of redeemable capital
contributions arising from
Reorganization

Proceeds from exercise of share
options

Payment of capital element and
interest element of lease liabilities

Interest of bank loans paid

Proceeds from policy-based discount
interest

Placement of restricted bank deposits

Release of restricted bank deposits

Capital injection from equity
shareholders

Listing expenses paid

Advances from related parties

Repayments of advances from related
parties

Net cash generated from financing
activities

Net increase in cash and cash
equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents
at January 1, 2021

Effect of foreign exchange
rate changes

Cash and cash equivalents
at December 31, 2021

BMEEH
& 8RB ¥ & BT

BRARABERRITHRG
HIRR B ST BV B TR

BT [ B S AR
FS5RIR

PITERREMED
ﬁﬁ/\a:th

1EEfETTEW\

TR BOERTER
T8 3R

BITRBIESE - BAERR
AR (EE
HIE),/FERIE

(B AR T

1T RIS 58

EEQ%EEEE%E’\JEKE‘B%&
|/ v [N
ERITERF R

ABR B AR BRI T B 6
PSR
ﬁﬁﬁ?xﬁﬁfﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ

PR IR SRTT 175K
BERFTE

Eff EWRX

R 5 2R
BERMB BN

BEEE SRS TFHE
REeERBSEEYEINFE
M2021F1B1BEWNERER
HEZEEY
ExgHNEE

R2021F12831HPRER

ReSEY

The notes on pages 108 to 240 form part of these financial

statements.

Notes
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18(c)

18(c)

18(a)

18(a)
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2021
20214
RMB’'000

ARBTR

59
4,096,961

523,277

(283,120)

591,987
(200,000)

(381,000)
10,735

(462,485)
(2,351)

1,500
100
328

(3,527)
309

(468)
3,892,305

3,603,414
501,753
(52,361)

4,052,806

(Expressed in Renminbi) (AAR#EFIR)

2020
20204
RMB’000

ARBT T

374,974
(152,620)

234,466

(11,000)

(342,908)
(8,924)

1,000
(10,000)
10,000

(684)
6,485
(8,866)
91,923
422,413
81,296

(1,956)

501,753
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B BAEIERAIN © LAAREEFIIR)

Nayuki Holdings Limited (the “"Company”) (formerly known
as Pindao Holdings Limited) was incorporated in the Cayman
Islands on September 5, 2019 as an exempted company with
limited liability under the Companies Act of the Cayman
Islands.

The Company is an investment holding company and has not
carried on any business since the date of its incorporation save
for the Group's reorganization below. The Company and its
subsidiaries (together as “the Group”) are principally engaged
in the sales of freshly-made tea drinks, baked goods and other
products (the “Business”) in the People’s Republic of China
(the "PRC"). The Company had successfully listed in The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited on 30 June 2021.

(a) Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”), which collective term
includes all applicable individual International Financial
Reporting Standards, International Accounting Standards
("IASs"”) and Interpretations issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (“IASB"”) and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
These financial statements also comply with the applicable
disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the "Stock Exchange”). Significant accounting policies
adopted by the Group are disclosed below.

The IASB has issued certain amendments to IFRSs that
are first effective or available for early adoption for the
current accounting period of the Group. Note 2(c) provides
information on any changes in accounting policies resulting
from initial application of these developments to the
extent that they are relevant to the Group for the current
accounting period reflected in these financial statements.
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(b) Reorganization and basis of presentation

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
December 31, 2021 comprise the Company and its
subsidiaries (together referred to as the "Group”).

Before the completion of the Reorganization, the Business
were carried out through Shenzhen Pindao Food &
Beverage Management Co., Ltd. (“Shenzhen Pindao
Management”) and its subsidiaries established in the PRC
(together referred to as the ""Shenzhen Pindao Group’’),
which are ultimately owned and controlled by Mr. Zhao
Lin and Ms. Peng Xin (collectively the "Founders” or the
"Controlling Shareholders”).

To rationalize the corporate structure in preparation for the
listing of the Company’s shares on the Stock Exchange, the
Group underwent a reorganization (“Reorganization”).

Upon completion of the Reorganization in January 2021,
the Company became the holding company of the
companies now comprising the Group. As all companies
now comprising the Group were controlled by the
Founders before and after the Reorganization, there were
no changes in the economic substances of the ownership
and the business of the Group. The Reorganization only
involved inserting newly formed investment holding
entities with no substantive operations as the new holding
companies of Shenzhen Pindao Management. Accordingly,
the financial statements for the year ended December 31,
2021 has been prepared and presented as if the Company
had always been the holding company of the Group.

Item included in the financial statements of each entity
in the Group are measured using the currency that best
reflects the economic substance of the underlying events
and circumstances relevant to the entity (the “Functional
Currency”). The financial statements are presented in
Renminbi (“RMB"), rounded to the nearest thousand
except for loss per share information.
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B BAEIERAIN © LAAREEFIIR)

(b) B MREEE(E)

(b) Reorganization and basis of presentation

(continued)

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis except that
the following assets and liabilities are stated at their fair
value as explained in the accounting policies set out below:

Financial assets at FVTPL (see note 2(f)(i));

— Financial liabilities at FVTPL (see note 2(g));

— Warrants, onshore loans and convertible note (see note
2(1)); and

— Convertible redeemable preferred shares (see note
2(u)).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with IFRSs requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income
and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and various other
factors that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis of
making the judgements about carrying values of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.
Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised
if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application
of IFRSs that have significant effect on the financial
statements and major sources of estimation uncertainty are
discussed in note 3.
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(c) Changes in accounting policies

The Group has applied the following amendments to IFRSs
issued by the IASB to these financial statements for the
current accounting period:

e Amendment to IFRS 16, Covid-19-related rent
concessions beyond June 30, 2021

e  Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS
16, Interest rate benchmark reform — phase 2

Other than the amendment to IFRS 16, the Group has not
applied any new standard or interpretation that is not yet
effective for the current accounting period. Impacts of the
adoption of the amended IFRSs are discussed below:

Amendment to IFRS 16, Covid-19-related
rent concessions beyond June 30, 2021 (2021
amendment)

The Group previously applied the practical expedient
in IFRS 16 such that as lessee it was not required to
assess whether rent concessions occurring as a direct
consequence of the COVID-19 outbreak were lease
modifications, if the eligibility conditions are met (see note
2(j)). One of these conditions requires the reduction in
lease payments affect only payments originally due on or
before a specified time limit. The 2021 amendment extends
this time limit from June 30, 2021 to June 30, 2022.

Rent concessions received have been accounted for as
negative variable lease payments recognized in profit
or loss in the period in which the event or condition that
triggers those payments occurred. There is no impact on
the opening balance of accumulated losses at January 1,
2021.

() BEBEES

AEEERAGHHERZENH
BEEABER ST EAREFTGHM
Y BIER B 75 S R RO A TMERT

o BB REERE 165 (BF]
K)o R2021F6H30H .2 #a9
COVID-1948F /% & 6

o BRI BMEEAFINR - B
SETERIFEI9 - RS B®RE
RERIFET75 - BRI RS LR
FAR R BRMBHREERF16
BUBRIAR) » FIEBEEUE-F

—[EE

B BIRR 1 75 & E RSB 1658 B AT
ZiI I S iy YRR AN
SRR AR ERIKRE
BR A1 5T RO B R B 5 R 5 2 I
FEIWMAT

B BX BY 7% #R & 2E R E 16 95 (15 5T
K) - R20214F 6 H30 HZ # £
COVID-1948F5 1 & 2 & (2021 4F 1%
&)

NE B R E AR RS 2R
FI6RARERBEE 257 - ELE
BEMEAN - WG EE GG - IS
AFEECOVID-19% & M B B
mWiHEEREEBRES SR
F2() o HR —HE KM ERAENR
ER R D BT E RN E T HR A
Z A EIHAE 3R o 2021 FE B FT AN 15
B R #2021 6 A30H IE R E 2022
F6H30H -

BEkENEcEREERETEZMA
ENRAR  TREHEZENMTRLN
EHE IR FE AR AEE - B
20211 A1 B8 BRI Y] 25T BB 8R5R
HEFE -

m



112  Nayuki Holdings Limited - ZXEMHZIZRAR A7)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B BAEIERAIN © LAAREEFIIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2 EXREFBEGE

(c) Changes in accounting policies (continued) (c) ETHEREE(E)

Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and
IFRS 16, Interest rate benchmark reform — phase 2

The amendments provide targeted reliefs from (i)
accounting for changes in the basis for determining
contractual cash flows of financial assets, financial liabilities
and lease liabilities as modifications, and (ii) discontinuing
hedge accounting when an interest rate benchmark is
replaced by an alternative benchmark rate as a result of
the reform of interbank offered rates (“IBOR reform”). The
amendments do not have an impact on these financial
statements as the Group does not have contracts that are
indexed to benchmark interest rates which are subject to
the IBOR reform.

(d) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights,
to variable returns from its involvement with the entity and
has the ability to affect those returns through its power
over the entity. When assessing whether the Group has
power, only substantive rights (held by the Group and
other parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that
control commences until the date that control ceases.
Intra-group balances, transactions and cash flows and any
unrealized profits arising from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated financial
statements. Unrealized losses resulting from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in the same way as unrealized
gains but only to the extent that there is no evidence of
impairment.
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(d) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

(continued)

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a
subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to the
Company, and in respect of which the Group has not
agreed any additional terms with the holders of those
interests which would result in the Group as a whole having
a contractual obligation in respect of those interests
that meets the definition of a financial liability. For each
business combination, the Group can elect to measure
any non-controlling interests either at fair value or at
the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of the
subsidiary’s net identifiable assets.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position within
equity, separately from equity attributable to the equity
shareholders of the Company. Non-controlling interests
in the results of the Group are presented on the face
of the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income as an allocation of the total
profit or loss and total comprehensive income for the
year between non-controlling interests and the equity
shareholders of the Company.

Changes in the Group's interests in a subsidiary that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions, whereby adjustments are made to
the amounts of controlling and non-controlling interests
within consolidated equity to reflect the change in relative
interests, but no adjustments are made to goodwill and no
gain or loss is recognized.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in that
subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being recognized in
profit or loss.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an
investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment
losses (see note 2(k)(ii)).
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(e) Associates

An associate is an entity in which the Group or Company
has significant influence, but not control or joint control,
over its management, including participation in the
financial and operating policy decisions.

An investment in an associate is accounted for in the
consolidated financial statements under the equity
method. Under the equity method, the investment is
initially recorded at cost, adjusted for any excess of the
Group's share of the acquisition-date fair values of the
investee’s identifiable net assets over the cost of the
investment (if any). The cost of the investment includes
purchase price, other costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of the investment, and any direct investment
into the associate that forms part of the Group’s equity
investment. Thereafter, the investment is adjusted for
the post acquisition change in the Group's share of the
investee’s net assets and any impairment loss relating to
the investment (see note 2(k)(ii)). At each reporting date,
the Group assesses whether there is any objective evidence
that the investment is impaired. Any acquisition-date
excess over cost, the Group's share of the post-acquisition,
post-tax results of the investees and any impairment
losses for the year are recognized in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, whereas the Group's share of
the post-acquisition post-tax items of the investees’ other
comprehensive income is recognized in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive

income.

When the Group's share of losses exceeds its interest in
the associate, the Group's interest is reduced to nil and
recognition of further losses is discontinued except to the
extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the investee.
For this purpose, the Group'’s interest is the carrying
amount of the investment under the equity method,
together with any other long-term interests that in
substance form part of the Group's net investment in the
associate.
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(e) Associates (continued)

Unrealized profits and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associate are eliminated to
the extent of the Group’s interest in the investee, except
where unrealized losses provide evidence of an impairment
of the asset transferred, in which case they are recognized
immediately in profit or loss.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment
in a joint venture or vice versa, the retained interest is
not remeasured. Instead, the investment continues to be
accounted for under the equity method.

In all other cases, when the Group ceases to have joint
control over an associate, it is accounted for as a disposal
of the entire interest in that investee, with a resulting
gain or loss being recognized in profit or loss. Any
interest retained in that former investee at the date when
significant influence is lost is recognized at fair value
and this amount is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition of a financial asset (see note 2(f)).

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in associates are stated at cost less impairment
losses (see note 2(k)).

Other investments in debt and equity securities

The Group's policies for investments in debt and equity
securities, other than investments in subsidiaries and an
associate, are set out below.

Investments in debt and equity securities are recognized/
derecognized on the date the Group commits to purchase/
sell the investment. The investments are initially stated
at fair value plus directly attributable transaction costs,
except for those investments measured at fair value
through profit or loss (FVTPL) for which transaction
costs are recognized directly in profit or loss. For an
explanation of how the Group determines fair value of
financial instruments, see note 30(e). These investments are
subsequently accounted for as follows, depending on their
classification.

(e) BEER
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(f) Other investments in debt and equity securities
(continued)

(i)

Investments other than equity investments

Non-equity investments held by the Group are
classified into one of the following measurement
categories:

— amortized cost, if the investment is held for

the collection of contractual cash flows which
represent solely payments of principal and interest.
Interest income from the investment is calculated
using the effective interest method (see note 2(y)

(i)

— fair value through other comprehensive income

(FVOCI) - recycling, if the contractual cash flows
of the investment comprise solely payments
of principal and interest and the investment is
held within a business model whose objective is
achieved by both the collection of contractual
cash flows and sale. Changes in fair value are
recognized in other comprehensive income,
except for the recognition in profit or loss of
expected credit losses, interest income (calculated
using the effective interest method) and foreign
exchange gains and losses. When the investment
is derecognized, the amount accumulated in other
comprehensive income is recycled from equity to
profit or loss.

— fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) if the

investment does not meet the criteria for being
measured at amortized cost or FVOCI (recycling).
Changes in the fair value of the investment
(including interest) are recognized in profit or loss.
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Other investments in debt and equity securities

(continued)

(i) Equity investments
An investment in equity securities is classified as FVTPL
unless the equity investment is not held for trading
purposes and on initial recognition of the investment
the Group makes an irrevocable election to designate
the investment at FVOCI (non-recycling) such that
subsequent changes in fair value are recognized in
other comprehensive income. Such elections are made
on an instrument-by-instrument basis, but may only
be made if the investment meets the definition of
equity from the issuer’s perspective. Where such an
election is made, the amount accumulated in other
comprehensive income remains in the fair value reserve
(non-recycling) until the investment is disposed of.
At the time of disposal, the amount accumulated in
the fair value reserve (non-recycling) is transferred to
retained earnings. It is not recycled through profit or
loss.

(9) Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are recognized at fair
value. At the end of each reporting period the fair value
is remeasured. The gain or loss on remeasurement to fair
value is recognized immediately in profit or loss.

Property and equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (see note
2(k)(ii)). Construction in progress represents property and
equipment under construction, which is stated at cost less
any impairment losses, and is not depreciated.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of
an item of property and equipment are determined as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item and are recognized in profit or
loss on the date of retirement or disposal.
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(h) Property and equipment (continued)

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost or valuation
of items of property and equipment, less their estimated
residual value, if any, using the straight-line method over
their estimated useful lives as follows:

Over the shorter of
the lease term or
the estimated useful

Leasehold improvements life of the asset

Kitchen equipment 3 -5 years
Furniture equipment 3 - 5years
Electronic equipment and others 3 -5years

Right-of-use assets Over the lease term
Both the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if any,
are reviewed annually.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Group are stated
at cost less accumulated amortization (where the estimated
useful life is finite) and impairment losses (see note 2(k)(ii)).

Amortization of intangible assets with finite useful lives is
charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
assets’ estimated useful lives. The following intangible
assets with finite useful lives are amortized from the date
they are available for use and their estimated useful lives
are as follows:
— Software 10 years
Both the period and method of amortization are reviewed
annually.
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(j)) Leased assets

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether the
contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains,
a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration. Control is conveyed where the customer has
both the right to direct the use of the identified asset and
to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from
that use.

As a lessee

At the lease commencement date, the Group recognizes
a right-of-use asset and a lease liability, except for short-
term leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less
and leases of low-value assets which, for the Group are
apartments and storage. When the Group enters into a
lease in respect of a low-value asset, the Group decides
whether to capitalize the lease on a lease-by-lease basis.
The lease payments associated with those leases which
are not capitalized are recognized as an expense on a
systematic basis over the lease term.

Where the lease is capitalized, the lease liability is initially
recognized at the present value of the lease payments
payable over the lease term, discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily
determined, using a relevant incremental borrowing rate.
After initial recognition, the lease liability is measured at
amortized cost and interest expense is calculated using
the effective interest method. Variable lease payments that
do not depend on an index or rate are not included in the
measurement of the lease liability and hence are charged
to profit or loss in the accounting year in which they are
incurred.
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() Leased assets (continued)

() HEREE(E)

As a lessee (continued)

The right-of-use asset recognized when a lease is
capitalized is initially measured at cost, which comprises
the initial amount of the lease liability plus any lease
payments made at or before the commencement date, and
any initial direct costs incurred. Where applicable, the cost
of the right-of-use assets also includes an estimate of costs
to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore
the underlying asset or the site on which it is located,
discounted to their present value, less any lease incentives
received. The right-of-use asset is subsequently stated at
cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses
(see notes 2(h) and 2(k)(ii)).

The initial fair value of refundable rental deposits is
accounted for separately from the right-of-use assets
in accordance with the accounting policy applicable to
investments in debt securities carried at amortized cost
(see notes 2(f)(i), 2(y)(ii) and 2(k)(i)). Any difference between
the initial fair value and the nominal value of the deposits
is accounted for as additional lease payments made and is
included in the cost of right-of-use assets.

The lease liability is remeasured when there is a change in
future lease payments arising from a change in an index
or rate, or there is a change in the Group's estimate of
the amount expected to be payable under a residual
value guarantee, or there is a change arising from the
reassessment of whether the Group will be reasonably
certain to exercise a purchase, extension or termination
option. When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a
corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount
of the right-of-use asset or is recorded in profit or loss if the
carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been reduced
to zero.
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Leased assets (continued)
As a lessee (continued)

The lease liability is also remeasured when there is a
change in the scope of a lease or the consideration for
a lease that is not originally provided for in the lease
contract (“lease modification”) that is not accounted
for as a separate lease. In this case the lease liability is
remeasured based on the revised lease payments and
lease term using a revised discount rate at the effective
date of the modification. The only exceptions are any rent
concessions which arose as a direct consequence of the
COVID-19 pandemic and which satisfied the conditions
set out in paragraph 46B of IFRS 16 Leases. In such cases,
the Group has taken advantage of the practical expedient
not to assess whether the rent concessions are lease
modifications, and recognized the change in consideration
as negative variable lease payments in profit or loss in the
period in which the event or condition that triggers the rent
concessions occurred.

In the consolidated statement of financial position, the
current portion of long-term lease liabilities is determined
as the present value of contractual payments that are due
to be settled within twelve months after the reporting
period.

Credit losses and impairment of assets
(i) Credit losses from financial instruments

The Group recognizes a loss allowance for expected
credit losses (ECLs) on the financial assets measured at
amortized cost (including cash and cash equivalents,
trade receivables and other receivables).

Other financial assets measured at fair value, including
equity and debt securities measured at FVTPL, are not
subject to the ECL assessment.

(j)
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(k) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(continued)

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments

(continued)

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit
losses. Credit losses are measured as the present
value of all expected cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference
between the cash flows due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows that
the Group expects to receive).

The expected cash shortfalls of fixed-rate financial
assets and trade and other receivables are discounted
using the effective interest rate determined at initial
recognition or an approximation thereof where the
effect of discounting is material.

The maximum period considered when estimating
ECLs is the maximum contractual period over which the
Group is exposed to credit risk.

In measuring ECLs, the Group takes into account
reasonable and supportable information that is
available without undue cost or effort. This includes
information about past events, current conditions and
forecasts of future economic conditions.

ECLs are measured on either of the following bases:

— 12-month ECLs: these are losses that are expected
to result from possible default events within the 12
months after the reporting date; and

— lifetime ECLs: these are losses that are expected
to result from all possible default events over the
expected lives of the items to which the ECL model

applies.
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k) EEBELREEREGE)

(k) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(continued)

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments () =MTAMEEEEE)

(continued)

Measurement of ECLs (continued)

Loss allowances for trade receivables are always
measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs. ECLs on
these financial assets are estimated using a provision
matrix based on the Group’s historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the
debtors and an assessment of both the current and
forecast general economic conditions at the reporting
date.

For all other financial instruments, the Group
recognizes a loss allowance equal to 12-month ECLs
unless there has been a significant increase in credit
risk of the financial instrument since initial recognition,
in which case the loss allowance is measured at an
amount equal to lifetime ECLs.

Significant increases in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk of a financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk of default
occurring on the financial instrument assessed at
the reporting date with that assessed at the date of
initial recognition. In making this reassessment, the
Group considers that a default event occurs when (i)
the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations
to the Group in full, without recourse by the Group
to actions such as realizing security (if any is held); or
(i) the financial asset is 90 days past due. The Group
considers both quantitative and qualitative information
that is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort.
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(k) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(continued)

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments

(continued)

Significant increases in credit risk (continued)

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition:

- failure to make payments of principal or interest on
their contractually due dates;

— an actual or expected significant deterioration in
a financial instrument’s external or internal credit
rating (if available);

— an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the operating results of the debtor; and

— existing or forecast changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that have a
significant adverse effect on the debtor’s ability to
meet its obligation to the Group.

Depending on the nature of the financial instruments,
the assessment of a significant increase in credit risk is
performed on either an individual basis or a collective
basis. When the assessment is performed on a
collective basis, the financial instruments are grouped
based on shared credit risk characteristics, such as past
due status and credit risk ratings.

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting date to reflect
changes in the financial instrument’s credit risk since
initial recognition. Any change in the ECL amount is
recognized as an impairment gain or loss in profit or
loss. The Group recognizes an impairment gain or
loss for all financial instruments with a corresponding
adjustment to their carrying amount through a loss
allowance account.
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(k) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments
(continued)

Basis of calculation of interest income

Interest income recognized in accordance with note
2(y)(ii) is calculated based on the gross carrying amount
of the financial asset unless the financial asset is credit-
impaired, in which case interest income is calculated
based on the amortized cost (i.e. the gross carrying
amount less loss allowance) of the financial asset.

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether
a financial asset is credit-impaired. A financial asset is
credit-impaired when one or more events that have a
detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows
of the financial asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired
includes the following observable events:

- significant financial difficulties of the debtor;

— abreach of contract, such as a default or past due
event;

— it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
into bankruptcy or other financial reorganization;

— significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an
adverse effect on the debtor;

— the disappearance of an active market for a
security because of financial difficulties of the
issuer.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MERRME

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B} BH3ERHIN

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(k) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(continued)

(i)

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments
(continued)

Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written
off (either partially or in full) to the extent that there
is no realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally
the case when the Group determines that the debtor
does not have assets or sources of income that could
generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts
subject to the write-off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was previously
written off are recognized as a reversal of impairment
in profit or loss in the period in which the recovery
occurs.

Impairment of other non-current assets

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period to
identify indications that the following assets may be
impaired or an impairment loss previously recognized
no longer exists or may have decreased:

— property and equipment, including right-of-use
assets;

— intangible assets;

— investments in subsidiaries in the Company's
statement of financial position; and

— investments in associates
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k) EEBELREEREGE)

(k) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(continued)
(i) Impairment of other non-current assets
(continued)

(i) BfbIFnBEERE &)

MERBRPR - AetitEE
BRI E S R

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated.

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater
of its fair value less costs of disposal and value
in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset. Where
an asset does not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other assets, the
recoverable amount is determined for the smallest
group of assets that generates cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit). A
portion of the carrying amount of a corporate asset
(for example, head office building) is allocated to
an individual cash-generating unit if the allocation
can be done on a reasonable and consistent basis,
or to the smallest group of cash-generating units if
otherwise.

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognized in profit or loss
if the carrying amount of an asset, or the cash-
generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds
its recoverable amount. Impairment losses
recognized in respect of cash-generating units
are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount
of any goodwill allocated to the cash-generating
unit (or group of units) and then, to reduce the
carrying amount of the other assets in the unit (or
group of units) on a pro rata basis, except that
the carrying value of an asset will not be reduced
below its individual fair value less costs of disposal
(if measurable) or value in use (if determinable).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MERRME

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (FrRBHHIAI - UAREZITR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 EREFBE(E)
(continued)
(k) Credit losses and impairment of assets SEEEMEEREE)
(continued)
(i) Impairment of other non-current assets (i) A#IEmE) & ERE (&)
(continued)
- Reversals of impairment losses - REEERD
An impairment loss is reversed if there has been fis FA 1ETEE 7B °] W [l 2 BB A 1
a favorable change in the estimates used to SHHBRANEE - RIE LR
determine the recoverable amount. BEEE -
A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to BEBERORNZEEL
the asset’s carrying amount that would have BEFEYEERBEREE
been determined had no impairment loss been MENRTEREETZEKR®@
recognized in prior years. Reversals of impairment B - BEEBERERE R
losses are credited to profit or loss in the year in Bl FEF AL °

which the reversals are recognized.

(iii) Interim financial reporting and impairment (iii) BRI R & R s (8

Under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on R IRH R P RE %J:m%ﬁﬁﬂ NS
the Stock Exchange, the Group is required to prepare EBESTHE ST ERFEI45R
an interim financial report in compliance with HKAS [FHIBI SR E M A R RE S
34, Interim financial reporting, in respect of the first BFEERNEOER 2 R
six months of the financial year. At the end of the £ o AR ERR - AREBEII A
interim period, the Group applies the same impairment R F R FARAMERDEE R
testing, recognition, and reversal criteria as it would at i 3R N [B] 88 42 2 (BB RE 2k (i) M
the end of the financial year (see notes 2k(i) and 2k(ii)). 2k(ii)) °

Impairment losses recognized in an interim period in HEEmE - NP HHERERS
respect of goodwill are not reversed in a subsequent BEBBRISEHRARTE -
period. This is the case even if no loss, or a smaller loss, B (g% R A B %5
would have been recognized had the impairment been FREKREMEREN GFERA
assessed only at the end of the financial year to which R BB T RER M BB R R A

the interim period relates. "Ry e rEFREEE -
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Inventories

Inventories are assets which are held for sale in the ordinary
course of business, in the process of production for such
sale or in the form of materials or supplies to be consumed
in the production process or in the rendering of services.

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net
realizable value. Net realizable value is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business less the
estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale.

Cost of inventories are calculated using the weighted
average cost formula and comprises all costs of purchase,
costs of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognized as an expense in the year in which
the related revenue is recognized.

The amount of any write-down of inventories to net
realizable value and all losses of inventories are recognized
as an expense in the year the write-down or loss occurs.
The amount of any reversal of any write-down of
inventories is recognized as a reduction in the amount
of inventories recognized as an expense in the period in
which the reversal occurs.

)Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognized when the customer
pays non-refundable consideration before the Group
recognizes the related revenue (see note 2(y)). A
contract liability would also be recognized if the Group
has an unconditional right to receive non-refundable
consideration before the Group recognizes the related
revenue. In such cases, a corresponding receivable would
also be recognized (see note 2(n)).

For a single contract with the customer, either a net
contract asset or a net contract liability is presented. For
multiple contracts, contract assets and contract liabilities of
unrelated contracts are not presented on a net basis.
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B BAEIERAIN © LAAREEFIIR)

(n) Trade and other receivables (n) B 5 K& Hfib e W zkI8

A receivable is recognized when the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration. A right to
receive consideration is unconditional if only the passage
of time is required before payment of that consideration is
due.

Receivables are stated at amortized cost using the effective
interest method less allowance for credit losses (see note

2(k)(0)).

(0) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on
hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash
and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value, having been within three months of maturity at
acquisition. Cash and cash equivalents are assessed for
expected credit losses (ECL) in accordance with the policy
set out in note 2(k)(i).

(p) Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs
directly attributable to the issuance of new shares or
options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from
the proceeds.

(9) Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognized at fair
value. Subsequent to initial recognition, trade and other
payables are stated at amortized cost unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are
stated at invoice amounts.
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(r)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B} BH3ERHIN

Redeemable capital contributions

Redeemable capital contributions are classified as financial
liabilities as they are redeemable on a specific date or
at the option of the shareholders (including options that
are only exercisable in case of triggering events having
occurred). The liability is recognized and measured in
accordance with the Group’s policy for interest-bearing
borrowings set out in note 2(s) and accordingly dividends
thereon are recognized on an accrual basis in profit or loss
as part of finance costs.

The financial instruments have been converted into
convertible redeemable preferred shares and subsequently
into ordinary shares of the Company upon its successful
listing on June 30, 2021.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are measured initially at
fair value less transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated at
amortized cost using the effective interest method. Interest
expense is recognized in accordance with the Group's
accounting policy for borrowing costs (see note 2(bb)).

Warrants, onshore loans and convertible note

(i) Warrants and onshore loans

In prior year, the Company had issued warrants to
its investors. Upon an exercise of the warrants which
was subject to some specified events, the investors
would be issued with certain series of preferred shares.
In connection to the issuance of the warrants, the
investors had provided onshore loans to one of the
subsidiaries of the Group. The consideration received
is initially allocated to the warrants and onshore loans.
The warrants and onshore loans are accounted for
separately. Upon the investors exercise the warrants,
the subsidiary of the Group is required to repay the
onshore loans to the investors, which will be used to
pay for the exercise price of the warrants.
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B} BH3ERHIN

(t) Warrants, onshore loans and convertible note
(continued)

(i)

(ii)

Warrants and onshore loans (continued)

Warrants liabilities are initially recognized at fair
value on the date the warrants are issued and are
subsequently re-measured to their fair value at the end
of each reporting period.

Onshore loans contain embedded derivatives such
as the extension feature. The loans are accounted
for in their entirety at fair value. Subsequent to initial
recognition, the onshore loans are re-measured to
their fair value at the end of each reporting period with
changes in fair value being recognized in profit or loss,
except that changes in fair value of the onshore loans
that are attributable to changes in their own credit risk
are presented in other comprehensive income.

The financial instruments have been converted
into convertible redeemable preferred shares and
subsequently into ordinary shares of the Company
upon its successful listing on June 30, 2021.

Convertible note

In prior year, the Company had issued a convertible
note to its investor. The convertible note is
automatically converted into certain series of preferred
shares upon an occurrence of some specified event.
The convertible note contains both a debt component
and an embedded derivative component (conversion
option that will be settled other than by the exchange
of a fixed amount of cash or another financial asset for
a fixed number of the Group’s own equity instruments).
The convertible note is accounted in its entirety
at fair value. Subsequent to initial recognition, the
convertible note is re-measured to fair value at the
end of each reporting period with changes in fair value
being recognized in profit or loss, except that changes
in fair value of the convertible note that are attributable
to changes in its own credit risk are presented in other
comprehensive income.

AANREEDITR)

(t) T HX 1’% FEl

BAE RN AR

—Tﬁ(@)

(i)

(ii)

BERENEN(E)
R E FEREVTRRBREER

TTEMN DA EERER  HES
M ERENSHEHRNOA
BfE-

BAERBERARXNTETER
(LNIEEATHEE) - BEZREERE T&“
BEAR - MIFHERE  BERE
FRERERRETTEELR
ﬁﬁ'ﬂﬁﬁf FH) I8
R MEFERELRAF EERRE
FBHIRAER AR BEEHNE
tEEmREE 2 -

2‘;\

ST AEDN2021%E6A308
Ih E g iR A n] s it 0] i 018

i BREBJARAER
B e
CIEJ e 4

RBEFE  ARREEHEKE
BETUBMBREE - M —&BE
ETHRTEEE  TBRREEAD
B AE T RIEBERR - TR
EROEEBE S RBRARITE
TAHS(BUBEELERES K
Hib &b EERIREEEHE WA
EEBPERERTAUIIN AR
HERERIEIERE) - AIMRE
BEBEBUAABEAR - (125
Rie o TBRBREBR SRS IR
EEEAAREE BEARE

EZPNEaER  ERERE
rEEERBRESHNAIRRER

AABEEFREME2EKEZE
bl o



(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B} BH3ERHIN

(t) Warrants, onshore loans and convertible note

-

(continued)
(i) Convertible note (continued)

The financial instruments have been converted
into convertible redeemable preferred shares and
subsequently into ordinary shares of the Company
upon its successful listing on June 30, 2021.

Convertible redeemable preferred shares

The Group designated the convertible redeemable
preferred shares as financial liabilities at FVTPL. They
are initially recognized at fair value. Subsequent to initial
recognition, the convertible redeemable preferred shares
are re-measured to fair value at the end of each reporting
period with changes in fair value being recognized in profit
or loss, except that changes in fair value of the convertible
note that are attributable to changes in its own credit risk
are presented in other comprehensive income.

The re-designation of ordinary shares held by the
controlling shareholders to preferred shares was
accounted for as deemed repurchase of ordinary shares
and deemed issuance of convertible redeemable preferred
shares. The deemed repurchase of ordinary shares is
measured at fair value of ordinary shares and debited to
share capital and capital reserves accordingly, and the
deemed issuance of convertible redeemable preferred
shares is measured at fair value of the preferred shares
issued. The difference between fair value of ordinary shares
and Series C Preferred Shares is recognized as share-based
compensation expenses according to IFRS 2 since the
holders of ordinary shares deemed to be repurchased are
employees of the Group.

All convertible redeemable preferred shares have been
automatically converted into ordinary shares upon the
Company's successful listing on June 30, 2021.
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134  Nayuki Holdings Limited - ZXSB & FIERER A

(v) Employee benefits

(i) Short-term employee benefits and contributions

to defined contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement plans
and the cost of non-monetary benefits are accrued
in the year in which the associated services are
rendered by employees. Where payment or settlement
is deferred and the effect would be material, these
amounts are stated at their present values.

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations of the
PRC, the Group participates in a defined contribution
basic pension insurance in the social insurance
system established and managed by government
organizations. The Group makes contributions to
basic pension insurance plans based on the applicable
benchmarks and rates stipulated by the government.
The local government authorities are responsible
for the pension obligations payable to the retired
employees covered under the defined contribution
basic pension insurance. There are no forfeited
contributions for the defined contribution basic
pension insurance in the PRC social insurance system
as the contributions are fully vested to the employees
upon payment to the scheme.

The Group also operates a Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme under the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees
employed under the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong
Employment Ordinance. Contributions to the plan vest
immediately. There are no forfeited contributions for
the the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes as the
contributions are fully vested to the employees upon
payment to the scheme.

Contributions to defined contribution retirement plans
are recognized as part of the cost of assets or charged
to profit or loss as the related services are rendered by
the employees.
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(v) BERFI(E)
(i) BEREIEF

(v) Employee benefits (continued)

(i) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognized at the earlier of
when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of
those benefits and when it recognizes restructuring
costs involving the payment of termination benefits.

(iii) Share-based payments

The Group operates share incentive plan, under which
it receives services from directors and employees
as consideration for equity instruments (including
share options and Restricted Share Units (“RSUs")) of
the Group. The fair value of the services received in
exchange for the grant of the equity instruments (share
options and RSUs) is recognized as an expense in the
consolidated statements of profit or loss.

Share options

For grant of share options, the total amount to be
expensed is determined by reference to the fair value
of the options granted by using option-pricing models:

— including any market performance conditions;

- excluding the impact of any service and non-
market performance vesting conditions; and

— including the impact of any non-vesting
conditions.

The total expense is recognized over the vesting
period, which is the period over which all of the
specified vesting conditions are to be satisfied. At the
end of each period, the Group revises its estimates of
the number of options that are expected to vest based
on the non-market vesting and service conditions.
It recognizes the impact of the revision to original
estimates, if any, in profit or loss, with a corresponding
adjustment to equity.
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(v) BERM(E)

(v) Employee benefits (continued)

(iii) Share-based payments (continued)

RSUs

For grant of RSUs, the total amount to be expensed
is determined by reference to the fair value of the
Group's shares at the grant date.

The total expense is recognized over the vesting
period, which is the period over which all of the
specified vesting conditions are to be satisfied. At the
end of each period, the Group revises its estimates of
the number of RSUs that are expected to vest based
on service condition. It recognizes the impact of the
revision to original estimates, if any, in profit or loss,
with a corresponding adjustment to equity.

Share-based payment transaction among group
entities

The grant by the Company of share incentive plan over
its equity instruments to the employees of subsidiaries
undertakings in the Group is treated as a capital
contribution. The fair value of employee services
received, measured by reference to the grant date
fair value, is recognized over the vesting period as an
increase to investment in subsidiaries undertakings,
with a corresponding credit to equity in separate
financial statements of the Company.

(w) Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities are
recognized in profit or loss except to the extent that they
relate to items recognized in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, in which case the relevant amounts
of tax are recognized in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period,
and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous
years.
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(w) Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being the
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax
bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses
and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that
it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the asset can be utilized, are recognized.
Future taxable profits that may support the recognition
of deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences include those that will arise from the reversal
of existing taxable temporary differences, provided those
differences relate to the same taxation authority and the
same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either in
the same year as the expected reversal of the deductible
temporary difference or in years into which a tax loss
arising from the deferred tax asset can be carried back or
forward. The same criteria are adopted when determining
whether existing taxable temporary differences support the
recognition of deferred tax assets arising from unused tax
losses and credits, that is, those differences are taken into
account if they relate to the same taxation authority and
the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in a
year, or years, in which the tax loss or credit can be utilized.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from goodwill not deductible for tax purposes, the
initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect neither
accounting nor taxable profit (provided they are not part
of a business combination), and temporary differences
relating to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that,
in the case of taxable differences, the Group controls the
timing of the reversal and it is probable that the differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future, or in the case of
deductible differences, unless it is probable that they will
reverse in the future.
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B BAEIERAIN © LAAREEFIIR)

(w) FT{SH (%)

(w) Income tax (continued)

The amount of deferred tax recognized is measured based
on the expected manner of realization or settlement of
the carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax
rates enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the
reporting period. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and is reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow the related tax benefit to
be utilized. Any such reduction is reversed to the extent
that it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profits will
be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution
of dividends are recognized when the liability to pay the
related dividends is recognized.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset
against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets
against deferred tax liabilities, if the Company or the
Group has the legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and the following
additional conditions are met:

— in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Company or the Group intends either to settle on a
net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously; or
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(w) Income tax (continued)

— in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either:

— the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities, which, in each future
year in which significant amounts of deferred tax
liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or
recovered, intend to realize the current tax assets
and settle the current tax liabilities on a net basis
or realize and settle simultaneously.

(x) Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognized when the Group has a legal
or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made. Where the time value of money is
material, provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events are also disclosed
as contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote.
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(y) Revenue and other income (y) Ygs & E U A
Income is classified by the Group as revenue when it arises AEBBAEE -—REBBREPHE
from the sale of goods and the provision of services in the EELNIBHRBRERWA S E AWK
ordinary course of the Group's business. e

Revenue is recognized when control over a product or
service is transferred to the customer, at the amount of
promised consideration to which the Group is expected to
be entitled, excluding those amounts collected on behalf
of third parties. Revenue excludes value added tax or other
sales taxes and is after deduction of any trade discounts.

Further details of the Group’s revenue and other income
recognition policies are as follows:

(i) Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group principally generates its revenue from the
sales of freshly-made tea drinks, baked goods and
other products through its operating teahouses and
online food delivery applications. The Group's revenue
is derived from the following sources:

— Sales of freshly-made tea drinks

Revenue from sales of freshly-made tea drinks are
related to the sales of various freshly-made tea
drinks such as fruit tea drinks. Revenues from the
sales of freshly-made tea drinks are recognized
at the point in time when the customers accept
the ordered products and the control over the
products is transferred to the customer. For orders
from online food delivery applications, revenues
are recognized at the point in time when the
goods are delivered to the customers, which is the
point of time and the control over the products is
transferred to the customer.
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(y) Revenue and other income (continued)

(i) Revenue from contracts with customers

(continued)

- Sales of baked goods and other products
Revenues from sales of baked goods and other
products are related to the sales of breads and
other baked goods such as cakes and desserts
which complement the freshly-made tea drinks.
Other products are primarily derived from the
sales of freshly cut fruits, decorative, seasonal
gift boxes and accessories related to the Group's
products. Revenues from sales of baked goods and
other products are recognized at the point in time
when the customers accept the ordered products
and the control over the products is transferred
to the customer. For orders from online food
delivery applications, revenues are recognized at
the point in time when the goods are delivered
to the customers, which is the point of time and
the control over the products is transferred to the
customer.

Discount vouchers and free vouchers for
complimentary drinks and baked products

From time to time, the Group offers its customers
discount vouchers and free vouchers for
complimentary drinks, baked goods and other
products. The discount vouchers and free vouchers
for complimentary drinks, baked goods and other
products can be obtained through three channels: (i)
from qualified purchases when the customers reach
certain amount of spending; (ii) from redemption of
membership points accumulated from the membership
programs of the Group; (iii) distributed for free of
charge by the Group through various promotional and
advertising activities.

(y) Heas R H A A (48)
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142 Nayuki Holdings Limited - ZEMHZEIZRAER A7)

(y) Revenue and other income (continued)

(i) Revenue from contracts with customers

(continued)

Discount vouchers and free vouchers for
complimentary drinks and baked products (continued)
As the discount vouchers and free vouchers for
complimentary drinks, baked goods and other
products obtained through channels (i) and (ii) are
issued concurrent with a revenue transaction, the
Group estimates the value of the future redemption
obligation based on the estimated value of the
products for which the discount vouchers and free
vouchers for complimentary drinks, baked goods and
other products are expected to be redeemed, and
recognizes the estimated fair value in the balance
sheet as contract liability. Subsequently, contract
liability is recognized as revenue at the point in time
when the customer redeems the discount vouchers and
free vouchers for complimentary drinks, baked goods
and other products in future purchases, or when the
Group is legally released from its obligation based on
the expiration date of the discount vouchers and free
vouchers.

For discount vouchers obtained through channel (iii)
for which the granting of such discount vouchers does
not occur concurrently with a revenue transaction, the
discount vouchers are not accounted for when such
vouchers are granted and can only be applied to future
purchases of certain specified products of the Group.
The Group recognizes as a reduction in revenue when
the customers apply the discount vouchers in future
purchases.

Prepaid cards
The Group also offers prepaid cards to its customers
and the cash consideration received from the sales of
prepaid cards are recognized as contract liabilities.
Revenues are recognized upon the usage of the
prepaid cards.

AANREEDITR)
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(y) Revenue and other income (continued)

(i)

(ii)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(continued)

Membership program

The Group offers customers a membership program
for which its customers can earn membership points
from qualified purchases. The membership points
can be used to redeem discount vouchers, cell phone
accessories and other accessories related to the
brandings of the Group.

Customers membership points earned through
qualified purchases are considered as a separate
performance obligation arising from transactions
with customers. The Group estimates the value of the
future redemption obligation based on the estimated
value of the products for which the membership points
are expected to be redeemed based on historical
redemption patterns, including an estimate of the
breakage for points that will not be redeemed.

Interest income

Interest income is recognized as it accrues under the
effective interest method using the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts through
the expected life of the financial assets to the gross
carrying amount of the financial assets.

(iii) Government grants

Government grants are recognized in the statement
of financial position initially when there is reasonable
assurance that they will be received and that the
Group will comply with the conditions attaching to
them. Grants that compensate the Group for expenses
incurred are recognized as income in profit or loss
on a systematic basis in the same years in which the
expenses are incurred. Grants that compensate the
Group for the cost of an asset are deducted from
the carrying amount of the asset and consequently
are effectively recognized in profit or loss over the
useful life of the asset by way of reduced depreciation
expense.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MERRME

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B BAEIERAIN © LAAREEFIIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(y) Revenue and other income (continued)

(iii) Government grants (continued)

Policy-based discount interest on loans obtained by
the Group is directly allocated to the Group, with the
corresponding interest discounts offsetting related
borrowing costs.

(iv) Service income

— Service income relates to the Group's offer of
certain spaces to portable mobile phone charger’s
provider for the instalment of the portable mobile
phone charger facilities within the Group's
teahouses for the conveniences of its customers.

— Service income is recognized overtime when
the Group satisfies the performance obligation
according to the service contract.

(v) Trademark licensing income

Trademark licensing income relates to the Group's
granting of permission to certain collaborated parties
to use its brands on certain agreed commercial
products. Trademark licensing income is recognized
overtime when the Group satisfies the performance
obligation according to the licensing agreement.

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of the reporting
period. Exchange gains and losses are recognized in profit
or loss.
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(z) Translation of foreign currencies (continued)

(aa

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates. The transaction date is the date on which the
Company initially recognizes such non-monetary assets or
liabilities. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies that are stated at fair value are
translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
dates the fair value was measured.

The results of foreign operations are translated into RMB
at the exchange rates approximating the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the dates of the transactions. Statement
of financial position items are translated into RMB at the
closing foreign exchange rates at the end of the reporting
period. The resulting exchange differences are recognized
in other comprehensive income and accumulated
separately in equity in the exchange reserve.

Research and development expenses

Research and development expenses comprise all
expenses that are directly attributable to research
and development activities or that can be allocated
on a reasonable basis to such activities. Research and
development expenses are recognized as expenses in the
period in which they are incurred.

(bb) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset which
necessarily takes a substantial year of time to get ready for
its intended use or sale are capitalized as part of the cost
of that asset. Other borrowing costs are expensed in the
period in which they are incurred.
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B BAEIERAIN © LAAREEFIIR)

(cc) Related parties

(@) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is
related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or the Group's parent.

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

(i) The entity and the Group are members of the same
group (which means that each parent, subsidiary
and fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member).

(iii) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third entity.

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group.

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity).
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(cc) Related parties (continued)

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies: (continued)

(vii)The entity, or any member of a group of which
it is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the Group's parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence, or
be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the
entity.

(dd) Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the financial statements, are identified
from the financial information provided regularly to the
Group’s most senior executive management for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group's various lines of business and
geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and are
similar in respect of the nature of products and services,
the nature of production processes, the type or class of
customers, the methods used to distribute the products
or provide the services, and the nature of the regulatory
environment. Operating segments which are not
individually material may be aggregated if they share a
majority of these criteria.
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B BAEIERAIN © LAAREEFIIR)

Notes 15, 23, 24, 28 and 30(e) contains information about
the assumptions and their risk factors relating to fair value of
financial assets, fair value of financial liabilities, fair value of
RSUs under share incentive scheme, fair value of share options
granted, and fair value of convertible redeemable preferred
shares. Other significant sources of estimation uncertainty in
the process of applying the Group's accounting policies are as
follows:

(i) Impairment of property and equipment and
right-of-use assets

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period to assess whether there
is any indication that property and equipment or right-of-
use assets may be impaired. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amount of the property and equipment
and right-of-use assets is estimated. Changes in facts and
circumstances may result in revisions to the conclusion of
whether an indication of impairment exists and revised
estimates of recoverable amounts, which would affect
profit or loss in future periods.

(i) Recognition of deferred tax asset

Deferred tax assets are recognized in respect of
deductible temporary differences. As those deferred
tax assets can only be recognized to the extent that it
is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences can
be utilized, management’s judgment is required to assess
the probability of future taxable profits. Management'’s
assessment is revised as necessary and additional deferred
tax assets are recognized if it becomes probable that
future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be
recovered.
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3 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND 3 EITHERMAF (&)
ESTIMATES (continued)

(iii) Depreciation

(i) ITE

Property and equipment and right-of-use assets are
depreciated on a straight-line basis over the estimated
useful lives of the assets. The Group reviews the estimated
useful lives of the assets regularly in order to determine the
amount of depreciation expense to be recorded during any
reporting period. The useful lives are based on the Group's
historical experience with similar assets. The depreciation
expense for future years is adjusted if there are material
changes from previous estimates.

(iv) Provision for restoration costs

As explained in policy note 26, the Group makes provision
for restoration costs based on the best estimate of
the expected costs to be incurred upon expiry of the
respective rental agreements, which are subject to
uncertainty and might differ from the actual costs incurred.
Any increase or decrease in the provision would affect
profit or loss in future periods.

4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING

(a) Revenue

The Group principally generates its revenue from the
sales of freshly-made tea drinks, baked goods and other
products through its operating teahouses and online food
delivery applications mainly in the PRC.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

i & M 35 3R RO E

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B BAEIERAIN © LAAREEFIIR)

4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4 WBERDIBHE (E)
(continued)
(a) Revenue (continued) (a) Wzs(48)

(i) Disaggregation of revenue

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with
customers by major products and timing of revenue
recognition is as follows:

(i) Hezs B4
REIBEMNMREEREEE D
MEFPAKREAMAIT

2021 2020
20215 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T ARETT

Revenue from contracts EIPR B 3SR EAISE 1558
with customers within HERANEFEHWE

the scope of IFRS 15

Disaggregated by major products REXEZEERED

- Sales of freshly-made tea drinks —HEIRRIRR 3,186,988 2,322,849
- Sales of baked goods and other —HEREE R MEMER
products 1,109,630 734,332
4,296,618 3,057,181
Disaggregated by timing of revenue & Utz s s ] Bl
recognition
— A point in time —BFE 2L 4,289,017 3,055,976
— Over time —BERF 7,601 1,205
4,296,618 3,057,181

During the year ended December 31, 2021, the Group
did not have any customer with which transactions have
exceeded 10% of the Group's total revenue (2020: nil).
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(a) Revenue (continued)

(i) Performance obligation and revenue recognition

policies

Revenue is measured based on the consideration
specified in a contract with a customer. The Group
recognizes revenue when it transfers control over a
good or service to a customer. The following table
provides information about the nature and timing of
the satisfaction of performance obligations in contracts
with customers, including significant payment terms,
and the related revenue recognition policies.

Type of product/service

B/ REER

Freshly-made tea drinks, baked goods and
other products

REHH - HIEERKEMESR

Nature and timing of

satisfaction of
performance
obligations,
including significant
payment terms
ERBHOEBN
HEKEE
(BRERSRERK)

Customers obtain
control of the
products when the
goods are
delivered to and
have been
accepted by the
customers at the
point in time.
EEMRNTERPR
REPEME
S AGIEE
HRAS 2 Y PR o
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Revenue
recognition
policies

W= R BUR

Revenue is
recognized when

the goods are
delivered and

have been

accepted by
customers.
mIREBEGRNTER
B EMRTERIKE o

AANREEDIR)

151



152 Nayuki Holdings Limited - 2E#)%2 ARG R 2 7
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4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(continued)

(a) Revenue (continued)

(i) Performance obligation and revenue recognition

policies (continued)

Type of product/service
B/ REER

AANREEDITR)

(a) Yoz (48)

Nature and timing of
satisfaction of
performance
obligations,
including significant
payment terms
ERENRTN
HE K EE
(BRERIRERK)

(i) X275 Rz R R ()

Revenue
recognition
policies

W s R BUR

Service income from contracts with
portable mobile phone charger’s provider

BFEEA FHFTEREHRBR A HH R KA

Trademark licensing income

AR KA

The Company
provide service to
the portable

mobile phone
charger’s provider
over a period of time.
AR R —EREREIA
FEEAFHTES
R RER

The Company'’s grant
of permission to the
collaborated party to
use its trademark on
agreed

commercial products
overtime.

2R 7] B By
AEESTET
EHEREmLE
EAEERRFTA o

Revenue is recognized
overtime as the services
are provided, which is
expected over next

12 to 36 months.
R AR 5 B

B i R e R &
TEERE TR
12%36fE A

Revenue is recognized
overtime as the services
are provided, which is
expected over next

12 to 24 months.
TR L AR 75 PR

B By e R i
TREARE TR

12E 248 H
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B BAEIERAIN © LALAREEFIIR)

4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4 WERDIBHE (F)
(continued)

(a) Yoz (48)

(a) Revenue (continued)

(iii) Revenue expected to be recognized in the future
arising from contracts in existence as at the end
of the reporting period

Contracts within the scope of IFRS 15

As at December 31, 2021, the aggregated amount
of the transaction price allocated to the remaining
performance obligations under the Group's existing
contracts is RMB218,054,000 (2020: RMB78,551,000).
This amount represents revenue expected to be
recognized in the future when the Group satisfies the
remaining performance obligations.

(b) Segment reporting

The Group manages its businesses as a whole by the most
senior executive management for the purposes of resource
allocation and performance assessment. The Group has
one operating segment, which is the sales of freshly-made
tea drinks, baked goods and other products. The Group’s
chief operating decision maker is the chief executive officer
of the Group who reviews the Group's consolidated results
of operations in assessing performance of and making
decisions about allocations to this segment.

Accordingly, no reportable segment information is
presented.

As substantially all of the Group's operations and assets are
in the PRC, no geographic information is presented.

(ii)) EREE R FERE KT EE
HR B & FER Y

BB B s e 5 2RI S 1 SR E A
HIE &Y

R2021F 128318 » "&E B
REGHNTIREHRTENE
THRGERBSEAARE
218,054,0007T (20205 : ARE
78,551,0007T) ° k&R EKH
BAEBBITHR TRAOEERTE
H RERR A Ui 2% o

(b) 7 &b E

=]
AEEBBRSTHREEASER
HEREBULETEROERRR
Afh e AKREBE—ELESH - A
HERBAK HEEMREMBE
e ARBMERLERRERN
SENERATE  EEHAKE
MERERERENTEZ D INER
B RAE AR D BB ETT D FARR -

Ht - BEE 2507 2|5 WA -

HRAKREETRAAEXEMREED
R - BEERER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRERME

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B BAEIERAIN © LAAREEFIIR)

5 OTHER INCOME 5 HfsgA
2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR®ET T AREFIT
Interest income on: AT S IBE&FEHWA -

- bank deposits —RITIERR 12,432 1,533
- rental deposits —HEEs 6,691 5,952
— other financial assets —HihegEE 1,202 247
Government grants (note (i)) BT # B (PR EE()) 7,014 17,877

Income from output VAT exemption SR TEIZER T RRA
(note (ii)) (M3 Gi)) - 180,342
27,339 205,951

Notes: BEE -

(i)

(ii)

Government grants represent unconditional cash awards from government
authorities in multiple countries, mainly the PRC.

The amount represents the Group's entitlement to VAT exemption in
accordance with the Announcement on Relevant Tax Policies Supporting
the Prevention and Control of the Outbreak of COVID-19 ( BN Sz ## A
AR S REANIH AR B IEBREBRKERA R E) ) issued by the Ministry
of Finance and the State Taxation Administration. There were no unfulfilled
conditions or other contingencies attached to the entitlements of such VAT
exemption. The Group has no such VAT exemption entitlement in 2021.

() BNHEBEZEER(ZZATE)NKF#E

RETHEGRERER -

(i) ZEWEAEERBYBHREERHGEBBE
i O BRI STHF T BT AR R 5 SR O b A R B 5
EERMKRBENAS) AERREERNS
o MEAMEENMR MM SO KM R
RIS E MR AT IR - AKBRN20214F I X

BEBEHD
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRERME

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B BAEIERAIN © LALAREEFIIR)

6 LOSS BEFORE TAXATION 6 BREAIEE
Loss before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting): BEEIERBING S (GTA) LN T&ER
B
(a) Finance costs (a) BAE A
2021 2020
2021% 20204
RMB’'000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARETTT

Interest on bank loans (note 21) RITEFHHME (FFFE21) 2,351 8,924
Less: policy-based discount interest A B ERL R (HEE())
(note (i) (1,500) (1,000)
Interest on redeemable capital A RE R AR F B (M EE22)
contributions (note 22) 866 38,249
Interest on lease liabilities (note 25) HEAEN S (FEE25) 88,757 83,234
Interest on provisions (note 26) BB B (HIFE26) 1,073 851
91,547 130,258
Note (i): Policy-based discount interest represents an interest discount for MIEEG) : BURMBBIEAEBREKI R BR
loan interest entitled by the Group as a result of the successful FIHERR /=2 1B 2 25 10 3 T R 1O 228D
application for the incentive by the government authorities to MESHERF SRS -

support entitled enterprises.

(b) Staff costs (including directors’ emoluments) by EIXA(BREESINE)
2021 2020
202145 20204
RMB’'000 RMB'000

ARBTR ARETT

Salaries, wages and other benefits e  TERHEHMER 1,325,363 853,579
Contributions to defined contribution TE R FURRET B 3R()
retirement plan (i) 66,263 20,059
Equity-settled share-based payment LAREZS A B AR (0 A BT EY
expenses (note 28) RRE 2 (MT5E28) 32,732 45,458
1,424,358 919,096
(i)  Contributions to these plans are expensed as incurred and not () MZFABERKINEERZE  MEER
reduced by contributions forfeited by those employees who leave the FEBRAS 2 BUE FRATR 5T 81 i 02 Ui it

plans prior to vesting fully in the contributions. TG BIEHRZ S HR -
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B BAEIERAIN © LAAREEFIIR)

6 LOSS BEFORE TAXATION (continued)

(c) Other expenses

6 BRBLAIEE (&)
(c) HfhpAs

2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARET T ARET T
Auditors’ remuneration 1% BRI B <&
— audit services - RS 2,900 =
— non-audit services —FEEE RIS 700 -
Administrative expenses TR 72,631 45,213
Travelling and business development ERREBRERY
expenses 31,873 17,990
Other-party service fees Hib g iR e 20,656 25,906
Impairment losses RIEEE
- property and equipment (note 11(a)) — W R RE(FE11(a)) 2,620 2,045
- right-of-use assets (note 11(a)) —ERREEE(MHFE11(a) 4,224 1,155
Write-down of inventories (note 16(b)) HWORTFEE (MsE16(b)) 1,566 602
Listing expenses WX 14,735 11,410
Commissions & 8,368 2,341
Bank charge R1TEH 7,289 6,017
Others Hity 8,763 10,976
176,325 123,655
(d) Other items (d) EMIE H
2021 2020
2021%F 20204F
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARET T AREFIT
Amortization (note 12) B (FEE12) 167 139
Depreciation (note 11) e (BIsE11)
- property and equipment o IE YL 203,859 153,978
- right-of-use assets —(EREEE 420,272 352,912
624,131 506,890
Other rentals and related expenses HiF4 RAEBREX 212,996 100,568
Cost of inventories (note (i), 16(b)) FERA MG ~ 16(b)) 1,400,674 1,159,322

(i)  Cost of inventories mainly represented raw materials and consumables
consumed during the sales of freshly-made tea drinks, baked goods

and other products.

(i) FERAEBRNIFERENK  JUSE
o A EL At 22 B SR FE A R AR BB o
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REMBRERME

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B BAEIERAIN © LALAREEFIIR)

6 LOSS BEFORE TAXATION (continued) 6 BRFIAIEE(E)
(e) Other net losses/(gain) (e) EfEE, (M) F5E
2021 2020
20214 2020%F
RMB’'000 RMB'000

ARBTR ARET T

Loss on disposal of non-current assets ~ H&EIFRENEEREIR 33,317 6,173
Loss on stores closures B ¥R EE 4,497 4,289
Gains on reassessment of right-of-use FEREEERHEREN

assets and lease liabilities B (13,112) (4,964)
Loss on foreign currency exchange HNEE FE R F518 7.421 444
Others Hib 6,623 1,440

38,746 7,382
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

i & M 35 3R RO E

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B BAEIERAIN © LAAREEFIIR)

7 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 7

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

(a) Taxation in the consolidated statem
or loss represents:

ent of profit

2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARET T ARETIT
Current tax BRERBE1E
Provision for the year FREBE 11,556 9,513
Deferred tax JEFER1E
Origination and reversal of temporary EEREE TR =58
differences (note 27) (PfF5E27) (15,661) 3,694
(4,105) 13,207
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REMBRERME

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B BAEIERAIN © LALAREEFIIR)

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 7 RGEERRZIEBH(E)
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
(continued)

(b) Reconciliation between tax (credit)/expense and b)ILBERAMEFE 2 F 18 (K
accounting loss at applicable tax rates: %)/ HXRketEBHER
U
2021 2020
2021 % 20204F
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR¥F T ARBT T
Loss before taxation FRILAIESE (4,529,629) (190,095)
Calculated at the rates applicable LRERBAEEEEE 2
to profits/loss in the jurisdictions wF R EA
concerned MERHE (41,587) (9,053)
Effect of preferential income tax rates ETHBARMNER
of certain subsidiaries e Em & (7,428) (2,796)
Additional deduction for qualified & BRI BN AR EINOR
research and development costs (9,949) (1,082)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses A F0F: A 2 B 75 52 28 13,048 24,336
Tax effect of unused tax losses and RERRBETRIBEE R
deductible temporary differences EHEE?D%TH%%EE’\]
not recognized BIgT 43,529 6,117
Tax effect of utilization of tax losses E’W‘EHHEV*TJ@: MR
not recognized in previous years HMISEENHRIGTE (1,426) (3,542)
Recognize the effect of temporary EAfEHIJirEEE%’%EEd*%EEE’]
differences for which deferred tax FEBILRERIBEE
asset was not recognized RIE®R)
in previous years (292) (773)

Actual tax (credit)/expense BERFEBB(ER), X H (4,105) 13,207

159



160 Nayuki Holdings Limited - ZZE#HZIERER D 7
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REMBRERME

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B} BH3ERHIN

7

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
(continued)

(b) Reconciliation between tax (credit)/expense
and accounting loss at applicable tax rates:
(continued)

Notes:

U]

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands and
the British Virgin Islands (the "BVI"), the Group is not subject to any
income tax in the Cayman Islands and the BVI.

The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax is subject to Hong Kong's
two-tiered profits tax regime, under which the tax rate is 8.25% for
assessable profits on the first Hong Kong Dollars (“HKD") 2,000,000
and 16.5% for any assessable profits in excess of HKD 2,000,000. The
Group's subsidiaries in Hong Kong did not have any assessable profits
for the year ended December 31, 2021 (2020: nil).

Taxable income for the Group's subsidiaries in the PRC are subject to
PRC income tax rate of 25% for the year ended December 31, 2021 and
2020, unless otherwise specified below.

Pindao Supply Chain, Pindao Technology, Pindao R&D and Pindao
Chain fulfilled the criteria required for preferential income tax rate
granted to small and low profit-making enterprise in the PRC and were
entitled to a preferential income tax rate of 5% and 10% on taxable
income for the first RMB1,000,000 and the subsequent RMB1,000,000
to RMB3,000,000 respectively, for the years ended 31 December 2021
and 2020.

The subsidiaries in the United States of America and Japan of
the Group did not have any assessable profits for the year ended
December 31, 2021 (2020: nil).

AANREEDITR)

7 RRSEBARZHER(E)

(b) &

(iif)

(iv)

T 3

BRABREREE 2 HE (K

SHAXRgtERZHER

—
=
g)

REASESRABEMRES ([ LB
BRESDORARER  AEBHE
BRENHERERABERREEME
B o

EANGHAREANSHMRSIFHRR
B HpEg2ag8an((Brl) ERBE
FILA8.25% KT KT R B B2 B B T
BT () FE SR 1035 1) DA 16.5% B B R H -
RNEBRBEBON B R RIREE2021F
12 A31 B I FE (20204 : &) ¥ & AT
FERBL T o

BRTXBEBEMRESIN - B E20214F £ 2020
F12A3BLLFE - AEEFBEKE AR
B FE SR B A B 12 R B FT 15 B B 2K 25% 4R
B e

HZE 20214 %2020 12A31HILFE »
MmBHERE RERNE - RERERR
RaEEHFTES TR ENE REFHE
TEBEMEHMENETZE e
FE Bh IR B A R B A R % 1,000,000 7T
REBN T AR%1,000,000TE AR
3,000,000 T 89 #8 53 75 Bl = 5 5% F110% &)
BEMREHBEX -

HZE2021F12A3MBLLFE - AEER
EFRE RE R B KM B A R
FERBUEF(20204F : 4&) -
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B} BH3ERHIN

Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section 383(1)
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the
Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of
Directors) Regulation are as:

FoaT

Year ended December 31, 2021

BZ2021512A31ALEE
Salaries,
allowances Retirement Share-based
Directors'’  and other Discretionary scheme  payments
fees benefits bonuses contributions (note 28)
DRA A
e BUR Bhe EBRHAR
Y0k HipER B S (HE28)
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTE AR%®Tn AR%Frn ARETR AR%Tx
Chairman EER
Mr. Zhao Lin (note (a)) BREE (W) - 1,187 333 72 3,940
Executive directors HTES
Ms. Peng Xin (note (b)) ZOr L (b)) - 1,187 333 72 3,940
Mr. Deng Bin (note (c)) Bt A (7)) - 744 259 26 763
Non-executive Directors FHTES
Mr. Pan Pan (note (d)) BRI (W) = = - - -
Mr. Shao Gang (note (d)(e)) BB 5% A (Fi3E(d) e) = = - - -
Mr. Wong Tak-wai (note (d)) R () = - - - -
Independent Non-executive BUFHTES
Directors
Mr. Chen Qunsheng (note (f)) FRBEA A (B3E() 50 - - - -
Mr. Liu Yiwei (note (f) BREEE (M) 50 - - - -
Ms. Zhang Rui (note (f) o () 50 - - - -
150 3,118 925 170 8,643

AANREEDIR)

RIBEE L R BRI 383 R A (5
BESNaERRPF2HBHRENES

Total

fast
RMB'000
ARBTR

5,532

5,532
1,792

50
50
50

13,006
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B} BH3ERHIN

8 DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS (continued)

AANREEDITR)

8 ESHM(E)

Year ended December 31, 2020

HEN0F12A31ALLFE
Salaries,
allowances Retirement  Share-based
Directors'  and other Discretionary scheme  payments
fees benefits bonuses  contributions (note 28) Total
5
T ) Bfhe  ERORK
ERee  KeEN  BWET nERR s e
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTL ARETRT ARETR AREBTT ARETR ARETR
Chairman BER
Mr. Zhao Lin (note (a)) LA (K (a) - 234 374 10 15,716 16,334
Executive directors YTES
Ms. Peng Xin (note (b)) ZhaL(HE(b) - 249 374 1 15,716 16,350
Mr. Deng Bin (note (c)) i ot A (FiriE(c) = 322 347 10 388 1,067
- 805 1,095 31 31,820 33,751

Notes: BieE

(a) Mr. Zhao Lin was appointed as executive directors of the Company on June (a) HHMREAER202056 A9 B ERE R D BINIT
9, 2020. He is the co-founders and key management personnel of the Group EF - BFRASRENBEABAREREEA
and his remuneration disclosed above include those for services rendered 8 - i _EXAT ﬁ&éﬁﬁ%mﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁig L
by him as key management personnel. /\,E FriR #tPRAS B0 S BN -

(b) Ms. Peng Xin was appointed as executive directors of the Company on (b) ZOLLLR2019F9IASAEZELARANH
September 5, 2019. She is the co-founders and key management personnel TEE - BRARENMA AN AMERER
of the Group and her remuneration disclosed above include those for BAE MEXABRENTFMBEREELSETE
services rendered by them as key management personnel. EIREABPTRERBOME -

() Mr. Deng Bin was appointed as executive directors of the Company on June (c) EPWIEAER20204F6 A9 B R T RAR B
9, 2020. He joined Shenzhen Pindao Management in August 2016 as the TEE o BAEER2016F8 AMARIImEE
Chief Operating Officer. The remuneration disclosed above include those B EIEFEEE o LXMEENHINEE
for services rendered by him as the Chief Operating Officer of Shenzhen EEBRZERARANTESRN - EERIIM
Pindao Management before his appointment as the executive director of EEBRERELERRERGEEEE
the Company.

(d)  Mr. Shao Gang, Mr. Pan Pan, and Mr. Wong Tak-wai were appointed as non- (d) BBEMAEAE - BEL A REEIELES BIN2020
executive directors of the Company on June 9, October 26, and December F6H9 El\ o 2020$10ﬂ_%6 H % 2020412 A 31
31, 2020 respectively. AEZREARNRERNITES -

(e) Mr. Shao Gang resigned from his position as a non-executive director on (e) BBEMSLAEM2021F12A29B BHEFERITES -
December 29, 2021.

(/) Mr. Chen Qunsheng, Mr. Liu Yiwei and Ms. Zhang Rui were appointed as ) BREELE  BIRBEER Eﬁﬁiﬁgﬂﬁ’;\
independent non-executive directors of the Company on June 18, 2021, 2021 F6 A 18BEZTEAARRIBIIERITE
respectively. -

(9) During the year ended December 31, 2021, there were no amounts paid or (@ MEZE2021F12A31HILFE @ ANEERER
payable by the Group to the directors or any of the highest paid individuals EEL T XM EE I fHRm A LI sk
set out in note 9 below as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group Fgﬁ1}_ﬂr¢\ﬁ1’l§?§3ﬁﬂ/\?bﬂ7\$$l§ 1& B9 22
or as a compensation for loss of office (2020: nil). There was no arrangement SVE R RER A 5 (20204 - &) - WHRARIES
under which a director waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during REZE2021F12 831 HIEFE M E LR B ME
the year ended December 31, 2021 (2020: nil). EfRTER B Y 22 B (20204F « £8) o

(h) Save for the related party transactions as disclosed in note 32 to the (h) BRAERE SR ERM T2 R ANFE RS [
consolidated financial statements and the connected transactions EXH |8 ?ﬁ?gﬂ'ﬂ%ﬁ@"%ﬂ\ CREE
as disclosed in the section headed “Connected Transactions” in this 2021512 A31 A | F [E 4F 45 H ok (F fa 5 i
annual report, there were no transactions, arrangements or contracts of BEE RN IR 5K 15 S5 ({7 Y Bl 428
significance to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and BREGENARFXEEMMERAET2E
in which a director and/or any of his/her connected entity had a material 7( 25 RYRENTERARREREARE
interest, whether directly or indirectly, and there was no transaction, - BAR R KA AT A B A 7 HEA A FE
arrangement or contract of significance between the Company or any of BRI EEFHBAR CHAREEARS %
its subsidiaries and the Company’s controlling shareholders or any of its Bl & LA B (20204 « &) -

subsidiaries, subsisted at the end of, or at any time during the year ended 31
December 2021 (2020: nil).
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B} BH3ERHIN

INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS 9

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, two (2020:
two) are directors whose emoluments are disclosed in note 8.

The aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the remaining

REFMAL
AESEHMALA - FA(2020%F : #
B)EFBE R ISR -

AANREEDIR)

BRHT=%(2020F : =8) AL &BY

three (2020: three) individuals are as follows: SEFELT ¢
2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR¥ET T AREET T
Salaries and other emoluments e NEMIES 3,211 2,025
Discretionary bonuses BIETEAL 1,048 1,417
Share-based payments LARR 1 AR E R 1 3K 6,036 4,756
Retirement scheme contributions IRIRET B R 40 4
10,335 8,202

The emoluments of the three (2020: three) individuals with the
highest emoluments are within the following bands:

=% (2020%F : =% ) &= H A 8B
ENFTIIEE -

2021 2020

20214 20204

Number of Number of

individuals individuals

AE AE

HKD1,500,001 — HKD2,000,000 1,500,001 7T— 2,000,000 7T - 2
HKD2,500,001 — HKD3,000,000 2,500,001 7t 3,000,000 7T 1 -
HKD3,000,001 — HKD3,500,000 3,000,001 7t— 3,500,0007 7T 1 =
HKD5,500,001 — HKD6,000,000 5,500,001/& 7T — 6,000,0007% 7T - 1
HKD6,000,001 — HKD6,500,000 6,000,001/ 7T - 6,500,000/% 7T 1 =

163



164 Nayuki Holdings Limited - ZE /%2R AR A 7

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B BAEIERAIN © LAAREEFIIR)

(a) Basic loss per share

The calculation of the basic loss per share is based on the
loss attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
of RMB4,524,506,000 (2020: RMB201,872,000) and the
weighted average of 1,377,499,646 ordinary shares (2020:
999,288,282 ordinary shares).

(a) BRENERE

ERERNBEIIEAR AR E
FE 1 B 1B A R ¥ 4,524,506,000 7T
(20204 : AER#201,872,0007T) &
1,377,499,646 1% % i@ % (2020 F :
999,288,282 1) & i A% ) 1Y INHE F 15 &K

Issued shares at January 1,

R1ATEHE#EITRG

2021 2020
20214 20204
Number of Number of
shares shares

g 4= BRiDE B
986,911,287  1,000,000,000

Effect of re-designation of ordinary EIIETLBR AR

shares to preferred shares gz (4,369,735) (794,498)
Effect of shares issued through FRITEBRERITRN 2

exercise of share options & - 82,780
Effect of shares issued to employee FEE BB FAEITRDZ

incentive platform Fe 86,685,288 -
Effect of automatic conversion of Ejﬁii}?ﬁ—fﬁé BlE iR B B

convertible redeemable preferred R R 2

shares into ordinary shares 178,581,036 -
Effect of shares issued by global offering #iREIKEEEHITRH 2FE 129,691,770 -
Weighted average number of ordinary 7128318 @A

shares at December 31, IntE T8 1,377,499,646 999,288,282

The weighted average number of ordinary shares for RNt EFRENEE L @A

the purpose of calculating basic loss per share has been
determined on the assumption that the Reorganization and
the capitalization issue as referred in note 2(b) had been

effective since January 1, 2020.

B #T
MEE °

%%@%{Eﬂ?“wﬁz( )Pl B2 48
1TH 202051 81 H LM
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B BAEIERAIN © LALAREEFIIR)

(b) Diluted loss per share

Diluted loss per share is calculated by adjusting the
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding
to assume conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary
shares.

The Company had potential ordinary shares from
redeemable capital contributions, financial liabilities at
FVTPL and convertible redeemable preferred shares for
the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020. All potential
ordinary shares convertible from redeemable capital
contributions, financial liabilities at FVTPL and convertible
redeemable preferred shares for the year ended had been
converted into ordinary shares upon the successful listing
of the Company on June 30, 2021. As the Group incurred
losses for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020,
the potential ordinary shares were not included in the
calculation of diluted loss per share, as their inclusion
would be anti-dilutive. Accordingly, diluted loss per share
for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 are same
as basic loss per share.

(b) BREEREE

BREEEENEBABEITEIN
BB NEFORE  UERRER
ABEEEL BRMmTHE -

KRN FEZE 2021 F KX 2020F 12 A 31
BHEFEERIEREE - LARE
B EAHEEZHTAEHEZNS
ek ERAEREERESR
BELER - NEEFREANER
AE U ARBEFEBEEZF;
AEHEENSRaE R E ]
BERELRELMNEELTARD R
ARAAIR2021F6A30B K £
%R AT B c ERAEENE
F2021F K2020F12A31HIEFE
BISEE  STEEREEBERY
METABEL B - DHRETAZ
EhmHeERRESE - Al - HE
20219 2020512 A31HILFER
SREEHEESREKREIBAER -
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11 PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT AND RIGHT- MPRRBREREAREE
OF-USE ASSETS
(a) Reconciliation of carrying amount (a) FREE 2 ¥R
Electronic Subtotal of ~ Property -
Leasehold Kitchen Furniture  equipment  Construction Propertyand  Right-of-use
improvements  equipment  equipment  and others inprogress  equipment assets Total
HE 1R &R nE-
pES T BRRE BERE Rt ERIE RENT  RREEE Ch

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR  ARMTR  ARMTR  ARMTR  ARBTR  ARWTR  ARWTR  ARWTR

Cost: HA:

At January 1, 2020 202051818 361,097 131,395 35,166 53,074 14,853 595,585 1,542,070 2,137,655
Additions WE

- Purchase -E8 - 67,002 17924 30,957 184,412 300,295 436,162 736,457
- Transfer from construction in progress —EHEERTH] 190,695 = = = (190,695) = = =
Disposals e (22,747) (989) (1,464) (2,204) - (27,404) (89,340) (116,744)
Exchange adjustments EiH% (282) (39) 6] 9 = (338) (543) (881)
At December 31, 2020 #2020612831A 528,763 197,369 51,618 81,818 8,570 868,138 1,888,349 2,756,487
At January 1, 2021 R2021E1 818 528,763 197,369 51,618 81,818 8,570 868,138 1,888,349 2,756,487
Additions e

— Purchase -%g - 108,990 37,907 73,683 253,364 473,944 598,686 1,072,630
- Transfer from construction in progress  ~BABERTHE 218,116 = S = (227,485) (9,369) = (9,369)
Disposals HE (47,843) (11,474) (43,482) (23,908) - (126,707) (320,775) (447,482)
Exchange adjustments AR 492 m 1,537 178 - 2,918 (472) 2,446
At December 31, 2021 #2021512A318 699,528 295,596 47,580 131,171 34,449 1,208,924 2,165,788 3,374,712
Accumulated depreciation: ZithE:

At January 1, 2020 R2020F1A18 90,520 2913 7,210 15,165 - 136,868 367,558 504,426
Charge for the year ERAR 102,000 29,083 7798 15,097 - 153978 352,912 506,890
Written back on disposals HEBAD (9,075) (342) (691) (607) - (10,715) (13,175) (83,890)
Exchange adjustments B A% (44) @] (1) 1) - (50) (168) (218)
At December 31, 2020 120206124318 183,401 52,650 14,376 29,654 - 280,081 647,127 927,208
At January 1, 2021 W202151818 183,401 52,650 14,376 29,654 - 280,081 647,127 927,208
Charge for the year Rk 126,512 9,590 11,200 56,557 - 203,859 420272 624,131
Written back on disposals HERED (26,712) (13,626) (20,082) (18,462) - (78,882) (218,984) (297,866)
Exchange adjustments EHAE (160) 1 1) 43 - (117) (185) (302)

At December 31, 2021 #2021512A31R 283,041 48,615 5493 61,792 - 404,941 848,230 (1,283,171)
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11 PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT AND RIGHT-
OF-USE ASSETS (continued)

(a) Reconciliation of carrying amount (continued)

MUERRERERAEEE (&)

(a) FREE 2 HRR (%)

Electronic Subtotal of ~ Property -
Leasehold Kitchen Furniture  equipment  Construction Propertyand  Right-of-use
improvements  equipment  equipment  and others inprogress  equipment assets Total
HE 1R &R nE-
pES T BRRE BERE Rt ERIE RENT  RREEE Ch
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR  ARBTR  ARWTR  ARMTR  ARMTR  ARETR  ARBTR  ARETR
Impairment: HE:
At January 1, 2020 R2020F1A18 8,109 - - - 8,109 4,09 12,207
Addition AE 2,045 - - - 2,045 1,15 3,200
Written back on disposals HERED (9.213) = = = (9.213) 4,097) (13,310)
At December 31, 2020 #20205128318 941 - - - 941 1,15 2,097
At January 1, 2021 RONEIA1E M - - - i 1,156 2,097
Addition RE 2,620 - - - 2,620 4,224 6,844
Written back on disposals HEERD (941) - - - (941) (1,156) (2,097)
At December 31, 2021 R20215128318 2,620 - - - 2,620 4,224 6,844
Net book value: BREFE:
At December 31, 2021 R2021E12A318 413,867 246,981 42,087 63,979 34,449 801,363 1,313,334 2,114,697
At December 31, 2020 20205124318 344,421 144,719 37,242 52,164 8,570 567,116 1,240,066 1821182
Impairment loss B8

The recoverable amount of each teahouse (cash-
generating unit (“CGU")) with indication of impairment is
estimated at the end of each reporting period. As at the
end of each reporting period, in view of the unfavorable
future prospects and poor performance of certain
teahouses, there were indications that the CGUs may
suffer an impairment loss. The management of the Group
has conducted impairment testing for teahouses with
impairment indications. The recoverable amount of each
CGU is determined based on value-in-use calculations
by preparing cash flow projections of the relevant CGU
derived from the most recent financial forecast approved
by the management covering the remaining lease term.
The cash flows are discounted using discount rates 12.77%
as at December 31, 2021 (2020: 5.55% to 7.25%). The
discount rate used is pre-tax and reflects specific risks
relating to the relevant CGU.

REJREHRSHABRED R
ERFIE(REELBM([BEE
EEBAM]))MAT K EISEE - REHRE
HR  ERETERRIENERKRAS
MRBRE  ERRBERESEE
BAARESZREREE AEEE
BEEETRENR SHELEL
BAMA RO EEREERER
EREAEE  AER BETE
[E #t T B A TR CRE SR T
HEM FITHERSEEEMNMNE
SRETEA - B20214F128318 -
BERBHMI12.77%8 85 &L
(20204 : 5.55%%27.25%) ° Fi{E A
9 A5 3R 2R J5 B AT S I BR LA B3R &
ELXBUEsENETRRE -
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11 PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT AND RIGHT-
OF-USE ASSETS (continued)

(a) Reconciliation of carrying amount (continued)

MUERRERERAEEE (&)

) BREE 2 SR (&)

Impairment loss (continued)

As at December 31, 2021, the carrying amount of certain
CGUs exceeds their recoverable amount, therefore, an
impairment loss of RMB6,844,000 (2020: RMB3,200,000)
for right-of-use assets and leasehold improvement within
the CGU, was recognized in “Other expenses” in the
consolidated statements of profit or loss for the years
ended December 31, 2021.

(b) Right-of-use assets

The analysis of expense items in relation to leases

SR EET1E ()

R2021%F 128318 - BFHREESE
BUMEEDELBAETKESE -
Eit > IR EE B NAERE
BENHEEVERETEANEED
B B 1B A R # 6,844,000 7T (2020
&+ AR¥3,200,000) J3AE Z=2021
FIR2ANHIEFENGEBTZERN
[E AR R iR o

b) EREEE
BN EHEBRNEEAMNEA

recognized in profit or loss is as follows: BRSO
2021 2020
202145 20204
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®BTT ARETTT
Depreciation charge of right-of-use RIEBEESANEREEE
assets by class of underlying asset: MITERY :
Property — Right-of-use assets ME—FREEE 420,272 352,912
Interest on lease liabilities (note 6(a)) HEBENNE(KMizTé()) 88,757 83,234
Expense relating to short-term leases BLAC BATE SARRA R A X 27,099 29,006
Expense relating to leases of low-value  EEEEEEREHBEDN
assets, excluding short-term leases of Y TRRBREEEEEMN
low-value assets EEHE 1,379 238
Variable lease payments not included in ﬂifﬂ')\fﬂ& L BEETEHY
the measurement of lease liabilities ~  RAJ&# B EMR 62,882 39,210
Covid-19-related rent concessions Eﬁé SHICOVID-19+8FEH &
received B (2,100) (46,592)
Details of total cash outflow for leases and the maturity HERERLAELEEAGIH

analysis of lease liabilities are set out in notes 18(d) and 25,
respectively.

As disclosed in note 2(c), the Group has early adopted
the Amendment to IFRS 16, Leases, Covid-19-related
rent concessions beyond 30 June 2021, and applies the
practical expedient to all eligible rent concessions received
by the Group. Further details are disclosed in (i) below.

B OB D B EHFTEE18(d) %25 -

UM A2 TR AEERTR
RN B B B 7% R R 1697 /Y
BEARHEE 2021465308 2 1%
COVID-19+8F8 & &R - Wi a 17
BEZHEARASERENEE
BESER o #E—PFHER T X))
& o
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(b) Right-of-use assets (continued)
(i) Property — Right-of-use assets

The Group has obtained the right to use properties as
its teahouses and offices through tenancy agreements.
The leases typically run for an initial period of 3 to 5
years.

The Group leased a number of teahouses which
contain variable lease payment terms that are based
on sales generated from the teahouses and minimum
annual lease payment terms that are fixed. These
payment terms are common in the PRC where the
Group operates. Since 2020 the Group has received
rent concessions in the form of a discount on fixed
payments as a result of severe social distancing and
travel restriction measures introduced to contain the
spread of COVID-19. The amount of fixed and variable
lease payments for the year is summarized below:

Lease assets

Fixed
payments

Bl 4 5K
RMB’000
AR®T T

HEEE 474,364

(b) EHEEEGE)

(i)

2

VE—HBEEE
AEECEBHERAREEE
EREREXRERBREROE
Fo BOMBHRATR=ER
7=

AEBHELRARE  HBHE
ERRREMEEHER 2 TE
HMENRKEREEERES A
ENFTIER - ZEMTIER
EAEEEEMETRRBE
H o B2020F 8 - AR BB
COVID-19%Z 15 EEm & A B
AL EE R R ITR B - A
EBEUBEE A FITINA A ES
e &R - FREMETE &8
BB T

021

20215

Variable
payments
and other

related
expenses

CIE-2NEN

REM

B X

RMB’000
AR®T T

204,914

COVID-19
rent Total

concessions payments

COVID-19
HERR
RMB’000
AR®TR

R
RMB’000
AR®TR

(2,100) 677,178
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11 PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT AND RIGHT-
OF-USE ASSETS (continued)

(b) Right-of-use assets (continued)

MUERRERERAEEE (&)

(b) EREEEE)

(i) Property — Right-of-use assets (continued) () Y% —(EHEZEE)
2020
20204
Variable
payments
and other COVID-19
Fixed related rent Total
payments expenses concessions payments
Al R
K Ho A COVID-19
& TE TR MRRER HEER B EE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARET T ARBTT ARETRT AR®ETRT
Lease assets HEEE 388,500 92,285 (46,592) 434,193
(i) Rental deposits (i) HEEZEE

The refundable rental deposit itself is not part of
the lease payments and is in the scope of IFRS 9.
Therefore, the rental deposit should be measured at
fair value on initial recognition. The difference between
the initial fair value and the nominal value of the
deposit is an additional lease payment made by the
Group and it is included in the measurement of the
right-of-use assets.

REHERSAH W IFHEEN
R —# - MBERMBRE
ERFOHWEE - Fitt - HE
B RERIGERFNAAE
BFtE - meWIB AR BER
HERNZRSNEE FEEI
HEMRBEFAEREEEN

g o
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12 INTANGIBLE ASSETS 128 EE
Software
#F
RMB’'000
AR®ET T
Cost: R :
At January 1, 2020 F2020%F1 A1H 1,164
Purchases BE 94
At December 31, 2020 20205 12H31H 1,258
At January 1, 2021 R2021F1 A1H 1,258
Purchases BE =
Disposal k=S (550)
At December 31, 2021 M2021%12H831H 708
Accumulated amortization: ZotEey .
At January 1, 2020 R2020F1 A1H 68
Charge for the year F AR 139
At December 31, 2020 MR2020%12H31H 207
At January 1, 2021 202141 A1H 207
Charge for the year FRHIBR 167
Written back on disposal H €& B 18 o) (123)
At December 31, 2021 2021412H31H 251
Net book value: BRMEFE
At December 31, 2021 R2021%12H31H 457
At December 31, 2020 202012 H31H 1,051
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13 INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES

(a) Investment in subsidiaries — the Company

13RHMBRATINKRE
(a) R B R RIMIRE — KA F]

2021 2020
2021%F 20204F
RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBTT
Deemed investment costs (note (i)) WA E A (B EE()) 106,233 22,961
Deemed investments arising from AR B EE B A~ 3k
share-based payment expenses X EERRERE
(note (ii) (B sE(n) 38,418 13,629
144,651 36,590
Notes: Bt aE -

U]

(ii)

In prior year, deemed investment cost represent the initial fair value of
the warrants issued by the Company in connection with the onshore
loans provided to a subsidiary of the Group, Shenzhen Pindao
Management (note 23).

Upon the completion of the Reorganization in January 2021, deemed
investment costs also included the interest on redeemable capital
contribution that were converted along with the capital contribution
principal in January 2021 for the subscription of series A, A+ and series
B-1 convertible redeemable preferred shares of the Company (note

22).

The amount represents share-based payment expenses arising from
the grant of share options and RSUs of the Company to employees of
the subsidiaries (note 28) in exchange for their services provided to
these subsidiaries, which were deemed to be investments made by the
Company into these subsidiaries.

EF - RIERERAEARBGRER T A
EE-RMBRARF METENEAE
SR BAT 80 R AR AE B H WA A A B E (B
523) ©

R2021F1 AR EAR - RIEREARAE
IEER2021F1 ARBTEARASER -
AREARNRIARS| - A+ Z5| K& B-1Z7
A S5 34 0] B8 ST AR &0 AT FE 121+ B EE A R
B (ffzE22) -

ZFIEAE AR B A E A FE B R R
T T 2R A% ) Rz (P FE28 ) PATAER 1
1) 7% S5 B BB 2 ) B2 414 AR A5 i 2 A H DA R AD
REBONFFEX - VIEARRAZEFMH
BRRIEHIEE -
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13 INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 13RMEARNIRE (&)

(b) Subsidiaries of the Group (b) NEE 2B AR
The following list contains the particulars of subsidiaries TRBEEAREEZHBRRRK2021
of the Group as at December 31, 2021. The class of shares FI2ANBWFSE - REEEAE
held is ordinary unless otherwise stated. HN - FrRERR D SRR A E A o

Proportion of
ownership interest

BARRRLGL
Place of
incorporation
and operation/  Particulars of
date of issued and Held by Held by
Name of company establishment paid-up capital the Company  asubsidiary  Principal activities
B R BRITREAR HALR HKEAT
NEER EENY/RUAM RAE ] BE IEED
Pindao Holdings Limited The BVI Nil 100% - Investment Holding
05/09/2019
mEERERAT AE4BREE T REBR
201959458
Pindao Holdings Hong Kong Limited ~ Hong Kong Nil - 100%  Investment Holding
09/10/2019
mERRERRRAA B z KAk
019%510A9H
Shenzhen Pindao Group Co. Ltd. * The PRC RMB611,849,700 = 100%  Investment Holding
(RAmRESEERAR, 17112/2019
"Shenzhen Pindao Group” G AR# 611,849,700 RERR
(TAmmEsa)) 019128178
Shenzhen Pindao Management * The PRC RMB1,343,053 - 100%  Store operations management
(Rl mEERERERAA) 12/05/2014
G AEH1,343,0537 EREEER
2014551128
Shenzhen Tai Gai Food & Beverage The PRC Nil - 100%  Sales of freshly-made tea drinks,
Management Co., Ltd. * 21/04/2016 baked goods and other product
(RIm e EERERERLA) G z HERBRY  MEERRAMER

16548218
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13INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 1I3RMIBRARIMNIKRE(E)
(b) Subsidiaries of the Group (continued) (b) REBZHEB AR (&)

Proportion of
ownership interest

BRRRLEL
Place of
incorporation
and operation/  Particulars of
date of issued and Held by Held by
Name of company establishment paid-up capital the Company  asubsidiary  Principal activities
ERHLE BRTRAR AAAR HNELAR
AAER E¥HY/RUAY RAHE ] ¥E IEED
Shenzhen Nayuki Food & Beverage The PRC Nil - 100%  Sales of freshly-made tea drinks,
Management Co., Ltd. * 21/04/2016 baked goods and other product
(RITREERERERAA) G 3 HERBAY  MEERRAMER
016544218
Xi'an Nayuki Food & Beverage The PRC Nil - 100%  Sales of freshly-made tea drinks,
Management Co., Ltd. * 28/09/2017 baked goods and other product
BZRSERERARAT), G g HERBAY  MEERRAMER
"Xi'an Nayuki" ([BZRE])) 2017F9A288
Beijing Nayuki Food & Beverage The PRC Nil - 100%  Sales of freshly-made tea drinks,
Management Co., Ltd. * 13/11/2017 baked goods and other product
IRRSERERARAR) G z HERBAY HEERRAMER
017511 A13R
Shanghai Nayuki Food & Beverage The PRC Nil - 100%  Sales of freshly-made tea drinks,
Management Co., Ltd. * 05/12/2017 baked goods and other product
(LERSERERARAT, G z HERRAR MEERRAMER
"Shanghai Nayuki” ([ EERE ])) 017412758
Hangzhou Nayuki Food & Beverage The PRC Nil - 100%  Sales of freshly-made tea drinks,
Management Co., Ltd. * 17/11/2017 baked goods and other product
MNREERERERAT, G Z HERBAR MEERRAMER

"Hangzhou Nayuki" ([fTMRE 1)) 17§ 11A17R
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13 INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(b) Subsidiaries of the Group (continued)

Annual Report 45§ 2021

13RIEBRRNIRE (&)
(b) REBEZHBAR ()

Proportion of

ownership interest

BRRRLEL
Place of
incorporation
and operation/  Particulars of
date of issued and Held by Held by
Name of company establishment paid-up capital the Company  asubsidiary  Principal activities
ERHLE BRTRAR AAAR HNELAR
AAER E¥HY/RUAY RAHE ] ¥E IEED
Xiamen Nayuki Food & Beverage The PRC Nil - 100%  Sales of freshly-made tea drinks,
Management Co., Ltd. * 27/04/2018 baked goods and other product
(EFTREERERERLA) PE 3 HERBAY  MEERRAMER
2018547278
Wuhan Tai Gai Food & Beverage The PRC Nil - 100%  Sales of freshly-made tea drinks,
Management Co., Ltd. * 09/11/2017 baked goods and other product
(REMREERERARAA) HE g HERBAY MEERRAMER
01751179
Chengdu Tai Gai Food & Beverage The PRC Nil - 100%  Sales of freshly-made tea drinks,
Management Co., Ltd. * 28/08/2017 baked goods and other product
(BT EERERERAR) HE z HERBAY HEERRAMER
2017587 28H
Nanjing Manyida Food & Beverage The PRC Nil - 100%  Sales of freshly-made tea drinks,
Management Co., Ltd. * 231172017 baked goods and other product
(ERNEEERERARAA, HE z HERRAR MEERRAER
"Nanjing Manyida" ([ EE])) 01711238
Shenzhen Pindao Food Co., Ltd. * The PRC Nil = 100%  Sales of freshly-made tea drinks,
(M RERREBAT) 11/09/2017 baked goods and other product
hE Z HERBAR MEERRAMER

1759A11H
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13 INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(b) Subsidiaries of the Group (continued)

13REBRRNRE (&)
(b) REBEZHBAR ()

Proportion of

ownership interest

BRRRLEL
Place of
incorporation
and operation/  Particulars of
date of issued and Held by Held by
Name of company establishment paid-up capital the Company  asubsidiary  Principal activities
ERHLE BRTRAR AAAR HNELAR
AAEH XMWY/ IR RAHE ] K& IEED
Guangzhou Nayuki Food & Beverage  The PRC Nil - 100%  Sales of freshly-made tea drinks,
Management Co., Ltd. * 20111/2017 baked goods and other product
(ENTREERERERAR) PE 3 HERRAR HEERREMER
20176114208
Nanjing Nayuki Food & Beverage The PRC Nil - 100%  Sales of freshly-made tea drinks,
Management Co., Ltd. * 18/04/2018 baked goods and other product
ARESERERARAT), HE g HERRAR  HEERREMER
“Nanjing Nayuki' ([ R EE ) 218547188
Pindao Food & Beverage Management  Hong Kong HKD300,000 - 100%  Sales of freshly-made tea drinks,
Co, Ltd. * 17/12/2018 baked goods and other product
(REERERERAA) Bk 300,000 ¢ HERRAR  HEERRAMER
018512R178H
Pindao New Jersey Ltd. The United States ~ USD1,000 - 100%  Sales of freshly-made tea drinks,
of America baked goods and other product
14/08/2019
FHBARE 1,000%7 HERRRR  HEERRAMER
201958145
Pindao Company Limited Japan JPY19,935,200 - 100%  Sales of freshly-made tea drinks,
04/09/2019 baked goods and other product
A& 19,935,208 RERRAN  REERRAMER

20199848
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13INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 13RI BATINKRE (&)
(b) Subsidiaries of the Group (continued) (b) AEBZHBRAR(E)

Proportion of
ownership interest

RARRRLGL
Place of
incorporation
and operation/  Particulars of
date of issued and Held by Held by
Name of company establishment paid-up capital the Company  asubsidiary  Principal activities
ERELER BRTRAR HAAT MR
nEER EENY/RUAM RAE K& BE IEED
Fuzhou Nayuki Food & Beverage The PRC Nil - 100%  Sales of freshly-made tea drinks,
Management Co., Ltd. * 08/01/2020 baked goods and other product
(BNTREERERERAA) G Z HERBAR HEERRAMER
020%1A8H
Guiyang Nayuki Food & Beverage The PRC Nil - 100%  Sales of freshly-made tea drinks,
Management Co., Ltd. * 22/09/2020 baked goods and other product
(EBETREERERARAA) G 2 HERBAR MEERRAMER
020594228
Shenzhen Pindao Supply Chain The PRC Nil - 100%  Supply chain management
management Co., Ltd. * 26/04/2020
(RYmmBHERERARAT, G 2 fEgER
"Pindao Supply Chain" ([ mEH®EH])) 202064726
Shenzhen Pindao technology The PRC Nil - 100%  Brand management
service Co., Ltd. * 21/05/2020
(R RENBREERAR, G g migE R
"Pindao Technology” ([ @iERHE ) 2020558218
Shenzhen Pindao research & The PRC RMB10,000,000 = 100%  Software development
development Co., Ltd. * 26/04/2020
(RmRERRRERRAR, G AK%10,000,0007 HHRE
“Pindao R&D" ([ M ) 2020%4 7268
Shenzhen Pindao Food & Beverage The PRC Nil - 100%  Store management
Chain Co., Ltd. * 01/11/2019
(R mEEREHRRAA, HE 2 EHER

"Pindao Chain” ( [REEH] ) ) 2019511318
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13INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
(b) Subsidiaries of the Group (continued)

13REBRRNRE (&)
(b) AEE ZHIBAE (&)

Proportion of
ownership interest

BREERL
Place of
incorporation
and operation/ Particulars of
date of issued and Held by Held by
Name of company establishment paid-up capital the Company ~ asubsidiary  Principal activities
ERHLE BRTRAR AAAR HNELARE
AREH EENY /IR RAHE 52 K8 IZED
Shenzhen Pindao Life Science & The PRC Nil - 100%  Online sales
Technology Co., Ltd. * 06/12/2019
(R mBLENRARAR, PE E RLRE
“Pindao Life" ([ 8 4EE ) 2019%12A6R
Shenzhen Nayuki Beverage Technology ~ The PRC Nil - 90%  Sales of bottled tea drinks
Co., Ltd. * 220712021
(RIMREHARBBERAR) PE z HERERK
X1ETA2A
Shenzhen Nayuki Commercial Cultural ~ The PRC Nil - 100%  Advertisemnet and business
Management Co., Ltd. * 10/12/2021 management
(RIMREBXLERARAA)  HE Z BERBRER
20215 12A108
@ The official names of these entities are in Chinese. The English * ZEBENEHAEGBARXY  BXELZE
translation of the names is for identification only. {87 o
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Details of the Group's interest in the associate, which is
accounted for using the equity method in financial statements,
are as follows:

Particulars

Form of Place of of issued

business incorporation andpaid-up
Name of associate structure and business capital

R ERTRAR

BENRER PEREYS RE£HH EAFE
BTG-Pindao Venture Pte. Ltd. Incorporated Singapore SGD 3,000,000
BTG-Pindao Venture Pte. Ltd. L s 3,000,000%7 M3 T

In May 2018, the Group entered into an investment
arrangement with Together Inc Pte. Ltd., a third-party investor,
to establish a company namely, BTG-Pindao Venture Pte. Ltd.
("the Investee”) in Singapore for the purpose of operating
beverage outlets in promoting the Group’s brand in Singapore.
Based on the investment agreement, the Group agreed to
invest Singapore Dollars ("SGD") 300,000 (equivalent to
RMB1,502,000) for 10% of the equity interest in the investee.
Further to the investment agreement, the Group has the right
to appoint one-third of the board members, allowing the
Group to exercise significant influence over the investee’s
operational and financial directions.

As in December 2018, the Group had injected SGD 45,000 to
the investee and accounted for the investments under equity
accounting method. Further losses incurred by the investee
are recognized by the Group to the extent of the Group's
obligation for the remaining capital investment of SGD
255,000. Equity in loss of an equity method investee of SGD
300,000 (equivalent to RMB 1,502,000) was recognized for the
year ended December 31, 2018.

On July 10, 2020, the Group and Together Inc Pte. Ltd. mutually
agreed to terminate the investee due to poor performance
which resulted in continuous losses incurred by the Investee.
The Investee had been approved to be deregistered in January
2022.

There is no individually material interests in an associate during
the year ended December 31, 2021 (2020: nil).

AREBREE QR M (R BRERE
R AAR)FBWT ¢

Proportion of o
wnership interest

BERELRAL
Group's
effective Held by

interest the Company
A2H  EADA
ERER BE

Principal activity
TEXHB

Operating beverage
outlets

- - EEHRE

201858 @ AEEE-—RE=FKRE
HTogether Inc Pte. Ltd. TS B % HE
PARA S AN 32 pX 32 — K A FIRIBTG-Pindao
Venture Pte. Ltd. ([##&&EH]) + B
BEERRE  URFINEEEAEEN
mhg - RBREWZE  AEERERE
300,000 N3 T ([# N oe 1) (A E R
AR®1,502,0007T) * LESHEEKRES
10% M Az - BRI EHEM S + A5 E
ERZE=D2ZWEZTEHE - ©4F
SETEHWIEE AR EENRMB L M7
FERTES -

M2018F12H » AKBRAWEEHFE
45,0001 N3 oT - W AR S A S 52 B
AR - WIEEHEENE—FHEEBAL
FERER  UAEENBTELARER
1%255,000% I T AR o AR E
J5 2 %5 E518.300,000 %1 103 7T (FBE R
AR #1,502,00070) E R E E20184 12
A31BIEFERER -

2020567 H108 - KRNE&E K Together
Inc Pte. Ltd. HRAIREKIEEKIKRER - )
HREREFREREERAESLRHE
B8 o WIRE 77 B R202241 AR AEER
SE R o

REZE2021F12A31BIEFE - RELE
N E) I A R E KR (20204F « &) ©
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B BAEIERAIN © LAAREEFIIR)

15 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTPL 1ISUAREBESTEBEEEEHFT A
= Hi18 3 <E’J%rﬂ§?

2021 2020

20215 20204

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARBET T

Equity investment designated at FVTPL T AN AABEAELHEH
AR BESNRERE

— Listed equity investment — FRERE 46,200 -
In 2021, the Group had acquired 4.44% equity interest in Tianye 2021 F - RNEBEWIEHE 83 R G5
Innovation Corporation (HEAIFTARMHB AR AF]) (“Tianye”), ERAR(ITAED(—HBRE2EF /N
a company listed on the National Equities Exchange and Jt%lﬂ%ﬁﬁiii;%/\,yu((%ﬁi’f)ﬂ)J:FFZ
Quotations Co., Ltd. ("NEEQ"). The Group acquired Tianye's NF)AAA% R HE - AEERAARE
equity interest originally at RMB38,640,000, and designated the 38,640,000 T Y i A EF O A~ W HETE AR
equity instrument at FVTPL as the Group hold this instrument BIANAAREBEAEEHZSHFAE
for trading purpose. As of December 31, 2021, the fair value BEz RAAREEIFAZ T AAE
change of this year observed from the market price was RGH®E - HE2021F12A318 « #itm
RMB7,560,000. LERBEMG AFEAAEEEY

RBANER#7,560,0007T °
16 INVENTORIES 16@%’
(a) Inventories in the consolidated statements of a) MEVMBEMRARAZFES
financial position comprise: &
2021 2020
20214 2020%F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARMF T ARETTT
Raw materials B R 121,383 74,224
Packaging supplies and others BEAR 52,706 28,837

174,089 103,061
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B BAEIERAIN © LALAREEFIIR)

16 INVENTORIES (continued) 16 78 (&)
(b) The analysis of the amount of inventories (b) BRAERSZ W ABZNTE
recognized as an expense and included in profit SEAWTWT -

or loss is as follows:

2021 2020
2021% 20204
RMB’'000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARBET T

Carrying amount of inventories sold BEHTFEZEHEE 1,400,674 1,159,322
Write-down of inventories FEMOR 1,566 602
1,402,240 1,159,924

17 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 17 ESZ R HMEWFIE

The Group REE

2021 2020
202145 20204
RMB’'000 RMB'000

ARBTR ARETT

Current ED
Trade receivables Z 5 e FIa 2,756 816
Input valued-added tax recoverable AT [o] #E T I (E B 146,449 99.612
Income tax recoverable AT B TSR 893 606
Amounts due from related parties JE s Bt 77 kR (B RE32(d))

(note 32(d)) 2,464 306
Receivable from series C preferred JEWC R B RIEE AFIE

shares holder (note (i) (B #EG)) - 521,992
Other receivables E e YRR 24,401 34,840

176,963 658,172

Prepayments FE A FhE 169,109 66,832
Non-current FERE
Prepayments for purchase of property  BEE ¥ ¥ M TENI FHIE 331,816 =
Prepayments for purchase of equipment B4 B &1 T8 {4 78 6,567 1,667

338,383 1,667
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17 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

AANREEDITR)

17 E5 R E B IE (&

(continued)
The Company IN/N]|
2021 2020
202145 20204
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARET T AREFIT
Amount due from subsidiaries (note (i) &Y E A &1 738 (B 5E3i)) 1,947,794 12,876

Receivable from series C preferred

FERCR I BIERIFE AR

shares holder (note (i)) (BF&EG) - 521,992
Other receivables H b el kI8 = 11,420
1,947,794 546,288

Notes: fEE -

(i

(ii)

In prior year, pursuant to a share purchase agreement entered into between
the Company and PAGAC Nebula Holdings Limited ("PAGAC Nebula”),
PAGAC Nebula agreed to subscribe for 72,497,876 Series C Preferred
Shares of the Company at a price of USD1.1035 per share, for a total
purchase consideration of USD80 million. The subscription was completed
on December 31, 2020 and the total consideration are receivable from
PAGAC Nebula due to time lags in the banking transaction processing as at
December 31, 2020. The total consideration had been received in January
2021.

Amounts due from a subsidiary are unsecured, non-interest bearing and
recoverable on demand.

All of the current portion of trade and other receivables are

expected to be recovered or recognized as expense within one

year.

(i) £=F - REARLQFEPAGAC Nebula Holdings
Limited([PAGAC Nebula|) 537 H B A% 17575
PAGAC NebulaE ZRE&RK&7H1.1035F TH)
ERREARRTT2,497,876CEFIE LK -
HEEHEAROBEET - AERBEEERN
2020512 431 H5EA R B/ 20205F12 431 HER
IR EBILHEEEHE - BEETIEEPAGAC
NebulalgBL o 2 ¥{EE 7202141 A YE °

(i) BUR—FKHBARRAREER  2ERATE
2R E o

EE S NEMERKRENRE DA
BN —F AR RO HER R
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B} BH3ERHIN

17 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(continued)
Ageing analysis
As at the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis of

trade receivables based on the invoice date and net of loss
allowance, is as follows:

7 & M 35 3R RO EE

AANREEDIR)

17 B 5 K H ft BRI (48)

AREC DT
REBEEHR  HEZEHRMBREER
BOE ZRBENRE DO

2021 2020

20214 20204

RMB’'000 RMB'000

ARET T ARET T

Within 1 month —@AARN 443 616
1 to 3 months —Z={@A 2,132 32
3 to 6 months =&XEA 129 122
Over 6 months HBiEs~E A 52 46
2,756 816

183

Trade receivables are due within 30 to 90 days from the date of
billing. Further details on the Group's credit policy and credit
risk arising from trade debtors are set out in note 30(a).

BHRYFIEAMEHHENE0E RN
2 - FEAKRENEEBRRKEKER
REER)(E & R &R M EE30(a) °
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18 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND 18HERBRESEEBEYWUREMIR
OTHER CASH FLOW INFORMATION EREER
(a) Cash and cash equivalents comprise: (a) HREe MREEFEBYWRTE :
The Group NEE
2021 2020
20215 20204
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTR ARBET T

Cash and cash equivalents (ii) B4 MRS ZEEBYI) 4,104,555 501,853

Less: restricted bank deposits (i) W SR BIERTTIFSR() (51,749) (100)

Cash and cash equivalents ReRBEESEED 4,052,806 501,753
The Company VNN |

2021 2020

20214 20204

RMB’'000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARETT

Cash and cash equivalents He MBS EEY 3,204,744 14,979
Notes: BeE
(i)  Restricted bank deposits are marginal deposits required by the banks () ZRERITERRBBITETEEEERA]
for issuing unconditional and irrevocable letter of guarantee as follow: HEMERHERNRESFER - TR
TN
2021 2020
2021%F 20204
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T AREFT
Guarantee deposits for performance guarantees  EHIERNRES 42,166 100
Guarantee deposits for forward foreign REINELIBA DN
exchange structure contracts REE 9,201 -
Others Hit 382 -
51,749 100
(i) As at December 31, 2021, cash and cash equivalents placed with (iiy M2021%12A318 ' TERHBE KK
banks in mainland China amounted to RMB3,313,347,000 (2020: BITHREERESEEYWLEAAR
RMB453,501,000). Remittance of funds out of mainland China is subject #3,313,347,0007C (20204 : AR¥
to the relevant rules and regulations of foreign exchange control 453,501,0007T) ° AP BIKEERE S
promulgated by the PRC government. 5 BB R4 SNE B bl ) AE R AR I &

R o
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18 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND

OTHER CASH FLOW INFORMATION

(continued)

(b) Reconciliation of loss before taxation to cash

REMEGRRME

AANREEDIR)

18RERFASZEFEYWUREMIR
EREBER(E)

(b) BRI B EEKEASHRESH

generated from operations: iR -
2021 2020
202145 2020%F
Notes RMB’'000 RMB'000
B &E AR¥T R ARETT
Loss before taxation MR E 18 (4,529,629) (190,095)
Adjustments for: TSR IEERE
Depreciation e 6(d) 624,131 506,890
Amortization of intangible assets AL 6(d) 167 139
Impairment loss on property and L EYSET =1V
equipment and right-of-use assets  {FREEERN
FBEE B 6(c) 6,844 3,200
Write-down on inventories WEFs 6(c) 1,566 602
Finance costs A& B R 6(a) 91,547 130,258
Interest income FEWA 5 (7,893) (5,952)
Loss on disposal of property and I E Y R AR IA K
equipment and right-of-use assets  FHEEEREE 6(e) 20,205 1,209
Equity-settled share-based payment ARz 4EE LARL (D &
expenses AWM REX 6(b) 32,732 45,458
Fair value changes of financial assets AR R EEFEHH
at FVTPL SEETAEHERN
ERMEENAREEB
= (7,560) -
Fair value changes of financial ﬂﬁﬁfﬁ.{f;ﬂﬁ
liabilities at FVTPL & BEEAEHERN
TRBENARER
58 11,330 132,757
Fair value changes of convertible A 88 44 ] B [ 18 S i Y
redeemable preferred shares N BEEE 24 4,329,052 =
Covid-19-related rent concessions  2EBHCOVID-19
received EEEESER 11(b) (2,100) (46,592)
Changes in working capital: LEESEE
Increase in inventories T —gh)li| (72,594) (25,910)
Increase in trade and other B 5 N H b e s IE
receivables, prepayments and TR RIEA R
rental deposits HEZ LM (192,551) (81,210)
Increase in trade and other payables & 5 K £t f& ft 28
ile] 67,039 64,103
Increase in contract liabilities ERBEEMN 139,503 33,651
Increase in restricted bank deposits y\ﬁﬁ%\]fﬁﬂﬁ K8 N (382) (100)
Cash generated from operations KEFFIRE 511,407 568,408

185
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B BAEIERAIN © LAAREEFIIR)
18 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND 18RERRETEEYURHEMIR
OTHER CASH FLOW INFORMATION TREEH(R)
(continued)
(c) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing (c) MEBEEHFIEAABYR
activities
The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities TRFVNWNAEEREEEAELE
from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash B DFEIRESNIERSEE o
changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are BB EHELAAEREER SR
liabilities for which cash flows were, or future cash flows will ERNAKREERECD LD % SEE
be, classified in the Group’s consolidated statements of AEBGLEBREeRERIEAMREE
cash flows as cash flows from financing activities. SRS RENEAE -
Listing
expense
payable
Convertible  (included in
Interest-  Amounts due  Redeemable Financial  redeemable trade
Bank bearing  to related capital Lease Liabilities preferred and other
loans  borrowings parties  contributions liabilities at FVTPL shares payables) Total
NRALEE
FEER Eff LT
L-EEPN ER ER(GA
fEff %A ERERN aEE  EEREM
RTER HEER  BEANA g LEL SRAE Bik  EfiFE) Eh
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR  ARMTR  ARBTR  ARMTr  ARBTR  ARMTr  ARBTR  ARMTn  ARBTR
(note 21) (note21)  (note 32(d)) (note 22) (note 25) (note 23) (note 24) (note 20)
(Hi21) (Wa2)  (WiE32d) (Hit22) (Hi2s) (B23) GEZ) (Hita0)
At January 1, 2021 R2021E181R 283,120 438 159 465,309 1,356,726 361,881 652,490 1,321 3,121,444
Changes from financing cash flows: ~ HEREHEL
Repayment of bank loans [ERETEH (283,120) - - - - - - - (283,120)
Repayment of redeemable capital REAEENERTER
contributions arising from 1B
Reorganization } - - - (381,000 - - - - (381,000)
Repayment of warrants, onshore loans B 2Bt1E « EWET
and convertible note TARE - - - - - (200,000) - - (200,000)
Proceeds from issuance of convertible ~ EfT]BATERELK
redeemable preferred shares - - - - - - 1,115,264 - 1,115,264
Payment of capital element and interest ~ THEEREH AL TS
element of lease liabilities i *IK - - - - (462,485) = = = (462,485)
Interest of bank loans paid BRROEFHE (2,351) - - - - - - - (2,351)
Proceeds from policy-based discount Eﬁlﬁ@@%g S
interest 1,500 - - - - - - - 1,500
Listing expenses paid ‘H:?ﬁﬁf X - - - - - - - (3,527) (3,527)
Advances from related parties Wﬁﬁ%ﬁ - - 309 - - - - - 309
Repayments of advances from related BB F 3
parties - - (468) - - - - = (468)
Total changes from financing cash flows  BEREHEZHAE (283,971) - (159) (381,000) (462,485) (200,000 1,115,264 (3,527) (215,878)
Exchange adjustments EigE - (10) - (1) (234) (1,627) (18,938) = (20,810)
Changes in fair value MEELD - - - - - 2874 4,329,052 - 4,331,926
Other changes: Epeg:
Interest expenses (note 8(z) 78 3% (Hk6(a) 851 = = 866 88,757 = = = 90,474
COVID-19-related rent concessions EE{GHICOVID-19
received REREER. - - - - (2,100) = = = (2,100)
Receivable from issuance of preferred BB % REUZE
shares - - - - - - (521,992) - (521,992)
Re-designation of preferredsharesto  #EARENETALH
ordinary shares & - - - - - - 32,303 - 32,303
Conversion from redeemable capital A% EEHEREEE
contribution, FVTPL to preferred FAESRANTED
shares TEBABEGHR = = o (85,174) - (163,128) 248,302 - -
Automatic share conversion upon listing 53 £ §Q§M§?‘*ﬁx f - - - - (5836,481) - (5836,481)
Reclassification of bank and loans BOIRERENE 428 (428) = = = = = = =
Addition hE = - - 586,122 - - 2,410 588,532
Disposal i3 - - - - (113,748) - - - (113,748)
Total other changes EEBEE 1219 (428) - (84,308) 559,031 (163,128)  (6,077,868) 2410 (5763,012)
At December 31, 2021 R2021512A31R 428 - - - 1,453,038 - - 204 1,453,670
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18 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND 18RERREEBEYUREMBIR
OTHER CASH FLOW INFORMATION EREER (&
(continued)
(c) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing (c) MEBETHIIELABABHER(E)
activities (continued)
Listing
expense
payable
Convertible  (included in
Interest-  Amountsdue  Redeemable Financial  redeemable trade
Bank bearing to related capital Lease Liabilities preferred and other
loans  borrowings parties  contributions liabilities at FVTPL shares payables) Total
WAREE
HERH JEf L7
EERIN nEh ERGA
« #  EE sEESY  TER ARRAR
RITER FRER  EEAIE iy HERR LRaE Bk Ef3R) @t

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETR  ARBTT  ARETR  ARBTT  ARMTR  ARETT  ARMTR  ARETR  ARETR
(note 21) (note 21)  (note 32(d)) (note 22) (note 25) (note 23) (note 24) (note 20)

(K1) (o) (W) (Ht22) (K3i25) GiE7) (Friza4) (Kt20)

At January 1, 2020 #2020%1A18 54,500 - 2,540 438,060 1,253,615 - - - 1748715

Changes from financing cash flows: ~ BERSHESRT
Proceeds from bank loans and other ~ F{TEFHRAMEFRFE

borrowing 2B 374,500 474 - - - - - - 374974
Repayment of bank loans BESIER (152,620) - - - - - - - (152,620)
Repayment of redeemable capital REAELNEETER

contributions arising from i

Reorganization - - - (11,000) - - - - (11,000)
Proceeds from issuance of warrants, RIARES  ERER

onshore loans and convertible note RURREENHER

B = = = - - 234,466 - - 234,466
Payment of capital element and interest X HEEEHFEHH

element of lease liabilities e - - - - (342,908) - - - (342,908)
Interest of bank loans paid BRRAEFHE (8,924) - - - - - - - (8,924)
Proceeds from policy-based discount ~ BRMEZEFHUEHE

interest o 1,000 - - - - - - - 1,000
Listing expenses paid B EmRY - - - - - - - (684) (684)
Advances from related parties ety - - 6,485 - - - - - 6,485
Repayments of advances from related ~ [BEBEFE

parties - - (8,866) - = - - - (8,866)
Total changes from financing cash flows  BEBEHEZHAE 21395 474 (2,381) (11,000) (342,908) 234,466 - (684) 91,923
Exchange adjustments EX@% = (38) = = (1,710) (5,342) = = (7,088)
Changes in fair value MEESH = = = = = 132,757 = = 132,757
Other changes: :

Interest expenses (note 6(a)) HERX (Kizke(a) 7924 = = 38,249 83,234 = = = 129,407
Bank borrowings from trade financing ~ EZBAFEHTEH 6,740 - - - - - - - 6,740
COVID-19-related rent concessions BESHCOVID-19

received RERSEE = = = = (48,592) - - - 4859%)
Receivable from issuance of preferred 7B ERENEE

shares - - - - - - 521992 - 521,992
Re-designation of preferredsharesto ~ #ELRER T

ordinary shares BEmk = = = = = = 130,498 = 130498
Addition WE = - - - 432,442 - - 2,005 434447
Disposal i - - - - (21,355 = = o (21,355)
Total other changes Hhgaag 14,664 - - 38,249 7719 - 652,490 2,005 1,185,137

At December 31, 2020 #20205128318 283120 438 159 465,309 1,356,726 361,881 652490 1321 3,121,444
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18 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND 18RS RBESEEYUREMEA
OTHER CASH FLOW INFORMATION EREER(E
(continued)
(d) Total cash outflow for leases (d) HER S R LA
Amounts included in the consolidated statements of cash HARMEZEBRERERNEES
flows for leases comprise the following: FETRFEIE
2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’'000 RMB'000

AR®T ARETT

Within operating cash flows KERGRER 204,914 92,285
Within financing cash flows MERESREF 472,264 342,908
677,178 435,193

19 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 19 B 5 Kk 2 th B 5K
2021 2020
20214 2020
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®T ARETT

Trade payables B S E N FIa 289,213 226,146
Other payables and accrued charges HtEARIERETER 362,509 257,711
Amounts due to related parties (note 32(d)) f&{~EARE T 7118 (M 5E32(d)) 2,486 16,819
654,208 500,676
All trade and other payables (including amounts due to related FrBE 5 &K E e~ 518 (B 45 B - A B
parties) are expected to be settled or recognized as income FHIR)TERER —F NG E I ERRE

within one year or are repayable on demand. WEIREKER -
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19 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued) 19 B8 REMENRE(E)

As at the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis of REREMEK  BHENFTERRER
trade payables based on the invoice date, is as follows: BRRBRER DT 0T ¢

2021 2020

2021% 2020%F

RMB’'000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARBET T

Within 1 year —F R 287,942 225,067
More than 1 year —FE Pk 1,271 1,079
289,213 226,146

20 CONTRACT LIABILITIES 2068 E
2021 2020
202145 20204F
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTR ARETT

Contract liabilities related to prepaid cards EIEfREBHNE N ARG 209,741 67,070
Contract liabilities related to discount BT HAE MR ESE B
vouchers and free vouchers S oN=Fr 977 670
Contract liabilities related to customer HEFEERAAMHN
membership programs EHARE 3,810 2,619
Contract liabilities related to service BRTEE A REIERES D
contract and trademark licensing BREANEGHEEN)
contract (i) 3,526 8,192
218,054 78,551
Note (i): The contract liability related to service contract represents the MizEG) : EREANEBNANABEAQRE—
Company’s remaining contractual obligations under the agreements ERHRERERBHEET LN HREE
it entered into with a mobile device charging service provider to allow TRATAZRBEEEN AR DRRKERE
the service provider to install its power bank cabinets in the Company’s HESFERANTEEOFIREOET -
teahouses for its customers’ use.
The contract liabilities relate to trademark licensing contract represents HEEHAENEMNENAEERERAEE
the Group's granting of permission to certain collaborated parties to use mETEEARTEE THERDR L&A

its brands on certain agreed commercial products Hm@eEra o
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20 CONTRACT LIABILITIES (continued) 206 HEE(E
Movements in contract liabilities S4B EEH)
2021 2020
20215 20204F
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTR ARET T

Balance at the beginning of the year REY R 4R 78,551 44,900
Decrease in contract liabilities as a result of FERETAENE LA ED

recognizing revenue during the year that ~FRUFEH AN EER D

was included in the contract liabilities at

the beginning of the year (75,271) (37,245)
Increase in contract liabilities S4B &M 214,774 70,896
Balance at the end of the year PERI & 218,054 78,551

21 INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS 21 5T EEBR
The Group's interest-bearing borrowings are analyzed as REBEZFBERSTAT
follows:
2021 2020
2021% 20204F
RMB’'000 RMB'000

ARBTR ARET T

Current liabilities mBRIE
Bank loans within one year or on demand —FRFIRERKZIRITER
- unsecured and guaranteed — EEIR R ER = 283,120
Add: Current portion of long-term bank - REFSRITRE S BIHAER (5
borrowings 428 =
428 283,120
Non-current liability SEMBEE
Interest-bearing borrowing TEMER
— Paycheck Protection Program (“PPP") —HERESEI(TPPPL) B
loan 428 438
Less: Current portion of long-term bank B RESRITRE R Z BIHAER 4
borrowings (428) =

- 438




Annual Report 45§ 2021

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B BAEIERAIN © LALAREEFIIR)

(a) As at December 31, 2021, banking facilities of the Group
amounted to RMB 200,000,000 (2020: RMB440,000,000)
were utilized to the extent of nil (2020: RMB283,120,000).

(b) In prior year, Citibank, N.A. approved a PPP loan to
Pindao New Jersey Ltd. in the United States ("US"),
under the Paycheck Protection Program pursuant to the
Coronavirus Aid, Relief and Economic Security (CARES)
Act. The PPP loan has a term of two years, is unsecured,
and is guaranteed by the US Small Business Administration
(the “SBA"). The PPP loan bears interest at a fixed rate of
1.0% per annum, with the first six months of interest and
principal deferred. Some or all of the loan may be forgiven
if certain relevant conditions are met. In January 2022, the
SBA has approved the application for forgiving the PPP
loan.

The analysis of the carrying amount of redeemable capital
contributions is as follows:

Redeemable capital contributions AEEDT &

In 2017, Shenzhen Pindao Management entered into a capital
contribution agreement with certain investors, pursuant to
which, these investors agreed to invest RMB70,000,000 to
acquire 10% of the then equity interest of Shenzhen Pindao
Management. In the same year, Shenzhen Pindao Management
further entered into a capital contribution agreement with
certain investors, pursuant to which the investors agreed
to invest RMB22,000,000 to acquire 2.2% of the then equity
interest of Shenzhen Pindao Management (collectively referred
as "Round A Investments”).

(@) M2021F12A31H » KEBERRTT
& A& 5 A R % 200,000,000 7T
(20204 : A R #440,000,0007C) °
WEEHBEBRE (2020F: AR
283,120,0007%) ©

b) REF - BETKESEE - B
NG % & (CARES)SE 5 8 3 B R
I8 B (PPP)TETESR AT HL M T 3
Pindao New Jersey Ltd.HJPPPE X
F75 - PPPERABME - FIKH -
W EB/NEEBE ([SBALPER o
BZE T FFE1.0%T L - AN
BEANMERASAIERSL T - &
BEBERGENDER RS T
EEERMER o R2022F18 -
SBAEHL/EBBRPPPE KAV o

AREBEZABEDEESTWAT ¢

2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’'000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARETT

- 465,309

R2017F - FY REEERETRE
BEIMOEE W Bt ZEREER
B E AR ¥70,000,000 7T U B8 % Il 5
EEBEER10%KRE - BF - FIlRE
EREETREEE L ETEW
#EOBU ZEREEREREAR
#& 22,000,000 7T W BB R Il Gh 18 B IR B B
22%HE (B A [ARIRE]) -
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From May to November 2018, Shenzhen Pindao Management
entered into three capital contribution agreements
with certain investors, pursuant to which these investors
agreed to contribute RMB60,000,000, RMB90,000,000
and RMB150,000,000 (collectively referred as “Round B-1
Investments”) to acquire 1%, 1.5% and 2.5% of the then equity
interest of Shenzhen Pindao Management respectively.

The holders of the Round A and Round B-1 investment shares
are entitled to the same voting rights and dividend rights as
other equity holders of Shenzhen Pindao Management. A
summary of the special rights attributable to the Round A and
Round B-1 investments:

Redemption rights

Shenzhen Pindao Management shall buy back all, or portion of
the Round A investments and Round B-1 investments held by
the holders upon certain events at the option of the holders at
any time upon certain events as follows:

(a) failure of the Group to complete the Qualified IPO on or
before 30 December 2023;

(b) changes to the Group's beneficial controlling owners or
other events which may result in the failure the Group
to complete the Qualified IPO within the stipulated time
frame;

(c) any breach of contractual terms or misconducts by the
management of the Group which may result in adverse
financial effect (as defined in the capital contribution
agreements as actual outlay losses of more than RMB1
million) to the holders and subsequently not financially
compensated;

(d) failure of the Group to register for commercial trademarks
for certain brand of products of the Group to secure the
branding of the business before 31 December 2018.

AANREEDITR)

R2018F5 A1 A RYIREBEEEEE
TFHREBRINLZBITEWS - Bt - %
L/ EERE D BIHE ARE60,000,000
7T - A R ¥ 90,000,000 7T K& A R #
150,000,0007C (#4548 [ B-1851% & |) U BE
FINREEEER1% © 1.5%M2.5%H %
T o

AREB1BmIRENFKAEAGRZTAER
YImBEREMBRERE AMRANKRR
R SHER - BBNALR RB-1WIKRE
HRFRIERIBEZ 2T

iy
GHlREERREEATETEHEAR
BERSIRIE A ARIRIBIE R 2 ek 3o+
EABBNARRE KB-1HEE

(a) NEEKREEE2023F12H30H 52
AISER A BB RN AREE

(b) A E B IEA AR R
5 B A {10 7 38 B o K T
BERRINERAERERANE
OESLE

) AEEERERERAOERIAET
BT AMAEH A AELET
BRE(EITEMAETAETRERX
HEXBBARK1BET)BEZR
WAREITH B HE

(d) NEEREEE2018E12A31HATE
AEAE B0 E o EIZ R
EETEH EHEE o
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The redemption price of the Round A investments and Round
B-1 investments shall equal to the aggregate of:

(a) the total actual consideration paid by the investors;

(b) an annual rate of return of 8% beginning from the date of
actual payments of the consideration from the investors to
the redemption date, excluding any actual paid dividends
during the equity holding period.

At the date of issuance, both Round A and Round B-1
Investments are initially recognized at fair value and are carried
at amortized cost for subsequent periods. Interest on both
Round A and Round B-1 investments is calculated using the
effective interest method and recognized in the consolidated
statements of profit or loss.

In December 2020 and January 2021, Shenzhen Pindao
Management had repaid the aggregate principal amount
of RMB392 million to redeemable capital contributions
investors as part of the Reorganization. Pursuant to the share
subscription agreement, the repayment were utilized by the
redeemable capital contributions investors to subscribe for
certain number of series A, series A+ and series B-1 preferred
shares of the Company (note 24).

ABRIRENB-1HIRENBEEFTNIAT
BIEZH

(a) REEXNNERHERE

b) BEREAERINHEEAZED
B 128% & F [0 i R 51 B &9 B 3R (F1B%
FER7 A B HA R B ROK 5 &9 1 ] Bk

B e

RELER  AlRNB-1WEREINHKIZ
DA B EFER I 2 12 HI M R 12 3 55 A
IR o Al LB 18w IRENFEERE
BRAREAE YRS BERER

2020512 A 202118 - fEAEH
M—Ho  FYmEESEERTEDE
BREEEBEASHEARBINEE
T IREBERORERZE  BREEZA
BRIZEHREERARRERAAGTE TR
ART] ~ A+ R T & B-1 R 5B 5t i (B 5
24) °
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23 FINANCIAL LIABILITIES AT FVTPL 23URAAREEBHEHTAE

N J
HigmMEsmas
2021 2020
20215 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARBET T

Forward foreign exchange structure REVMELE SR
contracts (note 30(e)(i)) (FF5E30(e)(i)) 8,376 -
Warrants (note (a)) RIEAEE (FiiEE(a)) - 114,254
Onshore loans (note (a)) BEAER (M) - 197,126
Convertible note (note (a)) AT IR IR (M 5 (a)) - 50,501
8,376 361,881
(a) Warrants, onshore loans and convertible note (a) RIXHERE - BAER K AR
ZIR
In prior year, the Group completed B-2 round financing REF  REBEBRTHKB-2HmME -
issuing convertible loan and note respectively to its AR AEDRMSCGCEARIERABMR A
investors, namely SCGC Capital Holding Company Limited Al N A BB AL (528 [SCGC )M
and its affiliates (collectively known as “SCGC") and Court Court Card HK Limited([ CCHK )
Card HK Limited (“CCHK"). BRITBRRERRER -
In January 2021, upon the completion of the R2021F1 8 - R mBERRTTK
Reorganization, Shenzhen Pindao Management had BHEBEMSCGCEEARAGBAR
repaid the principal amount of RMB200 million to SCGC 2008 &7 - PATTR I 1 R AR E
to exercise and convert the warrants and onshore loans MEAERERBE T E 0PN/
into certain number of series B-2 preferred shares of the AIB-2RIIMB SRR o LA - IREE -
Company. Furthermore, during the same period, the CCHK CCHKIFE R 7eK EAREITER I A7
had also exercised and converted the convertible note BRREBRERSE THENB-257
into certain number of series B-2 preferred shares upon B (Ff5E24) -

completion of the Reorganization (Note 24).
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The details and key terms of the warrants, onshore loans and REEE - BAERLTHBEEE 2 A
B R = Z BT

the convertible note are summarized as follows:

() Warrants and onshore loans () RSB

In prior year, SCGC had entered into an onshore loan
agreement with a subsidiary of the Group, Shenzhen
Pindao Management, to provide RMB denominated
loans amounted to RMB200 million. In connection with
the onshore loan agreements, SCGC and its affiliates
had entered into warrant purchase agreements with the
Company to subscribe for and purchase from the Company
the warrants convertible into series B-2 preferred shares
of the Company (“the Warrants”). The Group designated
and accounted for the onshore loans as financial liabilities
at FVTPL and the Warrants are accounted for as derivative
liabilities measured at FVTPL (see note 2(t)).

The key terms of the warrants and onshore loans are as
follows:

Warrants

The Warrants can be exercised by the holders upon the
completion of the Overseas Direct Investments registration
("ODI registration”) within 9 months from the issue
date of the Warrants. Upon an exercise of the Warrants,
The Company will issue series B-2 preferred shares to
the warrant holders. The series B-2 preferred shares
are automatically converted into ordinary shares of the
Company prior to the closing of the qualified Initial Public
Offering (“the qualified IPO").

Number of series B-2 preferred shares to be issued
upon exercise of the Warrants

The number of series B-2 preferred shares to be issued
upon exercise of the Warrants shall be determined by the
amount repaid by Shenzhen Pindao Management under
the onshore loan agreement (“Repayment amount”) as
converted by the exchange rate and the initial exercise
price of United States Dollars (“USD") 0.6366 per series B-2
preferred shares.

EF  SCGCHAEBEHEF —KHE
AR RBEBII—HERE
A NRESEAARE2008H
ETHUARBENENR - SCGC
MEBBATCOREBERNER G HE
RRARFILRBIEFEEHZE - U
AARNARBERBEAEBAARNRD
AIB-2 R 5B L IR R HEE ([ R
EE]) AEEBETHEANERY
ARVNBUAABEFEEHES
SAEHESENERAaBERBERK
BEARINBURABEFEAHR
SEASHEZNTLERE(RK
FE2(t) °

RIEHEERIEANE R E 25T
AT

BRI
RGBS TRBESEZ A
NEARZKFEIEERAER
(MRS EBERABR]) e HHA
1T - TERBERE - RAAMS
BB 2RI ERRT RERFH
A > B2EBIERBNA AR ERA
MRE(AARERDNEE]) G
FAT G BRRARA RN LR -

TT1E R R FE B 1 5 T 21 THIB-2 5 7
B RAEH
TERBEFER G EITHB-2K7
BEBRMNEKE AFYREEERE
ENERpHEENcHE(TEES
KT WIRERRAIRITHERE
FHB-2R 5B f%0.6366F T ([ =
TTIRE o
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(i) Warrants and onshore loans (continued)

Exercise period

Earlier of within five business days from the repayment date
from Shenzhen Pindao Management under the onshore
loan agreement ("Repayment date”).

Exercise payment

The equivalent amount in USD of the Repayment amount
as converted based on the selling rate of USD of the China
Merchants Bank on the relevant exercise date.

Expiration
The Warrants shall expire on the fifteenth business day
after nine months of the dates of the Warrants.

Repayment of the onshore loans

Shenzhen Pindao Management is required to repay SCGC
to exercise the Warrants upon the completion of the ODI
registration within the stipulated timeframe.

In the case where the ODI registration had not completed
within the stipulated timeframe, Shenzhen Pindao
Management is also required to repay SCGC for the
onshore loan amounts provided for the portion of the
Warrant that had not been exercised due to the failure
to complete the ODI registration. The repayment period
could be extended to first (1st), third (3rd) or fifth (5th)
anniversary from the date of the Warrants, depending on
the agreed causes for such failure. The repayments are
interest-free in any of the above circumstances.

Upon the occurrence of any accelerated events as defined
by the Warrants agreement, the repayment of the onshore
loans shall be based on the redemption price of the series
B-2 preferred shares on an as-converted and as-exercised
basis.

AANREEDITR)

RBEZLIRANER(E)
7712 2 A

SRR REE RN ENE R IR
THERAS(ERAS]) A
BER

T34
BEeENETEXTERZTER
BRTRAEBTERHNETEN
[EXRBE) o

25
RIREER N R AEE B RN E
ARFtREEXBEH -

EEZAERX
RImBERBAERRERHEAT
FRRINBE R B B RC1& AISCGCER
IATTIE R HER -

ERIERREBLRERENR
RATER - BRI G EE EIAR
SCGCEERARTRFEINBEEIRE
B R0 M AR BETT (£ 7 B0 70 w8 A 4 5 1Y
BAEREHE  EFRHAUILERER
BEFEAHENE - F=ZHER
BB B (1R RN ReE SR ARRE B R
BRI E R E) ° E EREMIBER
T EBFIHFELER e

B TR HE R 155 R T SR E MY IR
=14 AIBAERNEREZB-25
JIEERNBREREEREETT
R HEE
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(ii) Convertible note

In prior year, the Company and CCHK had entered
into an agreement pursuant to which the Company
issued a convertible note to the CCHK for consideration
of RMB34,466,000 (face value of USD5 million). The
convertible note shall be due and payable on the earlier
of (i) 1st anniversary of the note issue date (“the Maturity
Date”) or (ii) the due and payable date triggered by an
event of default. The convertible note bears interest at
LIBOR interest rate per annum payable on the Maturity
Date.

The rights of the noteholder to convert the note into series
B-2 preferred shares are as follows:

Conversion right

In the case of the Group restructuring whereby Shenzhen
Pindao Management becomes a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company is completed within 9 months from the
convertible note issue date (or within a longer year ending
no later than the Maturity Date as mutually agreed by the
Company and CCHK), the outstanding principal amount of
the convertible note is automatically converted into series
B-2 preferred shares of the Company, in which event the
convertible note is deemed interest-free during the year
between the convertible note issue date and the date of

conversion.

In respect of which conversion rights have not been
exercised, the convertible note will be redeemed at face
value plus LIBOR interest rate on the due and payable
date.

(i) AR IR

EE > KA R ECCHKETY —E#
F Bt ARAE MCCHKE 1T
— AR ER  HEAARE
34,466,000 T (HM{EASBEEXETT) °
ZABBREENRSENBEAxG
ZRHTHME—FERFA (25
B 1) 8k (i) T AT & 4 F 1 5| 32 49 2 87
FENB(ARERAEB®E) - Al
RERIZBBERITRERENFF
KEtE - BREIBAESA -

SEHAABREERAB-2RIE
FERRE RIS

HIRE

fii A &= B R B4R ORI B B IR It
AR RBENZEM B AR R R
BREEETEETOEAARHE
AR AR CCHKAER 1 E TR 2 5
RERNBREFE)THK - AT
EENAREERSBHERARAD
AHIB-2 RSB - tLRBIFR T A
BEEERAIBREREETEHRE
BRAMFERERREE °

BhE RITEEM AR 5 - AT
SRR B BN B mEE R
FRIZEFENXED -
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23 FINANCIAL LIABILITIES AT FVTPL
(continued)

23 UAREBESEAEZSEHFTA
EHERNSREE(R)

The movements of the warrants, onshore loans and convertible RS - BERNER LR ERE 7 &

note are set out as below: BE TG0

Warrants,
onshore loans

and

convertible

note

AR

RERERK

CIE: 34

RMB’'000

AR¥T R

At January 1, 2020 #20205F181H8 -
Issuance of the warrants BITRRERE 22,686
Issuance of the onshore loans EITIERNER 177,314
Issuance of the convertible note BT R IR 34,466
Fair value changes NREBEZD 132,757
Exchange reserve b S fE (5,342)
At December 31, 2020 M2020%12H31H 361,881
At January 1, 2021 R2021F1 818 361,881
Conversion of the warrants BATRIRERE (113,126)
Conversion of the onshore loans BITIRANER (200,000)
Conversion of the convertible note LT AR = I (50,002)
Fair value changes NRELZE 2,874
Exchange reserve b 5 1 (1,627)

At December 31, 2021

A2021%12A31H
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The Group applied the market approach to determine the
underlying equity value of the Group and adopted option-
pricing method and equity allocation model to determine the
fair value of the warrants, onshore loans and convertible note.
Key assumptions are set as below:

Discount rate B35 &
Risk-free interest rate

Volatility R IE

The fair value of the warrants, onshore loans and convertible
note (“Subject”) was determined with the assistance of an
independent third-party valuation firm, Jones Lang LaSalle
Corporate Appraisal and Advisory Limited. The fair value of
the Subject was principally developed through the application
of the option pricing method (“OPM"). The OPM treats
ordinary share and the Subject as call options on the entity’s
equity value, with exercise prices based on the liquidation and
redemption preferences of the Subject. This method considers
the various terms of the investor agreements of the Subject that
would affect the distributions to the Subject upon a liquidation
event, including the level of seniority among the securities,
conversion ratios, and cash allocations. The OPM frequently
relies on the Black-Scholes option pricing model to price the
call option.

Since the date of incorporation and upon the completion
of Reorganization, the Company has completed several
rounds of financing and re-designation of ordinary shares
to convertible redeemable preferred shares to its investors,
namely, series A preferred shares, series A+ preferred shares,
series B-1 preferred shares, series B-2 preferred shares and
series C preferred shares (collectively as “Preferred Shares”),
respectively.

R R

AEEEAMSEEEASENHERK
BEE  LRABREEEENREED R
BREETRRER  RAERR AT
EEODAEE - TERREIIWNT:

Warrants,
onshore loans
and
convertible
note

RIRERE
BREMK
AR EE

6.56%
0.18%
32.78%

REERE BRERRATBRERERR(F
MDNARBENDEBLE=J7HER
AP EBTEEFHERERERAAN
BB TEE - ENNAREEEZERS
FERBEEEE(HEEEE]AES
h- MEEEZREAREENRER
BEEENRBENE  TEREDENE
MEBERBOEERME - tL7EE
ERNNREERENZRRBEESN
BREFERENETOIRNER 2%
EHENER  BEERBEHE - B
EEZBERBHENI —FRHHEE
EBERUSABENEERE -

BEMAZBEHERTRERER - AR
FEEKBmBENENEEERARE
AEBTEOELR  TRAARKRES
DREITETRAINELBR(BARS
B - A+ RIEER - B-1RIER
B% - B-2R BB - CRIIEER) (B
8 Esthel) -
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The key terms of the Preferred Shares are summarized as
follows:

Dividend rights

The holders of Preferred Shares shall be entitled to receive
dividends, out of any funds legally available therefor, prior and
in preference to any declaration or payment of any dividend on
the ordinary shares. No dividend, whether in cash, in property
or in shares of the capital of the Company, shall be paid on
or declared and set aside for any ordinary shares or any other
class or series of shares of the Company unless and until all
dividends have been paid in full on the Preferred Shares (on an
as-converted basis).

Conversion feature

The Preferred Shares shall be automatically converted into
fully-paid, non-assessable ordinary shares, based on the
then-effective applicable conversion price for such shares
immediately prior to the closing of an IPO.

Also, at the option of the holders, the Preferred Shares can be
converted into fully-paid, non-assessable ordinary shares on
the date specified on the written request with respect to such
conversion.

Redemption feature

Upon the written request of each holder of the Preferred
Shares, the Company shall redeem all or any portion of the
Preferred Shares. Upon the earlier to occur of (i) the Company
has not completed an IPO within 36 months of the Issue Date,
or (i) any material breach of any transaction agreement by any
group company or any founder party, any holder of Preferred
Shares may at any time require the Company to redeem any
or all of the then outstanding Preferred Shares held by such
holders at the redemption price which represent the issue
price, plus all declared or accrued but unpaid dividends and an
interest at an annual compounded rate of 8% calculating from
the Issue Date to the payment date.

Voting rights
Each Preferred Shares has voting rights equivalents to the

number of ordinary shares into which such preferred shares
could be then convertible.

BT ey = Z T

A B R

BEBNFEABEANRELREIR
SR A A {7 3B A A B MR B BT B A 1E
HRZMEAESRNORE - BRIER
EEEER(REBREE)NMERE
E2EUKN - BRAIARBTHEARE -
BRI A R R E @RS
H 38 5l 3 R 51 AR 0 TR A 3 B R R AT AR

B kB ERERANBE -

B R
BEBAREEERANEELERNE
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Liquidation preferences

Upon the occurrence of any liquidation, dissolution or winding
up of the Company, whether voluntary or involuntary, the
assets of the Company legally available for distribution shall be
distributed among the holders of the issued and outstanding
shares (on an as-converted basis) in the following order and
manner:

Each holder of Preferred Shares shall be entitled to receive for
each Preferred Share held, the amount equal to one hundred
percent (100%) of the applicable preferred shares issue price,
plus all declared dividends on such Preferred Share. If the
assets and funds available for distribution shall be insufficient
to permit the payment to such holders of the full preferred
preference amount, the liquidation preference amount will be
paid to the preferred shareholders in the following order: first
to holders of series C preferred shares, second to series B-2
and series B-1 preferred shares, third to series A+ preferred
shares and fourth to series A preferred shares.

a%fﬁﬁﬂ

HERNRBEE %”’W‘iii 2 (T im B B
BE) 5'J$ BERAIE D IR EER

Tz:zTBﬂJJ\IEF‘&Eﬁ Dk T B BT BT
IR (RIS EHREE)FH A -

BHREERBFEEARMBENEREL
BEEUDCESNERELRETE

MBS Z—HB(100%) © SNHEBELK
FIEEERAMKRE o & H#HoIREE
FESTRARMBBIZEE ABZEIHFE
EXZES - AR TIEF M E IR R
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24 CONVERTIBLE REDEEMABLE PREFERRED 24 BB FOE LR (E)
SHARES (continued)
Liquidation preferences (continued) BEEBLEE)
The movements of the convertible redeemable preferred Al B AT BB OB S I 2 B EF a0 T

shares are set out as below:

Convertible
redeemable

preferred
shares
AERT R
B8 & IR
RMB’000
AR®TT
At January 1, 2020 202051 A1H -
Issuance of series C preferred shares BITCRIEBER 521,992
Re-designation of ordinary shares to series C R ERREREE RCRINELMR
preferred shares (note 28(iii)) (P zE28(iii)) 130,498
At December 31, 2020 72020 12H31H 652,490
At January 1, 2021 R202161 518 652,490
Issuance of series A, series A+ and series B-1 BITARY ~ A+ R KRB-1RFIE LR
preferred shares 477,174
Issuance of series B-2 preferred shares BEITB-2RFIEL KR 363,128
Re-designation of ordinary shares to series C 15 EBIRE R E RCRIIE LR
preferred shares (note 28iii)) (B EE28ii)) 32,303
Fair value changes of convertible redeemable ATEMATE R E AR AR BEE S
preferred shares 4,329,052
Automatic conversion of all classes preferred shares Ty B EhEZ3 A7 A 48 RIE F i
upon listing (5,836,481)
Exchange reserve HE 5 fE (17,666)

At December 31, 2021 R2021F12H31H -
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24 CONVERTIBLE REDEEMABLE PREFERRED

SHARES (continued)

All classes of convertible redeemable preferred shares were
automatically converted into ordinary shares on a one-to-
one ratio upon the Company’s listing on the Stock Exchange
on June 30, 2021. The difference between the fair value of
the preferred shares as at December 31, 2020 and the listing
offer price of HKD19.80 per share is accounted for as fair value
changes of convertible redeemable preferred shares in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss. The fair value loss
of financial instruments is a non-cash item, and there will be
no further gains or losses on fair value changes from these
preferred shares after the automatic conversion into ordinary
shares upon listing.

25 LEASE LIABILITIES

As at December 31, 2021, the lease liabilities were repayable as

24 ATER A R E B SR (&

MR2021F6 A30B AR BN EBE T L
miE - FTEEMEERE OB
Ehedin 5T @R o E R 2020912 A
MNEMAREENE L THEEFTA19.80
BT EHEBEN GRS BERAMER]
ERAERNELRNAAEBES - &
MTEAERAREBEEBREBIESEE B
FTNEYER AL BIRE  ZEEL
BETeE—FPEERAABEZH R
Sk E1E o

25 HEAE

MN2021F12A310 » ERNFAEREW

follows: T

2021 2020

20214 20204

RMB’'000 RMB'000

ARET T ARET T

Within 1 year —&R 421,153 364,733

After 1 year but within 2 years —F LA HERER 381,093 357,207

After 2 years but within 5 years MEAEERFA 589,912 604,320

After 5 years AFMNE 60,880 30,466
... Vo388 991,993

1,453,038 1,356,726

26 PROVISIONS 26 #B1E

2021 2020

202145 20204

RMB’'000 RMB’000

AR®T ARETFIT

Provisions for restoration costs {B1E B A B s 17,934 13,858
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26 PROVISIONS (continued) 26 B8 (&)
The movements of provisions during the year were as follows: RERBHEZHWOT :
2021 2020
2021%F 2020%F
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTR ARET T

Balance at the beginning of the year REPR &R 13,858 11,477

Additional provisions RERE 3,575 2,792

Interest on provisions BERF] B 1,073 851

Provisions utilized BE AR (572) (1,262)

Balance at the end of the year RERNLEH 17,934 13,858
Pursuant to the terms of the respective tenancy agreements WENEBFAITIOBEEESE WK
entered into by the Group, the Group is required to return its o REBAHERS  AEBEESE
leased properties to the conditions as stipulated in the tenancy HEYEREEEBEHEERZITHNR
agreements at the expiration of the corresponding lease BE(fMEA) - BERABRBENKAER
term as appropriate. The provision for reinstatement costs EEEREBTERRANRL KEMA]
was estimated based on certain assumptions and estimates EBHEEEEEHE FRERE1E
made by the Group’s management with reference to historical Bt o (ST EERE SRR - WIEAS e
reinstatement costs and/or other available market information. HEET o

The estimation basis is reviewed on an ongoing basis and
revised where appropriate.
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27 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(a) Current taxation in the consolidated statement

of financial position represent:

Annual Report 45§ 2021

Iy

27 FE M BT ROAEB

(o) 45 & B 5 A R % 10 B0 29 71

2021 2020

2021% 2020%F

RMB’'000 RMB’000

AR¥T R ARETFT

Balance at the beginning of the year REYIR &R 20,825 5,375
Provision for income tax for the year FREBRE®E(MHE7@)

(note 7(a)) 11,556 9,513
Income tax paid EARAEH (5,357) (2,543)
Income tax refunded BIREMEM 34 8,480
Balance at the end of the year RERLE R 27,058 20,825
Reconciliation to the consolidated A WIS EER ¢

statements of financial position:

Income tax payable B FTIS TR 27,951 21,431
Income tax recoverable (note 17) AREIFIE (FEE17) (893) (606)
27,058 20,825
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27 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(continued)

(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognized:

(i) Movement of each component of deferred tax
assets and liabilities

The components of deferred tax assets/(liabilities)

27 FE M BARR RO TEH ()

(b)

ERERELEHRBEEEMAL
() BEEFEEEREESHS

it

r
/

oy

R

RAFEEAMBHERRNEER

recognized in the consolidated statements of financial RIEFHBEE,/(BRE)IH L&
position and the movements during the year are as B -
follows:
Impairment of
inventories,
property and
Accrued equipment
payroll and and
Unused tax other Lease  right-of-use Contract  Property and
Deferred tax arising from: losses expenses expenses assets liabilities  equipment Others Total
#E NER
ABR  EIER RERKRE
BERERELR: REEE AfB% BEMX BERE SHAE  NERRE A Eh
RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR  ARWTR  AR¥TR  ARMTR  ARMTR  ARMTR  ARBTR  ARBTR
At January 1, 2020 R00F1A18 17,688 1,120 19,774 2,364 1,671 (16,159) 782 27,244
(Charged)/credited to profit or loss ~ BIBZ (1) /3t A
Bx (1,331) 17 16,187 (1,065) 425 (19,176) 1,019 (3,694)
At December 31, 2020 and 202051283182
January 1, 2021 N1E1R18 16,357 1,367 35,961 1,299 2,0% (35,331) 1,801 23,550
(Charged)/credited to profit or loss & 183 (H1%) /3 A
B& 9,216 1) (1,297) (541) (378) 10,911 2.231) 15,661
At December 31, 2021 R021F12A318 25633 1,94 34,664 758 1718 (24,420) (436) 392
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27 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 27 LM BRAROFAEH (&)
STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(continued)

(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognized: (b) EERELEHIBEENEE :
(continued) (&)
(i) Reconciliation to the consolidated statements of (i) ARE B R RE R

financial position

2021 2020
20215 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T ARETT

Net deferred tax asset recognized RERE BRI R R
in the consolidated statements of RIERIAEEFE
financial position 44,238 27,596
Net deferred tax liability recognized — FA4&R A B FEAA R R HERHY
in the consolidated statements of RERESERE
financial position (5,027) (4,046)
39,211 23,550
(c) Deferred tax assets not recognized (c) RERAIRLETIEE E
In accordance with the accounting policy set out in note BB F2(w) FrE B & 5TEGR - R
2(w), the Group has not recognized deferred tax assets in PRAIEEEBHRIEREZESERE X
respect of cumulative tax losses of certain subsidiaries as it ERESRENERNRRERN
is not probable that future taxable profits against which the mA - MAREE RS THER R
losses can be utilized will be available in the relevant tax R RIABEERGENELER
jurisdiction and entity. Deferred tax assets have not been HEE - AERNELEREEER
recognized in respect of the following items: Bl :
2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBTTT
Unused tax losses REVATIEEE 174,978 69,672
Temporary differences T ER 58,916 16,054

233,894 85,726
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27 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 27 GE M BMRAROFAEH (&)
STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(continued)

(c) Deferred tax assets not recognized (continued) (c) RERHVEILEFIIBEE (8)
The expiration information of the Group’s unused tax AEEBBASABERBIBMNEEH
losses is set out below: BRI MAT -

2021 2020
2021% 20204
RMB’'000 RMB'000

AR®T ARETT

2022 20224 = =
2023 20234 27,437 27,437
2024 20244 3,577 3,577
2025 20254 10,972 14,823
2026 and beyond 20265 LA1& 132,992 23,835
174,978 69,672
According to the Announcement on Relevant Tax Policies REM B EERRBERRAOCER
Supporting the Prevention and Control of the Outbreak of ST B i R B Rk 2R ) B R R 1 B 4R
COVID-19 (KR X &3 EE AR = R 80 b AR 1B 12 A B T BRATRERNAE) - XCOVID-19%
BB R D) issued by the Ministry of Finance and the State ENETOX(BRERYREITE)Z
Taxation Administration, the maximum carried forward period ERUEBEBRAENHAFERENF -

of the tax losses affected by COVID-19 in certain difficult
industries, including food and beverage industries, is extended
from five years to eight years.



RSUs (ii)
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The table below sets forth share-based payments expenses for
share options and RSUs during the year:

Share Option Plan (i) RE R REST21()

Re-designation of ordinary share to
preferred shares (iii)

The Group has the following share-based payment
arrangements:

(i) Share Option Plan (equity-settled)

The Group granted share-based awards to qualified
director and employees pursuant to the Share Option
Plan, which was adopted in May 2020 and governed
by the contractual terms of the awards. The qualified
participants of the Share Option Plan are required to
satisfy certain vesting service and non-market performance
conditions for the entitlements. In accordance with the
Share Option Plan agreements, the holders of vested
options are entitled to purchase the Company’s shares at
fixed prices predetermined as at each vesting date. Prior
to the completion of the listing of the Company’s shares
on the Stock Exchange, the Company has the option to
repurchase the vested option upon the occurrence of
certain events at the fixed prices predetermined. Such
option to repurchase will be extinguished upon the
completion of the listing process and the holders of the
shares may freely exercise control over the shares.

Options granted typically expire in 10 years from the
respective grant dates. The options may be exercised at
any time after they have vested subject to the terms of
the award agreement and are exercisable for a maximum
period of 10 years after the date of grant.

5 BR il Bty BB 5 (i)
i+ & 3B AR T 1 T A 1B ST A (i)

4 45 O R A TG 51 1 T IR AR 19 B
S 12 DARR 13 8 LS 69 £ 3039 % 8051 2
Tk

2021 2020
20215 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARETT
13,256 11,249
11,984 2,950
7,492 31,259
32,732 45,458

AEEFEBATABRN SERONKE
B

() Bhrstsl(AEnER)

R ERIER 202045 A SR A H B AR
BAENAERESTREERLIN
B AERNER - %S BAM
BE® A KIRRAOR - BRER S
MABERZ2EEANREE THEBR
B R IEM B RB G T ERER - 1R
ERRES G CREBRERE
BB ABENARERE B MEL
BENBEEERBEARAMRD -
ISENYNECTE SR e B s i Ee
Al - ARBAEBRERLEE TSN
FRABLEENETERBERC R
ERERE FHBREEESN L
MRBTERERY  ROFE AR
B BT SR RO B

ERHBREAENABREAS
BrHERER - BREANNERS
BERTTE  HAXZBHEOE
RAARAA FIEHRREE /SEL
AHRtTEF -
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28 EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
(continued)

28 N EREREURODAERNN

= (4&)

() FEAIEETEI(LUERAEE) (8)
FEBRERKEDRERBNE
BB A BERERARS B
EROHBIR -

(i) Share Option Plan (equity-settled) (continued)
The Group recognizes share-based payments expenses
in its consolidated statements of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income based on awards ultimately
expected to vest.

HERGEBNERELTDHHEZS

A summary of activities of the service-based share options

is presented as follows: m
Weighted
Weighted average
Number average remaining
of share exercise contractual
options price term
Y
BRESE mMETITEE BT E#HH
RMB Year
AR¥ T F
Outstanding as at 12020917418
January 1, 2020 HARITE = = =
Granted during the year NENEEH 34,950,818 0.94 =
Exercised during the year NERBDITE (5,035,756) 2.17 =
Outstanding as at 7202012 A31H
December 31, 2020 W ARTTE 29,915,062 0.73 9.6
Exercisable as at R2020F12A31BA]17f#
December 31, 2020 = = =
Outstanding as at R2021F1 B1H W ARITHE
January 1, 2021 29,915,062 0.73 9.6
Forfeited during the year MNERD B (2,596,380) 0.73 =
Outstanding as at 2021512 H318
December 31, 2021 mARTTE 27,318,682 0.73 8.6

Exercisable as at
December 31, 2021

R2021F12 A31 B a1

5,660,282 - -
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(i) Share Option Plan (equity-settled) (continued)

Fair value of share options

The fair value of share options was estimated using the
trinomial option-pricing model. The determination of
estimated fair value of share-based payment awards on the
grant date is affected by the fair value of the Company’s
ordinary shares as well as assumptions regarding a number
of complex and subjective variables. These variables
include the expected volatility of the shares of the
Company over the expected term of the awards, actual
and projected employee share option exercise behaviors, a
risk-free interest rate and expected dividends, if any.

Based on fair value of the underlying ordinary shares,
the Group has used trinomial option-pricing model to

determine the fair value of the share option as at the grant
date. Key assumptions are set as below:

Risk-free interest rates
Expected term-years

Expected volatility

Exercise multiple 1THES

Fair value of ordinary shares (RMB)

Exercise price (RMB)

58

Dividend yield i

TEHAEAMR — 4F

TEHKED

BMEs

(i)

TERnAREERE (ARET)

1TH#E (AR%ETT)

BRI (AEREE) (&)

BIREN A A EE

AREBFEA=EAPETERAG
AERENAAEE BERED
B EI AR 15 A& “mﬁ%ﬁ@mm
AAABERARRLTEEROAA
BEUNREBEEZEHRNZEE S
NBRETE ZEEERREEEFH

REHNTFAEHBAR AR A RD A

HRE) - BERMAHIESBRET
B1TA - BRRERNXEBEHERE (1N
B) -

REHEEBRNAIAEE A&
BMEER-"AAREERLETE
BREANREBBMOAAEBE
RERFHOT

As at grant dates
REZH BB

0.34%-0.53%
0.34%%0.53%
10

10
30.97%-36.58%
30.97%%36.58%
2.86x-3.34x
2.861F%3.341%
1.97-2.06
1.97%2.06
0.71-2.17
0.71&2.17
0.00%

0.00%

21
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(ii) RSUs (equity-settled)

The RSUs granted would vest in tranches from the grant
date over a certain service period, on specific service
condition that the employees remain in service and
scheduled to be vested over one to four years without
any performance condition requirements. Based on the
vesting schedules of the Group’s plan, the first tranche
shall be vested upon the first anniversary dates of the
grants, and the remaining of the awards shall be vested on
straight-line basis at the anniversary years over a period
of the remaining three years. Once the vesting conditions
underlying the respective RSUs are met, the RSUs are
considered duly and validly issued to the holder, with
restrictions on transfer of such entitlements at any time
during a period of six months commencing on the date on
which the shares of the Company are publicly listed (the

AANREEDITR)

R BRI B (AR AR )

ERHZREIB D ECHRR LA
Hﬂﬁ_Eﬁiﬁlﬁ%Hﬁﬁﬁﬂﬂﬁﬁt 78 (R

BRI R 2R BRERY) - A
%\JEI,ﬂﬂﬂj’tﬂifﬁﬂﬂﬁinﬁmlﬁﬁ
TR-—EMFARE - RIEAEE
VERBRRRKRAE - FHERE
HEEREBFARE - Mk T 2R
ERH T =FHRENBFRZER
ERE o X RS B ERE
VR B IR — R EX - RRBIRD
BAUANRRSZ /BRI ET TR
BA - EAARA KD AREE B
HARE N (E A i (TR EH ) o (Efa
By ] PR Bl B2 R R A A

“Lock-up Period).

Movements in the number of RSUs granted and the
respective weighted average grant date fair value are as

follows:

Outstanding as at
January 1, 2020
Granted during the year

Outstanding as at
December 31, 2020

Outstanding as at
January 1, 2021
Granted during the year
Exercised during the year
Forfeited during the year

Outstanding as at
December 31, 2021

202051 A1 8 HARITE
RERR L

M20205F12A31H

B AR TIE
A2021FE1 A1 8 HMARITE
RERRL

REARNBITE
READ IR

M2021412 8318
W ARITIE

EREXBEHIRDECHEE &ﬁ
BENETOREEARAABENE
o) (N
Weighted
average grant Remaining
Number of date fair value vesting
RSUs per RSU periods
B ZRE
SZRE IR 43 BB AL HY
RGEM  MEFEEY BT
HWHE HBHLAEE BEHH
RMB Year
AR &
6,565,400 2.74 -
6,565,400 2.74 3.6
6,565,400 2.74 3.6
2,346,700 8.62 -
(1,641,350) 2.74 -
(859,450) 5.49 -
6,411,300 4.52 3.0



(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B} BH3ERHIN

(ii) RSUs (equity-settled) (continued)

At of 31 December 2021, a total of 38 employees of the
Group have been granted with a total of 6,411,300 RSUs.

Share-based payment expense relating to awards granted
to employees is based on the grant date fair value of
the RSUs is recognized, on a straight-line basis over the
entire vesting period. The fair value of each RSU at the
grant dates are determined by reference to the fair value
of the underlying ordinary shares of the Company on the
date of grant. The grant date fair value of the underlying
ordinary shares was determined with the assistance of an
independent third-party valuation firm, Jones Lang LaSalle
Corporate Appraisal and Advisory Limited. The fair value
of the ordinary shares was principally developed through
the application of the option pricing method ("OPM").
The OPM treats the ordinary shares as call options on the
enterprise’s equity value. The OPM frequently relies on the
Black-Scholes option pricing model to price the call option.

RSUs were granted under a service condition. This
condition has not been taken into account in the grant
date fair value measurement of the services received. No
dividends have been taken into account in the grant date
fair value measurement of the services received. There
were no market conditions associated with the RSUs.

Annual Report 45§ 2021

AANREEDIR)

(&)

M2021F 128318 - KEEHE38
% (8 B ER #516,411,30010 Z R #l
BEAD BT o

B TFREMNEBBEBENURG A
AR T ER SR D
BANMREABBAAEBEERESRE
REEFBHEER)ET - 5H X
RERHELRABEHBBENAAE
BENE2ERQAAEETBRNR
HHREMNAABEET - HEZA
BHREBH AR BENEBLSE
ZHEEARMREBRITAETHR
BHBRABNMTEE - L&
BOAABETEZRBERASET
BER(THETEE]ETE - Hix
BEAEBEARRIEEBAARERE
ENRERE - BREEELEK
BROR -SRI ECEER S
REEHETEE -

BRI B ) B AL O 4R R T A AR A 1
- AECWBRBHRHEBHA
REESILEEBILGST - FER
WHRS R L ARAARBERL
BERERE - WEEIRHIBRMNE
Az HERE R T A5 5T o
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(iii) Re-designation of ordinary shares to preferred (i) B EBREFTIETE BB
shares
Simultaneous with the issuance of Series C preferred shares 20215612 A 8 1TCRFIME L IRE -
in December 2021, PAGAC Nebula Holdings Limited PAGAC Nebula Holdings Limited
purchased 18,124,469 ordinary shares for an aggregate N#BEEE208H & % T 8 Linxin
purchase price of USD20 million from Linxin Holdings Holdings Limited & & 18,124,4690% &
Limited. AY -
In January 2021, pursuant to a shares purchase agreement R20215F1 R - REARRF - AR
entered between the Company, the Controlling AP AR IR B B — 2 B X AR E R
Shareholders of the Company and a Pre-IPO investor, # & % (B Court Card HK Limited
namely Court Card HK Limited (“CCHK"), CCHK purchased ([CCHK D) AT MR BB E =
4,531,117 ordinary shares for an aggregate purchase price CCHKURBEESEEXTa TR
of USD5 million from the Controlling Shareholders. A RIEE 4,531, 17 L@ -
The aforementioned shares were immediately re- AR DBERI W EFIEE RCRIE
designated as Series C preferred shares. The difference R -RSGBRELTBERAAEE
between the transaction price and fair value of the ordinary LENEBERGEERRABRA
shares were recognized as share-based compensation ARG BEFERMERS -

expense in the consolidated statements of profit or loss.

Total expense recognized related to re-designation BHZE2021F12A31BILFE - B
of ordinary shares to Series C preferred shares was ENETE L BRACRIIELRE
RMB7,492,000 for the year ended December 31, 2021 RS @RE A ANRET,492,0007T

(2020: RMB31,259,000). (2020%F : AE#¥31,259,0007T) °
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29 CAPITAL, RESERVES, DIVIDENDS AND 298K - it RERFERE
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS =
(a) Share capital (a) BRAS
Number of Nominal
Shares Value
KRG EE HE
Notes RMB’'000
Liks3 AR®T R
Ordinary shares, issued and LA - 28T
fully paid: BB
At January 1, 2020 7202061 A1H (ii) - 100
Issuance of ordinary shares HITE B 1,000,000,000 326
Re-designation of ordinary shares B #5E L @A
to series C preferred shares RCHRIMELR (18,124,469) (6)
Exercise of share options 1TIE BB AE 5,035,756 2
At December 31, 2020 and R2020F12A31HE
January 1, 2021 20211 A1H 986,911,287 422
Reorganization B4 (i) = (100)
Re-designation of ordinary shares  E#7#5F LML
to series C preferred shares RCRIBLK (4,531,117) (1)
Issuance of ordinary shares to BT TRERERBFEM
employee incentive platform T m PR 121,226,552 40
Automatic conversion of preferred R EIREER
shares upon global offering B B EIRE ST (i) 354,250,425 114
Global offering BIRBEE (iv) 257,269,000 83

At December 31, 2021 202112 H318 1,715,126,147 558
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29 CAPITAL, RESERVES, DIVIDENDS
AND NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS
(continued)

(a) Share capital (continued)

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

The Company was incorporated as an exempted company with limited
liability in the Cayman Islands on September 5, 2019 with authorized
share capital of USD250,000 divided into 5,000,000,000 shares with a
par value of USD0.00005 each.

For the purpose of the presentation of the consolidated statements
of financial position, the share capital of the Group represents the
paid-in capital of Shenzhen Pindao Group amounting to RMB100,000
and the share capital of the Company amounting to RMB322,000 as at
December 31, 2020. Upon the completion of the Reorganization, the
Company became the holding company of the Group and share capital
as at December 31, 2021 represented solely the share capital of the
Company.

After the completion of the Reorganization in January 2021, the
Company had issued certain numbers of series A, series A+, series B-1,
series B-2 and series C preferred shares upon the share subscriptions,
exercised warrants and re-designation of certain numbers of ordinary
shares to series C preferred shares by the pre-IPO investors and
the Company, respectively. All classes of preferred shares were
automatically converted into ordinary shares on a one to one ratio
upon the Company'’s listing on the Stock Exchange on June 30, 2021.

On June 30, 2021, the Company had newly issued 257,269,000 shares
at HKD19.80 per share with a par value of USD0.00005 each. The
total gross proceeds from the new shares issued were approximately
RMB4,238,555,000 (equivalent to HKD5,093,926,000). The respective
share capital amount was RMB83,000 (equivalent to USD13,000), and
capital reserve was approximately RMB4,096,877,000, net of issuance
costs. The issuance costs paid mainly include share underwriting fees
and commissions and professional fees paid to legal, accounting,
other advisors and other related cost for their services rendered, which
are incremental costs directly attributable to the issuance of the new
shares. These costs amounting to RMB141,594,000 were treated as a
deduction against the capital reserve arising from the issuance.

AANREEDITR)

29 B

e RERFEERE

= (48)
(a) REA(4E)

U]

(iii)

AABR22019F9ASBERERE T
MR ABERECBERAR - EERAKE
250,0003€ 7t * % 4 5,000,000,000 0% &F %
TE{H0.000053% LIS ©

RENGEMBRRAEME - AEEK
BABERINGEEENEHERAARE
100,0007T & AR A B] 2020 12 H31 B #Y
AR AR #322,0007T © RELHETEHK%
RRABKAREEBOZERAGF - MHK2021
F12A31 BHIRAERARR A RA -

M2021F1 AEATRE - RIRHRES
1B - BRARBEERIIREEITHERRER
RAAREFEEETHELTBRACK
MBSk - ARRIBE A RIBITETHE
HIARS - A+R5 - B-1R% » B2RYI &
CRIIEBERK - RAFHR2021F6A30H
REERZ AT BT - FRESERIE SRR R—
tb—E LBl & BhEE iR AT mAR o

MR2021F6A308 © ANQ A AFA19.80
7 JT BT % 17 257,269,000 B & I E &
0.00005% JTHI R 1 » BB ITHRATE R
TBAREK B AR 4,238,555,0007T (B E
75,093,926,0007% 70 ) - S EMKR A A
AR #83,0007T (18 713,000 7T) -
HBRBETRARNENEAREBEOAARE
4,096,877,0007C ° B EITRAEEBRIE
BHEEERARMASARER &5t
HiEM B REE R R SRS
RS EMAERER ZZERAEER
BETHROGERR - ZFERAARKE
141,594,000 7T 1% A& B # T E £ R R K &
B -
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29 CAPITAL, RESERVES, DIVIDENDS
AND NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS
(continued)

2987 - it - RERFEZRE

= (48)

(b) Movements in components of equity

(b) #e a5 4ERK AR 17D &

Details of the changes in the Company’s individual RRAFRE R Mz 4B B o &
components of equity are set out below: IEEH T
The Company /N |
Share-based
Share Capital ~ payments  Exchange Accumulated
Note capital reserve reserve reserve losses Total
HREBAR
N
Rz Bk ERRE GFEE  EXRE  RiER gt
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETR  ARMTn ARBTR ARETR AR¥TR ARETR
Balance at January 1, 2021 RONE1F1ANES 322 (86,710) 10,355 4,858  (153,883)  (225,058)
Changes in equity for the year HZ20215128318
ended December 31, 2021: LEENERET:
Losses for the year EREE - - - - (4363,290) (4,363,290)
Other comprehensive income A2 EbG - - - (57,785) - (57,785)
Total comprehensive income 2ENRES - - - (57,785)  (4,363,290) (4,421,075)
Equity-settled share-based NEREERNRNZS
transactions 28 = - 25,239 - - 25,239
Re-designation of ordinary sharesto ~ e EBRACETIB LR
series C preferred shares (1) (24,822) - - - (24,823)
Automatic conversion of preferred  2IREER B BHE LR
shares upon global offering 114 5,836,367 - - - 5,836,481
Issuance of ordinary shares upon PREEEBTEAR
global offering, net of issuance (NBETRA)
costs 83 4,096,878 - - - 4,096,961
Shares issued to employee incentive {1 FEE HEBTAHKA
platform 40 19 - - - 59
RSUs vested EEEXRHRNEL - 4,493 (4,493) = = =
Balance at December 31, 2021 R2021512831BEE
(note (i) (Ht3E() 558 9,826,205 31101 (52,927) (4517,173) 5,287,784
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29 CAPITAL, RESERVES, DIVIDENDS 2987 - il - RERFERE
AND NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS = (&)
(continued)
(b) Movements in components of equity (continued) (b) EEmAKE D EE)(E)
Share-based
Share Capital  payments  Exchange Accumulated
Note capital reserve reserve reserve losses Total
B A
-3

it Rx RARE  HFEE  EiER  ZER ot
RMB00  RMBO00  RMBOO0  RMBOOD  RMBOOO  RMBOOD
ARt ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETR  ARETR

Balance at January 1, 2020 R2020F1 B1BHILE - - - - - -

Changes in equity for the year BZ220205128318

ended December 31, 2020: LEENERST .
Losses for the year ENEE = = = = (153,883) (153,883)
Other comprehensive income A2ENE - - - 4,858 = 4,858
Total comprehensive income PENGLE - = = 4,858 (153883)  (149,025)
Issuance of ordinary shares BrtaR 326 = = = = 326
Equity settled share-based NEREERNRNZS

transactions 28 - - 14,199 - - 14,199
Shares issued under share BEERET2I%TRRN

option plan 2 13,567 (3,844 = = 9725
Re-designation of ordinary shares ~ E3TiEE EARACEKIIELR

to series C preferred shares 6) (100,277) = = = (100,283)

Balance at December 31, 2020 R2020512 831 A1

(note (i) (HEEE() 322 (86,710) 10,355 4,858 (153883)  (225,058)
Note (i): Under the Companies Law (Revised) of the Cayman Islands, the BisE() : WBEESBEESQARE(EEL) @ X
funds in the reserve account of the Company are distributable NEEBERNNELSAMNEF AR
to the shareholders of the Company provided that immediately FRE  HATREREREEEDER
following the date on which the dividend is proposed to be B HH%  AA R A AE T
distributed, the Company will be in a position to pay off its debts B EH—RERERDEBEK -

as they fall due in the ordinary course of business.
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(c) Nature and purposes of reserves

(i)

(ii)

Capital reserve

Acquisition of non-controlling interests

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the
Group acquired an additional 5% equity interest of
Shanghai Nayuki, Hangzhou Nayuki, Nanjing Manyida
and Nanjing Nayuki from their non-controlling
shareholders at consideration of nil in aggregate,
the differences between the consideration paid and
acquired proportionate interest in identifiable net
assets of Shanghai Nayuki, Hangzhou Nayuki, Nanjing
Manyida and Nanjing Nayuki of RMB4,738,000 was
recognized as a deduction from capital reserve.

Re-designation of ordinary shares to preferred shares
The Group recognized the difference between the
fair value and par value of ordinary shares resulted
from the redesignation of ordinary shares to preferred
shares to amounted to RMB24,822,000 for the year
ended December 31, 2021 (2020: RMB100,277,000).

Automatic conversion of all classes of preferred shares
upon listing

All classes of preferred shares were automatically
converted into ordinary shares on a one-to-one ratio
upon the Company’s listing on June 30, 2021. The
principal amount of all classes of preferred shares and
the cumulative changes in fair value are capitalized as
share capital and capital reserve accordingly.

Share-based payments reserve

The share-based payments reserve represents the
portion of the grant date fair value of share options
and RSUs granted to the directors and employees of
the Group that has been recognized in accordance
with the accounting policy adopted for share-based
payments in note 2(v)(iii).

(o) EBHIEE K&

(i)

(if)

B A GEE

U B FE7E A% e 2
HZE2020F12A831HIEFE -
AEEUSHETHESHIFER
BREWE LERE MRS -
HRRMEERERAESHNEEI
S5%REHE - BTEEERE WE
BEE - MMNEE BEAME
ENERAREMNAHRAFEE
N plEZzz BN ERBAREK
4,738,000 L E R A B & AN f#
Ek -

EHET L BRAELR
HE2021F12A31HIEFE -
AEEHRRTBARAEHET
TRBABELRMEBRN AR
BEEmMAEAZHNEZEARE
24,822,0007T (20204 : AR
100,277,0007T) °

REMEBBERABERNEL
%
RAATN20215E6 8308 £
% - FTEBAELERE A —t—
LB EBain s EmAk - ATE
MBI EAEERAREE
By R T2 B AR E S ANME AR
ARG ERE o

R 17 BRI T A it

AR SER MR FEEHREE T
AEBEENREENERERR
BRI ) BAL YR B AR A (B
B8 - HEREME2(v)
(iii ) AR A A B £ 7 2 B A0 £5F 3R R
M B ETBURIER
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29 CAPITAL, RESERVES, DIVIDENDS
AND NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS
(continued)

(c) Nature and purposes of reserves (continued)

(iii) Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements for operations outside of mainland China.
The reserve is handled with in accordance with the
accounting policies set out in note 2(w).

(d) Dividends

~

No dividends have been declared or paid by the Company
during the year ended December 31, 2021 (2020: nil).

No final dividends were proposed after the end of
reporting period (2020: nil).

Non-controlling interests

In prior years, a subsidiary of the Group received
contribution from non-controlling shareholders, amounted
to RMB 813,000.

Capital management

The Group's primary objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern, so that it can continue to provide returns
for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders,
by pricing products and services commensurately with
the level of risk and by securing access to finance at a
reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages
its capital structure to maintain a balance between the
higher shareholder returns that might be possible with
higher levels of borrowings and the advantages and
security afforded by a sound capital position and makes
adjustments to the capital structure in light of changes in
economic conditions.

AANREEDITR)

2987 - e - RERFERE

= (48)

) REMMEE L ME(E)

(iii) FES
EXREEERAERREREAX
BE DASNMb [ 75 0O B B R BE A
HISNEERR o &R T IRIRP R
W IEINE SR B ERANE
SHERERBEEE o

(d) fx B

HE2021F 128318 ILEE - AR

A3 & 5k 20K 1 BB (20204 -
&) -

HERRE  TERZDIRARBRK
B(2020%F : f&) »

FRIERAE S

RBEFE  AEE-—XHEBR
AEFERERREIIEARY
813,0007T °

BERERE
AEBEREANEEARERE
AEBBEGENES  UETR

1B B2 R B
BERAGENRAESHE -
AR R ([0 3 K A E b R 28
FHREMS -

2K FEHENERMRSE
B
bisl:

AEEESERRTREEREER
RE - NERBEMRRER(A] 8
fif 7 8= 18 B K ) B AR A2 ) & AR
ﬁ%ﬁXM@%ﬁi%%Zﬁ%$
& WERKEBARNBHBRELRR
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B BAEIERAIN © LALAREEFIIR)

29 CAPITAL, RESERVES, DIVIDENDS
AND NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS
(continued)

(f) Capital management (continued)

The Group monitors its capital structure on the basis
of an adjusted net asset/debt-to-capital ratio. For this
purpose, adjusted net debt is defined as total debt
(which includes interest-bearing borrowings and lease
liabilities but excludes redeemable capital contributions,
financial liabilities at FVTPL and convertible redeemable
preferred shares) plus unaccrued proposed dividends, less
cash and cash equivalents. Adjusted capital comprises
all components of equity and redeemable capital
contributions, financial liabilities at FVTPL and convertible
redeemable preferred shares, other than amounts
recognized in equity relating to cash flow hedges, less
unaccrued proposed dividends, if any.

The Group’s adjusted net asset-to-capital ratio at
December 31, 2021 is 33.7% (2020: adjusted net debt-to-
capital ratio 166.5%).

30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency risks
arises in the normal course of the Group’s business.

The Group's exposure to these risks and the financial risk
management policies and practices used by the Group to
manage these risks are described below.

(a) Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default
on its contractual obligations resulting in a financial loss to
the Group. The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable
to trade and other receivables. The Group's exposure
to credit risk arising from cash and cash equivalents and
restricted deposits is limited because the counterparties
are banks, financial institutions, Alipay and Wechat Pay with
high credit rating and no past due history, for which the
Group considers having low credit risk.

2987 - e - RERFERE

= (48)

) BAEE(E)
FEBRBLARFEE BEBE
R REZEHEERRERE - gk
FORHARAGBFREATCTKRAE
(B REFAREERARE - BT
BEAEETE - LAREEFZ
BEEHAAZHEENERAE
VA B 7] %2 42 7] A [0 48 5t %) D0 OR &F
RELKBE  BRERELREFE
Yo RAREABRESNAAM
REDMAEEDEE - UAREE
AAEREEHGARHESENER
BENARATERAEEETR -
RERSREE T AR ER T E
RO BB E R REKRE (1
BIBRIN

REBR2021F12 A3 HH KA
SEETEE AN R 533.7% (20204 -
ERAEFESREARL T E166.5%) °

J0TRAREEREMIANLD
REE
AEBEREFEBHBRAAREE R
BES  FEREHER

N 6 [ T o O R F R B AN SR T 3R X
F R B P A 0 2 Bl R B B BE BROR S B B
BRI e

) EERR
FERBEXZIEFRETHEAR
EEMERARELRGBERD
Rk - AEENEERRIERRA
RESREMEBKAIR - AR B
HFRBAETERHCENSEE
AEARERTT - 2 REE - X E RN
Exf AEERSEEERRRK
B BAKEEERERERAS
ZEMARZEHNFRNEERR
BR -
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(a) Credit risk (continued)

-

The Group's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by
the individual characteristics of each customer rather than
the industry or country in which the customers operate and
therefore significant concentrations of credit risk primarily
arise when the Group has significant exposure to individual
customers.

In determining the ECL for trade debtors and other
receivables, the management of the Group has taken into
account the historical default experience and forward-
looking information, as appropriate. The management
of the Group has assessed that trade debtors and other
receivables have not had a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition and risk of default is insignificant,
and therefore, no loss allowance of trade debtors and
other receivables is considered necessary by management
for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020. The
expected credit loss rate is insignificant and close to zero.

The Group does not provide any guarantees which would
expose the Group to credit risk.

Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the group are
responsible for their own cash management, including
the short-term investment of cash surpluses, participation
in supplier finance arrangements with banks and the
raising of loans to cover expected cash demands, subject
to approval by the parent company’s board when the
borrowing exceed certain predetermined levels of
authority. The group’s policy is to regularly monitor its
liquidity requirements and its compliance with lending
covenants, to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves
of cash and readily realizable marketable securities and
adequate committed lines of funding from major financial
institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in the short
and longer term.

The following tables show the remaining contractual
maturities at the end of the reporting period of the Group's
non-derivative financial liabilities and derivative financial
liabilities, which are based on contractual undiscounted
cash flows (including interest payments computed using
contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates current at
the end of the reporting period) and the earliest date the
Group can be required to pay.

AANREEDITR)

(a) EEER (&)

-

AEEEHENEER I%i!%
%ﬁ%ﬂAﬁﬁ(ﬁ#%ﬁ VEFTB
TEIMERRSEME)FE - R
SETEAHGENEFPHERNE
REBREHESEETHERER

uno

TF 75 7E B URR 3R I o th B MR R IE /Y
BHEEEERN  AEEEREED
TR S IE LS R ATIE M E R (1
i%) AEEEEEDFHER

R EMEWRIE S VSRR
iﬁ G MmABEIE I A EORRE
&Tiﬁ'ﬂmﬁﬁFwﬁﬂﬁﬂ
HZE 20214 K2020%E12 A31 B 1L
JE Bt 7B U AR 3R R EL th FE UGB
EEEE - TEHEEBBEERNTR
E Tﬁ b-/\To

AEE YRR AT RES
H R {E B R R ELR o

mu@lﬁi

$EIWXMﬁ¢W“T%A§
ReER 2RESESNEHRKR
B 2HEHEFERITHORE ZH
REBEEEFURERANRSH
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T AR AFEFGHAE K
EERNRARETHERERDEST
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SHNHEER %M&IE@M%
%hfﬂ%m% BERE - Aim
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30FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR cmEAREEREMIAENAD

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AEEE)
(continued)
(b) Liquidity risk (continued) (b) mEIEREMR(E)
Year ended December 31, 2021
BEANNENANBLEE
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
SRARARER
More than ~ More than
Within 1 1yearbut 2 years but Carrying
year or on less than lessthan ~ More than amount at
demand 2 years 5 years 5 years Total December 31
-Frg -ERE RENML M2A31R
REX BmER BRER REERE Eh HEEE

RMB000  RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'O00  RMB'O00  RMB'000
ARBTR  ARTR ARETR ARRTR  ARETR  AR®TR

Bank loans B1187 428 - - - 428 428
Trade and other payables LS REMERTE 654,208 - - - 654,208 654,208
Lease liabilities fEafk 500,577 432,453 640,529 62,839 1,636,398 1,453,038

1,185,213 432,453 640,529 62,839 2,291,034 2,107,674

Year ended December 31, 2020

HENNFI2ANELER
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
SRRERR SR
Morethan ~ More than

Within 1 Tyearbut 2 years but Carrying
year or on less than lessthan  More than amount at
demand 2 years 5 years 5 years Total  December 31
—End ENEE RENLE WM2A31A
RER MER RER RENE it HEREE

RMB00  RMBOOO  RWBOO0  RMBO00  RMBOOD  RMBO0O
ARRTTL  ARBTR  ARBTR  ARMTR  ARETR  ARBTR

Bank loans and interest-bearing RO Ra e

borrowing 288,674 447 - - 289,121 283,558
Trade and other payables B REMERNTE 499219 1457 - - 500,676 500,676
Lease liabilities feak 437,206 407,353 652,493 32,020 1,529,072 1,356,726

1,225,099 409,257 652,493 32,020 2,318,869 2,140,960
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30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(continued)

(b) Liquidity risk (continued)

In addition to the above, the Group was also exposed
to liquidity risk arising from the redemption features of
the redeemable capital contributions, financial liabilities
measured at FVTPL and convertible redeemable preferred
shares at December 31, 2020, which are further detailed
in notes 22, 23 and 24, respectively. The aforementioned
financial instruments have been automatically converted
into ordinary shares upon the Company’s listing on June
30, 2021.

Interest rate risk
(i) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future
cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates. The
Group's interest rate risk arises primarily from interest-
bearing borrowings. Borrowings issued at variable
rates and fixed rates expose the Group to cash flow
interest rate risk and fair value interest rate risk
respectively.

As at December 31, 2021, the Group has no borrowings
bearing variable interest rate.

(d) Currency risk

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily give rise
to cash and cash equivalents that are denominated in a
foreign currency, i.e. a currency other than the functional
currency of the operations to which the transactions
related. The currencies giving rise to this risk are primarily
HKD and USD.

AANREEDITR)

cREREEREMIAMNA
AREE(E)

(b) RBE R (E)

~

BR LA bR oh - ZN & @ 52020412
A3TAMASZEAERTEE - UQ
hEEFEEEEHTAEHESE
RS BB & & AT 830 0] B8 OB ST AR
(FERMWsE22 ~ 230 24) WEE @&
BEENTRBDESRR - XAFK
20216 A30H M Mg + Fiie @
TAYAFHEK LB

FEER

() FIEEE
MERBEEHRTANAAEE
SARKIE S REREE ISR E
HMEENZBRAR - XEE
MERBEZREFTEMER - &
Z B FI R & B F R B ER
FEAREE D BIEEIR S REFR
Rk AR BEFRERR -

HZE2021F12A831H » "&EH
I 2B R AEFK -

SRR
AEEATNENRRIEELE
AN (IR Z IR EBH IS
BN ER ) ENRERREE
B clEE¥RBRNEEIER
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30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(continued)

(d) Currency risk (continued)
(i) Exposure to currency risk

The following table details the Group’s exposure at
the end of the reporting period to currency risk arising
from recognized assets or liabilities denominated
in a currency other than the functional currency of
the entity to which they relate. For presentation
purposes, the amounts of the exposure are shown in
RMB, translated using the spot rate at the year end
date. Differences resulting from the translation of the
financial statements of foreign operations into the
Group's presentation currency are excluded.

7 & M 35 3R RO EE

AANREEDIR)

cEEAMEEREMIANA

REEGE

)u

(d) B AR (&)

(i)

E¥mER
TREFIAEER RS AR
XA BRI EE UG
FHEMEHEREEXREMESE
WE%@@°%%WHW'%%
R REERFER N
Erﬁ RARE - ETBEES
BINRBOM B RERBE /AL
B2 EWRELNEHE

Exposure to foreign currency

(expressed in RMB)
As at December 31, 2021

SMERBE(UARERTR)
BZ2021512A31H
Hong Kong United States
Dollars Dollars
BT ESpH
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥T T AR¥T T
Cash and cash equivalents RERBEEFED 3,177,651 29,718
Exposure to foreign currency
(expressed in RMB)
As at December 31, 2020
SNERBR (AARERT)
#H Z=20206F12A31H
Hong Kong  United States
Dollars Dollars
BIT X7
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETTT ARETTT
Cash and cash equivalents ReLEESEEY 676 15,056
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30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(continued)

(d) Currency risk (continued)

(i) Sensitivity analysis

The following table indicates the instantaneous change
in the Group's loss after taxation (and accumulated
losses) and other components of consolidated equity

that would arise if foreign exchange rates to which

the Group has significant exposure at the end of the
reporting period had changed at that date, assuming
all other risk variables remained constant.

Zs
J

—

30 ﬁﬁﬂg(ﬁﬁfiﬁﬁﬁﬂlﬂﬁ’ﬂﬁ

i

1l

(d) E¥ AR (&)

(i) SHERE ST

TRINFREZEMTE E R &
REFAE - WRREHREARE
A EAR R A E X RS -
AEBERHREBER(RRER)
K E b 2 4B A ED 1 AT BE I ER A9
BB g

2021 2020
2021% 2020
Increase/ Effect on Increase/ Effect on
(decrease) loss after (decrease) loss after
in foreign taxation and in foreign  taxation and
exchange accumulated exchange accumulated
rate losses rate losses
BREERER BREiIR B 1R
HNEER RIEFESE SNEER  RRFER
H/(THE) V8 AT GopZ
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARMT T ARETFT
Hong Kong Dollars BT 3% 95,306 3% 101
(-3)% (95,306) (-3)% (101)
United States Dollars ETT 3% 891 3% 495
(-3)% (891) (-3)% (495)
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30FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR cmEAREEREMIAENAD
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS REEE)
(continued)

it

pil

!

(d) B Rk (&)
(ii) SEE ()

(d) Currency risk (continued)

(i) Sensitivity analysis (continued)

Result of the analysis as presented in the above table
represent an aggregation of the instantaneous effects
on each of the Group entities’ loss after taxation
and equity measured in the respective functional
currencies, translated into RMB at the exchange
rate ruling at the end of the reporting period for
presentation purposes.

The sensitivity analysis assumes that the change
in foreign exchange rates had been applied to re-
measure those financial instruments held by the Group
which expose the Group to foreign currency risk at the
end of the reporting period, including intercompany
payables and receivable within the Group which are
denominated in a currency other than the functional
currencies of the lender or the borrower. The analysis
excludes differences that they would result from
the translation of the financial statements of foreign
operations into the Group's presentation currency,
which depends on the foreign currencies the Group
is exposed to, may or may not have an effect on the
Group's net assets. The analysis is performed on the
same basis as 2020.

ER2HNZAMERTIRBE A
KEZERBZBRREEN(EE
B2t B E - WRE5IMm
BHREMREREXRBEDA
RE)MERZ AR E -

BREMMEBREER 2 EHE T
JEA  LEFFTEZZSAEE
RS BR E RGNS R 2 A &
EtmTE  BEAERASLE
RAZ B E M AN E ¥ ETHE
ZAREBAEL AT EEASRE R
FEWFIE - o T ERIERRE
HINEBTBRE AR EEZT
BEEMEENERE  B@EES
THER R B 7 £ B B T Be MO SN &
B AVEHAEENEEFE
EATE - FillHTiRE2020F
FER By BT o
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30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(continued)

(e) Fair value measurement

(i) Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair
value

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of the
Group's financial instruments measured at the end of
each reporting period on a recurring basis, categorized
into the three-level fair value hierarchy as defined in
IFRS 13, Fair value measurement. The level into which a
fair value measurement is classified is determined with
reference to the observability and significance of the
inputs used in the valuation technique as follows:

—  Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using only
Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities at
the measurement date

— Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using Level
2 inputs i.e. observable inputs which fail to meet
Level 1, and not using significant unobservable
inputs. Unobservable inputs are inputs for which
market data are not available

— Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using
significant unobservable inputs

cEEMEEREMIANA

¥
i

(e) AR{EBEE

(i)

AR EEGTEN T BEER
BiE

RABERER
TRINFAEER HREHRIZE
EUHEEAEZERTIANOA
BE HREESBERYHHREL
AIF ISR AR EBEAEMREZ
“ERRBEEBERR - RAE
B EMBRZARITILRIAT
RERMTREABRZ I BR
REREZREMETE :

- FRGE:ERFE 4R
ABUR (B2 B HIAE R
BEXRBETEEMSZK
RARBE)FEZANE
(=]

— FoREE: ERE_RE
ABE(AIREFTAE R
BEZ A ABRER 28 A
HE - ARTERTAER
BRZEBHAEE)E
ZRAREE - FOEBEREE
ZEABREBIEAEHEETS
HiE 2 8iE

— BZAMLE: ERTHEER
BEZERHABBHEZ
DAEE
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30FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR cmEAREEREMIAENAD

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(continued)

(e) Fair value measurement (continued)

(i) Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair
value (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

The following table presents the Group's financial
assets and financial liabilities that are measured at fair
value at the end of each reporting period:

Fair value at
December 31,

V2N

A
—_—

(e) &

(i)

B{E(

B

1l

REEFEGE)

AR EEGTEN T BEER
Bla(#)

RABERERGE)
TRINFAEERBEREHR
BARBEMENEREERS
BAE

Fair value measurements as at
December 31, 2021 categorized into

2021 R2021F12A31BMAREEFESES
R20214F Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
1283181
AREE £-& ot E=
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARBTR ARETR AR®BTR
Recurring fair value REMNABEE
measurement
Financial asset at FVTPL BRAREBENAER
HeREE
- Listed equity investment —RETARN
R E 46,200 46,200 - _
46,200 46,200 - -
Financial liabilities at FVTPL AR BEABER
SRBE
- Forward foreign exchange —BHINEREB AL
structure contracts 8,376 - 8,376 -
8,376 - 8,376 -
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30FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(continued)
(e) Fair value measurement (continued)

(i) Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair
value (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

30%

7

BREREERESBHITANA
EE(E)

(e) RRBEEE)

() XAREEFENTBEER
Bla(#)

RABERERGE)

Fair value at Fair value measurements as at
December 31, December 31, 2020 categorized into
2020 R2020F 123 BRARBEFEDES
120205 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
128318/
NREE EF—R ER BE=1
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARETT AREFTT ARETFT ARETTT
Recurring fair value REEDMAEENE
measurement
Financial liabilities at RAREBEFAER
FVTPL MemaE
— Warrants, onshore loans —R2RigE - SBEREH
and convertible note PG ES 361,881 = = 361,881
— Convertible redeemable — A& A& B8 5 Ik
preferred shares 652,490 = = 652,490
1,014,371 - - 1,014,371

During the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020,
there were no transfers among different levels of fair
values measurement.

H E20214F %2020 128318
EFE BB AABEFERT
[BE 4 2 ] B A e 3 o
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30FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR cmEAREEREMIAENAD
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS REEE)
(continued)

it

«
pil

It

(e) AR EBEFEE)
() UARFEFEHSBEER
BEE)
EMEZRDARENEZER

(e) Fair value measurement (continued)

(i) Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair
value (continued)

Information about Level 3 fair value measurements

Fair value measurements using significant
unobservable inputs (Level 3)
ERATEEBIZERRAHEH B AAEE
(B=4)

For the year ended December 31, 2021
BE2021F12A310LLEE

Warrants,
onshore  Convertible
loans and  redeemable Wealth
convertible preferred management
note shares products
AREEE -
BRERK TER
THRREE TEEEER BEHMER
(note (i) (note (i)
(H=E()) (H=E())
Opening balance Bl Y6558 361,881 652,490 =
— Purchases —BA - - -
— Issues — 17 - 1,115,264 -
- Settlements ! (200,000) = =
Total gains or losses for the year G R =k E1E
— Included in profit or loss —iT A& (161,881)  (1,767,754) =
—Included in other comprehensive — &t AE 42 E U zE
income = - -
Closing balance R - - -
Change in unrealized gains or RRERRBENEER
losses for the year included in BEFAGEERR
consolidated statements of profit ~ E & E Uz R
or loss and other comprehensive ~ FRARE IR N
income for liabilities and assets ~ E518& &)

held at the end of the reporting
period - - -
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30FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR cmEAREEREMIANA
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS REEE)
(continued)

]

)

il

A BEFEE)

() URABEGTENTHBEER

(e) Fair value measurement (continued)

(e)

(i) Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair

value (continued) BEE)
Information about Level 3 fair value measurements BERE=ZHrrnBEFE2EHR
(continued) (&)

Fair value measurements using significant
unobservable inputs (Level 3)

ERTABRBIACERRAZBHEZAREE

(E=H)
For the year ended December 31, 2020
HZE2020F12831BILFE
Warrants,
onshore Convertible
loans and  redeemable Wealth
convertible preferred  management
note shares products
RIHEE
ERESRK A
AMREE  AEEELR BRI E M
(note (i)) (note (i))
GEN (PR EE())
Opening balance HAERER = - -
— Purchases —BEA = = 30,000
~ Issues — BT 234,466 652,490 -
- Settlements —#E = = (30,247)
Total gains or losses for the year G R#AULZE Sk E 12
- Included in profit or loss —iT A& 132,757 - 247
—Included in other comprehensive —&t A H{th 2 E
income (5,342) - -
Closing balance R 361,881 652,490 =
Change in unrealized gains or RBERRBENEER
losses for the year included in BEMAGABRER
consolidated statements of profit  Hfth 2 U z5 & 4
or loss and other comprehensive  FRAREZ IR Uiz 5k
income for liabilities and assets ~ [&E%
held at the end of the reporting
period 127,415 = -
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30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(continued)

(e) Fair value measurement (continued)

(i) Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair
value (continued)

Information about Level 3 fair value measurements

(continued)

Note(i):

As the warrants, onshore loans, convertible note and
convertible redeemable preferred shares are not traded in
an active market, the Group applied the market approach
method to determine the underlying equity value of the
Group and adopted option-pricing method and equity
allocation model to determine the fair value of the warrants,
onshore loans, convertible note and convertible redeemable
preferred shares. Major assumptions used in the valuation for
the warrants, onshore loans, convertible note and convertible
redeemable preferred shares are presented in note 23 and
note 24.

The convertible redeemable preferred shares were
recognized at fair value at its initial recognition on 31
December 2021. Hence, there is no fair value movement
in relation to the convertible redeemable preferred shares
recognized for the year ended 31 December 2021.

Fair value of the warrants, onshore loans, convertible note
and convertible redeemable preferred shares is affected
by changes in the Group's equity value. In 2021, upon the
successful listing of the Company, the warrants, onshore
loans, convertible note and convertible redeemable preferred
shares are converted into ordinary shares of the Company.

If the Group's equity value had increased/decreased by 10%
with all other variables held constant, the loss before income
tax for the year ended 31 December 2020 would have been
approximately RMB21,119,000/RMB20,957,000 higher/lower.

(i) Fair values of financial assets and liabilities
carried at other than fair value

The carrying amounts of the Group's financial
instruments carried at amortized cost are not materially

different from their fair values as at December 31, 2021

and 2020 because of the short-term maturities of all

these financial instruments.

cEEAMEEREMIANA
AREE(

)

i}

I

(e) nAEBEEE)
() K27 EEGEGSHEER

BEE)
BBRE=-RARBEFTECER
(H\E\)

BIEEG) © R RRRIERR - SRNER - A
A% Z2 5% K O] & 44 A fE B8 L AR I
FERERMSHEITER - A%
EEATS AETASEERHER
REEE - WHRNRETEEER

MR E A IR E SRR - B
WEA AR AR AR I AT S Al
BEELROAAEE - AR
RRHEFE - HAER - HRRE
B R AT EE A n] B BB SR AT
B E ERBRIM 23R M 24
E7E

A B 6 A i [0 48 St AR 7 20214F 12
A3 BEEVIERERERAAE
BWER o Fit - #ZE2021F127
MNBILEFE - BEGHEDERA
BRATEREERNAREEE
§j} °

REEE - RAEN - AIREERE
12 e RJ #5301 SR AR B A o
BEXAEENREEEZIM
TE - RRN2021F KL £
% RER  BAER AR
BRI I AT g A m] B e B S AR

HAEBRRZEEEMEEM
AEHERBETET L TK
10% -+ BIE Z=20205E12 8318 1k
FERMEHABESEA T
B AR #21,119,0007T, AR
#20,957,0007T °

(i) WIHEAREESRNEBEE

REENALEE

HAEZSFERTANIIHA
B - AR E R HR AR
ZE& T AREERER2021F K&
2020F12A3MAZ AnBEEIL
BEAER -

233



234 Nayuki Holdings Limited - Z2E RG22 A

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B} BH3ERHIN

31 COMMITMENTS

Capital commitments outstanding at December 31, 2021 not

provided for in financial statements were as follows:

AANREEDITR)

31 A&iE

MR2021F 128318 » mABITREYRE
WBMRANIELBE 2 BERAENT ¢

2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T
Capital commitments B ANAEYE 84,411 21,213
32 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS NEXBEHEAIXRS

(a) Name and relationship with related parties

During the year ended December 31, 2021, the directors
are of the view that the following are related parties of the
Group:

Name of related parties

FARE T B8

(a) FARE T 248 MR

HE2021F12A3BILFE &5
RET X E AN E E R R

Relationship with the Group
EEANESE )0 R S

Mr. Zhao Lin & Ms. Peng Xin
HWREERET KT

Dongguan Zundao Environmental Protection Packaging
Co., Ltd. * REMBERRBEEEAR LA
(referred to as “Dongguan Zundao")

REMEBRFREXREXARARGER [R=BE])

Shenzhen Fucheng Technology Co., Ltd. *
(RINTH 2R B R A F))(referred to as
“Shenzhen Fucheng”)

ARYTREEMRERAR (EA DRYIEE])

Xinian Dalang Beverage Store, Longhua District,
Shenzhen (R EERAREFTEE FRXRR/E)
(referred to as “Xinian Dalang”)

RIMEERARTEESFARME(BA[EFAR])

*  The official names of these entities are in Chinese. The English

translation of the names is for identification only.

Founders of the Company

ARRAEIE A

Entity controlled by the founders of the
Company

ARRAEIE AEHI R E RS

Entity where the founders of the Company
had significant influences

RABEIBABERZENNER

Entity where the founders of the Company
had significant influences

AARBIRABEATZEINER
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32 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

(b) Key management personnel remuneration

Remuneration for key management personnel of the
Group, including amounts paid to the Company’s directors
as disclosed in note 8 and certain of the highest paid

7 & M 35 3R RO EE

AANREEDIR)

NEXRBEHLIRS (&

(b) T2EEASH B
AEEEEERASOHH(2EH
HSMHBERARNEEINNEHE
RMEOMERENE T RS HHES

employees as disclosed in note 9, is as follows: TRMESF)IWT :

2021 2020

20214 2020%F

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TR AREFTT

Short-term employee benefits T HRE B2 A 9.464 2,958

Post-employment benefits BB 12 18 A 243 50
Equity-settled share-based payment  LAEZEZE RS &

expenses B H KA 11,714 36,454

21,421 39,462

Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (see note

6(b)).

Related parties transactions

In addition to those related party transactions disclosed

FMEBEA A EIRAR]I(RME

6(b))
(c) FBE TR 5

BRMBHREREMEBO WENBE T

elsewhere in financial statements, the Group had the RN - RERN - A& B ELH B
following transactions with its related parties during the FTHEITATRS -
year:
2021 2020
2021% 20204F
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARETTT
Recurring transactions: BEURS
Purchase from related parties E=lc):pa)
- Dongguan Zundao —REEE 63,461 85,025
— Shenzhen Fucheng — R R 8,392 8,165
71,853 93,190
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (FrRBHHIAI - UAREZITR)

32 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 32 EXKEEHRZ S (&)
(continued)

(d) Balance with related parties (d) FEEs 5 4554
2021 2020
20214 20204F
RMB’'000 RMB'000

ARBFR ARET T

Amounts due from FEMIA T AT IR
Trade in nature (i) RS
- Xinian Dalang —EFKR - 306
- Dongguan Zundao —REEE 2,464 -
2,464 306
2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARETT
Amounts due to FERTLATR AL RIR
Trade in nature (i) RSME (i)
- Dongguan Zundao —REEE = 14,394
— Shenzhen Fucheng — &I 2 2,486 2,266
Non-trade in nature IZH5ME
— Mr. Zhao Lin & Ms. Peng Xin — M EEE LT - 159
2,486 16,819
Note: i
(i)  The outstanding balances with these related parties are trading () HEZZWEBHTEBROREMNESRTATE
balances included in “Trade and other receivable” (note 17) and S REMEREIE|(WF17) M E 5 RE

“Trade and other payables” (note 19). o FE A FRE | (BT RE19) O B ER%EE -



Annual Report 4§ 2021 237

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRERME
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32 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 32 EXKEEEAHX S (&)
(continued)

(e) Applicability of the Listing Rules relating to (e) EANBER HH) A
connected transactions

The recurring transactions with related parties in respect AR 32(c) B RE B 7 RO AS B M AT
of note 32(c) above constitute continuing connected SR TR E4AZERRERNG
transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. BRIER S - FTHRBELAERTE
The disclosures required by Chapter 14A of the Listing MFBESREFTERE [HEFER
Rules are provided in paragraph headed “Continuing Z1—E -

Connected Transactions” of the Directors’ Report.
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December 31, December 31,

2021 2020
20214 20204
12HA31H 12A31H
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
b5 AR¥ TR ARET T
Non-current asset FRBEE
Investment in subsidiaries RFB AR MIEE 13 144,651 36,590
Current assets REEE
Trade and other receivables B 5 N E b fE W i IE 17 1,947,794 546,288
Prepayments TRt EIA 241 -
Cash and cash equivalents BERESZEEY 18 3,204,744 14,979
5,152,779 561,267
Current liabilities REBEE
Other payables HibpEftIE 2,908 5,671
Financial liabilities at FVTPL BARBEITABED
SREaE 23 6,738 164,754
Convertible redeemable preferred A& a] & [0] 48 St i
shares 24 = 652,490
9,646 822,915
Net current assets/(liabilities) REBEE (BE)FE 5,143,133 (261,648)
Total assets less current HEERRBERE
liabilities 5,287,784 (225,058)
NET ASSETS/(LIABILITIES) BE(AE)FH 5,287,784 (225,058)
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BARR#E
Share capital A& 7R 29(a) 558 322
Reserves & 29(c) 5,287,226 (225,380)
TOTAL EQUITY/(DEFICIT) (B4 M8 5,287,784 (225,058)
Approved and authorized for issue by the board of directors on REE LM 202293 429 B #E /A& EEET)
March 29, 2022. % o
Zhao Lin Peng Xin
Chairman of the Board Executive Director
Fi= AL

BEER HITEE
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B BAEIERAIN © LALAREEFIIR)

34 IMMEDIATE AND ULTIMATE CONTROLLING

PARTY

As at December 31, 2021, the Directors consider the immediate
parent of the Company to be Linxin Holding Limited, which is
incorporated in the BVI, and the ultimate controlling party of
the Company to be Mr. Zhao Lin and Ms. Peng Xin.

35 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,

NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the IASB
has issued a number of amendments and new standards, which
are not yet effective for the year ended 31 December 2021 and
which have not been adopted in these financial statements.
These include the following which may be relevant to the
Group.

I5HE

MAEERRRERA

2021128318 EERANEED
ERESRAAERBEA RS MK
S ELinxin Holding Limited © &NA &Y
RIEERT REMEERZ LR L -

2021 12H31 B L&
EEﬁﬁﬁﬁ*i%%hJ
K- -FEIEARZENEE
&
EEZSYBRERTEES  BERest
ERBEESDEME T AR
Bl - MZEEBIIARTTERER
mmiuﬁmatifﬁ%i& IEF S
R IEIRRPERM - EPBEFEUT
AR EAE @A ¢

||P

=

N

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on

or after

AT B8zt 2
BB ST

HAR AR

Amendments to IFRS 3, Reference to the Conceptual Framework

BRI EEANEIMNERT AN - HELRER AT

January 1, 2022
20221 A1H

Amendments to IAS 16, Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before

Intended Use

B ST ERE1SRNERI AR - WX - BELRRE - BEHEFAFENE

Amendments to IAS 37, Onerous Contracts—Cost of Fulfilling a Contract

B SR ERIEITRNER R - BREAN —EAEITAIKAK

Amendments to IFRS Standards, Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2018-2020
B R B 75 3 S S RIBIE BT AN » 20184 20204 BB AL 75 3t 25 2 Rl 4F 2 24 4

Amendments to IAS 1, Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current

B SR EREVRNIERTN - REDEBREHIRE

IFRS 17, Insurance Contracts

BRI BREERIETHR - RERE R

Amendments to IFRS 17
Bl BR B A R & E R 1 7SR MBS T AN

January 1, 2022
20221 A1 8

January 1, 2022
20221 A1H

January 1, 2022
20221 A1 8

January 1, 2023
2023F1 A1H

January 1, 2023
2023%F1A1H

January 1, 2023
2023F1 A1H
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35 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, 358

NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR

THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021
(continued)

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on

or after

AT B H#isk,2
BFRAKNES

HAR AR

Amendments to IAS 1 and IFRS Practice Statement 2,
Disclosure of Accounting Policies

B @ ERIE VRS AR BEIRY SRS L EHREE2E

Amendments to IAS 8, Definition of Accounting Estimate

BIFR & ERIESEERTA - Baf et a0 E

BiTBRZIEE

January 1, 2023
2023%F1A1H

January 1, 2023
2023%F1A1H

Amendments to IAS 12, Deferred Tax Related to Assets and Liabilities Arising from a

Single Transaction

R EAFI12R/OERTAN - BE—XGHELCEERREBHELEHE

January 1, 2023
2023%F1A1H

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28, Sale or Contribution of Assets between an

Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture

To be determined

BRI B R EERIE1097 RER ST ERE28RMER A - REFHEAP LN A A E

RAZ R EEL E X T E

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
what the impact of these amendments and new standards is
expected to be in the period of initial application. So far, the
Group has concluded that the adoption of them is unlikely
to have a significant impact on the consolidated financial
statements.

36 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

COVID-19

Since early 2022, a new wave of COVID-19 outbreak has
impacted various regions across Mainland Chinese with raising
reported confirmed cases. The Chinese government has
imposed various restrictions over business activities, including
temporarily banning of dine-in services and reduced business
hours in certain areas where the confirmed cases are high. The
impact to the operation of the Group remains highly uncertain
and subject to the development of the situation.

N

FE

A& B IEfE AR FER] AR ERR
BERERYRENELNTE - 295
b AR EEERRE T A R E] A
KA EHGREMBHRRENEATE

6 MEEH

COVID-19

#— % 20196 ¥ 88 AR 8 B R B 10 2022
FMRE  BERDROIEN - FESP
BAESELRE PREFHEHXEY
BT ERBEY - BRELERRE R
MRERLEDERRZ OGNS X
- RBEEARELENTENASE
THEEMN  RBERERME °
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